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I. KEY AUTHORITY INFORMATION
AND MANAGEMENT
(a) Background information
Kenya Civil Aviation Authority was established under the Civil Aviation
(Amendment) Act, 2002 on 24th October 2002. The Act received
Presidential Assent and became effective on the same day,24th October
2002. This Act amended the Civil Aviation Act (Cap.394) of the Laws
of Kenya and established the Kenya Civil Aviation Authority (KCAA)
as an autonomous corporate body that took over the functions of the
Directorate of Civil Aviation (DCA) and the licensing of air services
hitherto under Civil Aviation Board (CAB). The Civil Aviation Act (Cap
394) and the Civil Aviation (Amendment) Act,2OO2 have now both been
superseded by The Civil Aviation Act,2013, as amended by the Civil
Aviation (Amendment) Act 2016.

The Authority is domiciled in Kenya and has Stations in Nairobi, Mombasa,
Kisumu, Malindi, Eldoret, Mua Hills, Poror, Mlolongo, Ngong, Lokichoggio,
Dianl, Wajir and Montreal, Canada.
At cabinet level, Kenya Civil Aviation Authority is represented by
the Cabinet Secretary for Transport, lnfrastructure, Housing, Urban
Development and Public Works who is responsible for the general sector
policy direction and bilateral agreements/arrangements.

(b) Principal Activities
KCAA performs two broad key functions. The first one is to provide air
navigation services in Kenya's Airspace (also referred to as the Nairobi
Flight Information Region). The second is to regulate the aviation industry
in Kenya. ln addition to this, KCAA offers training for aviation personnel
through the East African School of Aviation.
The mandate of the KCAA is essentially embedded in its functions/
responsibilities, which are enumerated in the Civil Aviation Act 2013, as
amended by the Civil Aviation (Amendment) Act 20'16. These functions
are:

a. Licensing of air services.
b. Provision of the air navigation services.
c. Establishment and maintenance of a system of aircraft registration

and the marking of civil aircraft;
d. Securing sound development of the civil aviation industry in Kenya;
e, Advising the Government on matters concerning civil aviation.
f. Co-ordination and direction of search and rescue services;
g. Facilitation and provision of all the necessary support for aircraft

accident and incident investigations conducted by the investigator-
in -c ha rge;

h. Carrying out investigations on incidents that are not classified as
accidents and serious incidents;

i. Safety, security, economic and technical regulation of civil aviation;j. Dealing with incidents of unlawful interference with aviation
security;

k. Certification of aircraft operators;
l. Enforcement of approved technical standards of aircraft;
m. Licensing and monitoring of aeronautical personnel;



n. Provision of technical services for the desrgn, installation, and
modification of electronic. radio and other equipment used in the
provrsion of air navigation servicesi

o. Ensuring the integrity of the systems, equipment and facilities of
the Aut hority:

p. lssuance and dissemination of the publications referred to in the
Act;

q. Production of accurate, timely, comprehensive and relevant air
transport information for planning and decision-making purposes;

r. Approval, certification and licensing of aircraft maintenance
organisations and regulation of aviation training institutions in
Kenya:

s. Establishment, management and operation of training institutions
for purposes of the Authority;

t. Registration of rights and interests in aircraft,
u. Planning, development and formulation of the airspace master plan

for the safe and efficient utilization of Kenyan airspace;
v. Establishment. co-ordination and maintenance of state aviation

safety and security programmes,
w. Lacensing, certification, registration and surveillance of aerodromes,
x. Certification and surveillance of air navigation service providers,
y. Licensing and certifrcation of regulated agents,
z. lmplementing and enforcing the provisions of the Act, regulations

and directives issued hereunder and treaties to which Kenya is a
party,

aa. Taking measures to minimize, to the extent possible, any disturbance
to the environment from noise, vibration, atmospheric pollution or
nay other cause attributable to the use of aircraft for the purpose
of c ivil aviation,

ab. Performing economic oversight of arr services, protecting consumer
rights, environment and ensuring fair trading practices,

ac. Giving effect to the Chicago Convention and other international
agreements relating to civil aviation to which Kenya is party to; and

ad. Performance of such other functions as may, from time to time, be
conferred on it by the Cabinet Secretary or by any other written
law.

KCAA carries out its functions in a manner consistent with the Chicago
Convention on lnternational Civil Aviation, Annexes to the Convention
relating to international Standards and Recommended Practices (SARPS)

and any amendment thereto or any other international conventions and
protocols relating to civil aviation that Kenya is a party to.

KCAA is also expected to pertorm any obligations required by any
agreement, treaty or arrangement between Kenya and any other country,
inter-Govern menta I organization or any other body with respect to the
safety, regularity and efficiency of air navigation and aviation safety and
secu rity in general.

The Act a lso stipu lates that, in the discharge of its responsibility for aviation
safety and security, the Authority should coordinate its activities with
other agencies of Government, including the Kenya Airports Authority,
the Department of Defence and the National Police Service.
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(c) Key Management

The Authority's day-to-day management is under the
following key organs:

- Director General
- Marlagement Team

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during
the financial year ended 30th June 2022 and who had
direct f iduciary responsibility were:

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements
Fiduclary oversight on the Authority's activities are carried out
by the following:

Finance and Human Capital Commit-
tee
This Committee is composed of five Directors of the Board
including the Director General. lts main function is to review
and monator the Authority's financial matters on behalf of the
Board, including review of the liquidity status, all the Authori-
ty's bank accounts, Budgets, Financial Statements and statuto-
ry reports as well as bank reconciliations. lt also ensures com-
plaance with the financial reporting requirements and proper
keeping of all the financial records of the Authority.

Audit, Risk and Governance Commit-
tee
This Committee is composed of four Directors of the Board
and Head of lnternal Audit and Review as its Secretary. lts
main function is to consider and make recommendations to
the Board all matters relating to lnternal and External Audits,
Risk Management and Governance inclusive of Performance
Contract reporting.

Director General Capt. Gilbert M. Kibe
(up to 22/4/2022)

2 Director General Mr. Emile N. Arao
(trom 23/4/2022)

3 Director Corporate Services CPA Joseph K

Chebungei

4 Corporation Secretary Mr. George Ombaso
Mogaka

5 Ag. Director Air Navigation
Services

1.4 r. Ephantus
Mainnah Kamau

6 Ag. Director Aviation Safety
Standard and Regulation

Mr. Nicholas N

Muhoya

7 Director East African School of
Aviation

Dr George K. M
M'Nchebere

No. Designation Name
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Fublic lnvestments Committee
This is a Parliamentary Committee that consists of a Chairman, Vice Chairman and not more that sixteen other
Members. The functions of the Committee are to examine the reports and accounts of public investments, to
examine the reports, if any, of the Auditor General on the public investments and to examine, in the context of
the autonomy and efficiency of the publac investments, whether the affairs of the public investments are being
managed in accordance with sound financial or businesi principles and prudent commercial practices.

(f) Headquarters
Aviation House
Jomo Kenyatta lnternational Airport
P. O. Box 30163
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

(g) Contacts
Telephone: (254) 20 682747O-5
Email: anfo@kcaa.or.ke
Website: wwwkcaa.or.ke

(h) Bankers
l{ational Bank of Kenya
Jomo Kenyatta lnternational Airport Branch
PO. Box 30763 - 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Commercial Bank of Africa
Swissport Branch Community
Jomo Kenyatta lnternational Airport
P O. Box 30437 - 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Stanbic Bank Kenya
lndustrial Area Branch
P. O. Box 30550 - 00100
Nairoba, Kenya

Xenya Commercial Bank
Jomo Kenyatta lnternational Airport Branch
P.O. Box 19065-00501
Nairobi, Kenya

(i) lndependent Auditors
Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P. O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

(i) Principal Legal Advisor
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P. O. Box 40112

City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Standard Chartered Bank
Kenyatta Avenue Branch
P O. Box 30001 - 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Equity Bank Ltd
Corporate Branch
P O. Box 75104
Nairobi, Kenya

Commercial Bank
Haile Selassie Avenue Branch
P O. Box 58992 - 00200
Nairobl, Kenya

CIBC Bank
l'155 Boul. Rene-Levesque, Ouest
Montreal, Quebec
H3B 324, Canada
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2.THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Eng. Joseph N. Nkadayo, MBS
(Chairman of the Board)

Date of Bhth: 1956

Key Oualifications: lvlsc. Highway Engineering, Bsc (Civil Englneering),
Registered/Licenced Consu ting Enqineer (EBK), f4lEK

Work Experience: Over 30 years' experience in Public and Private Sector
in Deve opment, Des gn, Procurement, lmplementation, f,laintenance and
l',lanagement of Projects, Staff Recruitment, P acement, Train ng, Performance
Based - Contracting and Job Evaluat on.

Director General / Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Kenya Urban Roads Authority
(KURA) from lst December 2008 to 30th November 2014. Secretary to Board
of Directors (KURA). Manaqing Director (Sunton Ltd), MD & Senior Partner
(Sungate Ltd), Senior Pr ncrpal Superintendrng Engineer-P anning (Ministry of
Roads and Publlc Works), Princrpal Superintending Engineer-Planning, Principa
Supenntending Engineer-Planning & Technical Admnistration, Principal
Superintending Engineer-Technical Administration, Princ pa Superintending
Engineer-Maintenance, Chief Superintendrng Engineer-l\4aintenance, Chief
Superintending Engrneer-Trunk Roads, Chief Supenntend ng EngineerTechnrcal
Administration, Chief Superintending Engrneer-Design, Superintending Engineer,
Design Eng neer (Ministry of Transport and Aerodromes).

Extensive knowledge and experience in Donor fund ng and procurement
procedures of varous Multilatera and Brlateral Agencies including the World
Bank, African Deve opment Bank (AfDB), European Union, Japanese nternational
Co-operat on Aqency (J CA), among others.

Represented the Kenya Government in regional bodies, which ncluded, East

Africa Community, New Partnership for Af rica's Development (NEPAD), Common
Market for Eastern and Southern Africa (COMESA) among others. Registrar of
Engineers Reqistration Board of Kenva for Seven vears (1994-2001.

He was re-appointed to the Board with effect from 7th August 2O2O and rs the
Chair of the Board.

Director's Date of Birth, Key Qualifications and
work Experience

Director's Name
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Date ol Blrth: 1958

Key Oualificatlons: First Class Honours degree in Electrical Engineering, Master
of Business Administration with a malor in strategic management and a Doctor
of Philosophy (PhD) n Strateg c IVanagement, all from the Un versity of Nairobi.
Chartered Electrca Eng neer; a member of the nstitutlon of Engineering and
Technology, UK, a Registered Consulting Engineer, a Fellow of the lnst tution of
Eng neers of Kenyai member of nstitute of Directors, Kenya, and tra ner in Cor-
porate Governance.

Wotk Expe ence3 Principa Secretary State Department for Transport in the Min
istry of Transport, nfrastructure, Housing, Urban Development and Publ c Works

He Joined Kenya Power in 1980 and rose through the ranks to become the
wanag ng Director from June 2007 up to June 2013 when he was appointed the
Pr ncrpal Secretary, Ministry of Energy and Petroleum. He was later transferred rn
the same capacity to the State Department for Energy in December 2015.
Dr. Eng. Joseph K. Njoroge has a wide exper ence in Leadership and lVanagement
at po icy, business and operat ona levels ga ned while working at Energy and
Petroleum publrc serv ce delivery initiatives. As a result of demonstrated record
of Pub c Service and effective role n Nationa Development, Dr. Eng. Joseph K.

Njoroge has earned the Presidential Honour awards of Moran of the Order of the
Burning Spear (l"1BS) in 2009 and Ch ef of the Order of the Burning Spear (CBS)
in 2015.

He serves as a Board member with effect From 29th September 2021 in his
capacity as the Principa Secretary, State Department for Transport.

Dr. Eng. Joseph K. Njoroge,
CBS
(Board Member)

Director's Date of Birth, Key Oualifications and
work Experience

Director's Name

Dr Julius M. Muia, PhD, CBS
(Board Member)

Date of Birth: 1960

Key Ouallflcatlons: B Com. (First Class Honours) Degree in Account ng from
the University of Nairobi, Masters Degree and PhD in Finance from the same
university, Certified Public Accountant (CPA-K), Certifled Public Secretary
(CPS-K), Assocrate Kenya lnst tute of Bankers, Associate Chartered nstrtute of
Arbitrators, and Certrfied Coach.

Wo?k Expetlence: Pr ncipal Secretary at The National Treasury, Principal
Secretary at the State Department for Pannng - The Natona Treasury and
Planning. Drector General, Vson 2030 Deivery Secretarat, OfFice of the
President. Th s is Kenya's ong-term policy framework that s prem sed on making
Kenya a globally competitive, rapidly industrializing and upper midd e-income
economy by 2030, Between Apnl 2OO8 and October 2016. Dr. Muia served as the
Secretary, Nat ona Econom c and Social

Counci , Office of the Presrdent. This is a top advrsory government think tank
whose f agship prolect was formulat nq Vision 2030.

He has over 25 years' experience in eadersh p in the private sector in Kenya
and UK. He started his career as an auditor w th Pricewaterhousecoopers n

mid-1980's, and later worked as Head of Frnance and Company Secretary in the
hotel, manufacturing and banking sector. H s other engagements include an
adjunct faculty at Strathmore Bus ness School; adviser on strategy and trainer
on eadership. He serves as a non-executive board member in several compan es
and a number of not-for profii organizations.

He serves as a Board member with effect from 24th JuLy 2019 rn h s capacity as
the Pflnc pal Secretary to The Nationa Treasury.

vll
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Date of Blrth: 29th July 1967

Key Oualiticatlons: Doctorate in [4echanical Engineering from the Unrversity
of Cape Town, South Africa, Master of Science (MSc) degree in l\.lechanical
Engineering and a Bachelor of Sc ence (BSc) in Mechan cal Eng neering.

WoIk Expedence: I r t , r ',*, rei ]r,r'.: r',i ', fi,rl'r ,'rl 1,i'r:,,' ,r 'r", t'l r 1r,,, I

,,lpl rr Lri rir,l, rl rrr,lll,".l.t f ri ,.,'rriI Jrl llF:,rlr,, , ir ,ir rllTr,it'
' ,,.,r ,,,i1:. ll -l,r I i,j,i,,,,f rr", ltt,-f.l . , 

, 1 r 
,,, t ' r t l 

. r r t-. I r lil.:r ,,.,i,r,Pil
', lrL r).r ,r r,,i I,ll ,r'\, '[],,1r, ,'\11.fl,

'1,' r', l.r I r t r ,., t. llil,t ',1 lr,llti, ', tlltltLi | ,I| ,1 ]iritlr li,rl ,/ijlt l

lr ,,', .r,1 .r.1' tlrr* tr ,l-., lr , r1ir t-l. ,,iilt !llir,r1 lrL,:,r:ir\,t.r j:: - I r",,1
,jr,l.,a,'rr' ,- lrrjr r'j,r |,t,rrl|r,|l ri l,',, i, tl|,ll (,r III[, L.]:, ,'I!i l

r' , ir , ) . ' ,r, ., j , i . I r |ri, I t', I ,rr1,,rl l:r[, ],1 t,tr,r \,r it lif |ir l:'l.f
I,,r"i.lr .,,r l,,Lri Tp,,r,, l,i ir, e ,1 rlt ,,, rllr/\ll Ill Lr1l Il ll|p.I'i.r rl

l ,:, ,.ir., ,, ,rl I lrrl,T ill
Dr (Eng.) Karanja Kibicho, CBS

(Board Member) ll, ,r r",, r. rlri rr ll*rrrl 'lr ,r,rl' r', ll' ['r .i] 'r, rpT i,,, llr 'lrir
rr,r :lr'ir,,r I I lr,.r,r

Director's Date of Birth, Key Oualifications and
Work Experience

Director's Name

Data ol Birth: lst F€bluary 1975

Xey Oualiflcations: ATPL, CPL & Diploma in Aviation Management

Work Experlence: Captain, Boeing 737 700/800-Kenya Airways, Captain,
Embraer 170/190-Kenya Airways, Captain, Saab 3408-Kenya Airways, First
Officer. Saab 3408-Kenya A rways, First Officer, Beech Kinq Air 200-UNCAS

He was re-apporntment to the Board with effect from 24th January 2020. He is
an independent member of the Board, Chair of the Audit, Risk and Governance
Committee of the Board and member of the East African School of Aviation
Committee of the Board.

Capt. Kiki Christopher Onyonka
(Board Member)

Ms Carole Ayugi
(Board I,4ember)

Date ol Eirthr 2oth January 1977

Key Oualifications: LLB(Hons)

Work Experlence3 Stronq background in commercra and corporate field
with focus on retrrement benefits, real estate, ntel ectua property, mediation
and arbitration. Managng Partner MMAN Advocates, Head of Department,
Employment & Pension and lntell€ctua Property MMAN Advocates, Partner,
Commercial Department, MMAN Advocates, Aq Ch ef Leqal Off cer / Company
Secretary, Pan Africa Group of Companies, Associate, Conveyancing & Commercral
Department Mboya Advocates.

She was re-appointed to the Board with effect from 6th October 2021and she
s an independent member of the Board, Charr of the East AFr can School of
Aviation Committee of the Board and member of the L censing of A r Services
and Techn cal Committee of the Board.

vll I
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Date of Blrth:18th l"larch 1956

Key Oualificatlons: Dip oma in Aircraft l.4aintenance Technology at Hindustan
lnstitute of Engineering Technology, f,1adras, lnd a. Aircraft l"laintenance
Engineers License awarded by DCAA (now KCAA) in 1982. Aircraft lvlarntenance

Engineers License awarded by Tanzan a Civil Aviation Author ty. Private P ot's
License awarded by DCAA (now KCAA) in 1992.

Work Experience: Drrector of Qua ty Assurance - Air Direct Connect Ltdt

Director of Qua ity Assurance - DAC Avrat on Ltd, Chairman of Castle Academy
Board - Cast e Academy Ltd; Quality Manager - Phoenix Aviation Ltdt Director
of Maintenance - Air Traffic Ltd, Quality control l.4anager- Phoen x Av ation Ltd,

Quality l.4anager - Everett Av ation Ltd, Chief Engineer- Transworld Safaris Ltd,

Quality control Manager- CI"1C Aviat on Ltd; Chief Engineer - Transworld Safaris

Ltd; Learner Engrneer/hangar supervisor - CM Aviation Ltd.

He has attended several manufacturer's courses specific to aircraft types at the
factory/ approved training facility as we as atte nded several q ua lity ma nagement
trainings. He was a member of a selected Aeronautical Society Committee to
part cipate in the formulation of the Kenya Civil Av at on Regulations 2007 le
coordinated Socrety members wrth various Technical institutions and schools to
promote Aviation. Participated rn negotiations to estab ish affiliation with Roya

Aeronaut ca Society which resulted n the Society bring ng in to Kenya captains
of industnes, senlor test pilots and engineers from Brit sh aerospace to de iver
talks and seminars to Society members, students and aviators.

He was appointed to the Board w th effect from 6th October 202'1. He is an
independent member of the Board and a member of the Audit, Risks and
Governance Commrttee of the Board and East Afrcan Schoo of Aviatron
Committee of the Board.

Mr. David Njathi
(Board I'lember)

Director's Date of Birth, Key Oualifications and
work Experience

Director's Name

DalG of Birth: 28th October 1965

Key Oualllication: Enrolled 2016, BA (Hons) Bus ness Management Un versity of
Lincoln-UK, Diploma in Business and Professional Administration 2015- The City
of Guilds of London lnstitute, Convers on (PPL, CPL, Multi/ R) Spartan School of
Aeronautics (Tulsa USA)

Wo* Expelienco: Managlng Director- Airside Solutions L m ted, lVanaging
Director/ Accountable Manager- Flex A r Charters, Director and Chairman
of Technical Comm ttee- Kenya A rports Authority, Air crew- World Food
Programme (Sudan), Air crew- East African Safari A r, A r crew- Eagle Aviat on,
Air crew- Kenya Air Force (flying wing)
He was appointed to the Board with effect from 6th October 2021. He s an

independent member of the Board and Charr of Licensing of Air Services and
lechnrcal Comm,Ltee oi the Board

Capt. Bootsy Mutiso
(Board l\4ember)
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Eng, Luke K. Kittony, DSM
(Board l"lember)

Date of Biith3 l4th September 1956

Key Oualificationsi f"laster of Business Administration, Aviation Option, t'4oi

University, Lrcensed Aircraft Maintenance Engineer (AMEL) - KCAA, Type Rating
on Large, lVedium and Smal body Aircraftt Drploma Aeronautical Eng neenng,
City and Guilds, London; Member nternationa nst tute of Directors (lOD)- Kenya.

Work Experlence: Deputy Executive D rector - Technical at the East Africa
Community (EAC) C vil Av ation Safety and Security Oversight Aqency (CASSOA),

Director Aviation Safety and Security Regulation KCAA, Chief lnspector and
Technrcal Manager Eagle Aviat on. Principal Engineer Ouality Systems at Kenya
Airways, Warrant Officer in Charge F5 Marntenance, Kenya Air Force. Also served
as a Director, Agricultural Finance Corporation (AFC) and as Charrman Board of
Governors - l"loiben Techn ca and Vocational Colleoe.

He was appornted to the Board with effect from lgth January 2022. He is an
ndependent member of the Board, Cha r Finance and Human Capital Committee
of the Board and member of Licensing of A r Services and Technical Committee
of the Board.

Director's Date of Birth, Key Oualifications and
Work Experience

Director's Name

Date ot Blrth: l3th January 1965

Key Oualifications: MBA (Aviat on Option) Mo University, KCAA CPt (Fliqht
lnstructor Rating, lnstrument Rating, Mu ti-Engine Piston & Twin Turbine Rat ng),
American FAA CPt (S nq e & Multi-Engrne and lnstrument Rating)

Work Expetience: He was re-appointed as the DG KCAA on 23rd April 2019,
KCAA Board Member (2003-2009); KCAA Chairman Av ation Secur ty Committee
(2003-2005); KCAA Chairman HR Commrttee oF the Board (2005-2009): CEO
Nairobi Flight Training LTD (2007-May 2015), Board Chalrman Aero Kenya
(1997-2008); D rector Marketrng Air Ltd Uqanda (1994-2015), Board Chairman &
Director Marketing & Sales- Eag e Air Uganda Ltd C9861997)

bert l'4ac ana
(Director General - up to 22nd

April 2022)

a

r. Em e Nguza rao
(Director General - from 23

April 2022)

Date of BhthlTth Ap.ll 1978

Key Oualifications: Masters rn Business Administration, Embry Riddle
Aeronaut cal Unrversity,2O04; Bachelor of Science in Aircraft Eng neenng
Techno ogy, Embry R ddle Aeronautical Un versity, 2002; Certif cate in Electrical
Englneering,1998

Wotk Experlence: DG KCAA with effect from 23rd Apr ) 2022. He served as the
Executive Director-EAC CASSOA, Deputy D rector-EAC CASSOA, D rector/ Lead
Avaton Consultant- Pine Group Ltd, Aviation Business Strategy, Safety and
Operations Consultant Skyward Express, A rline Pilot Contractor- Air Tec Africa/
Air Libya, Director of Safety/Project Certification f4anager- OneJetOne Airways
Kenya Ltd, Qualrty Manger/Pilot- Safari nk Aviation, F ight safety offcer/Pilot-
East African Safari Arr Express, A rworth ness lnspector-KcAA, Program System
Analyst, Dean Fellow/Graduate Assistant, Aircraft Mechanic, Apprentice/A rcraft
Mechanrc
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Dato ol Blrth: lSth December,lg7l

Key Ouatlflcatlons: MBA (Strategic Management) - Maseno University and LLB -

Nagpur Un versity. Post Graduate Diploma in Law - Kenya School of Law, Advocate
of the High Court of Kenya, Commissioner for Oaths and Certified Secretary of
Kenya. Lead Aud tor (QMS) and Certif ed Trustee (Pension Schemes). Member of
the Law Society of Kenya and lnstitute of Certified Secretaries of Kenya.

Work Experlenco: Has over twenty-three (23) years post qualification work
experience. Has previouslv worked at National Oil Corporation of Kenya, Kenya

Sugar Research Foundation, Kenya Revenue Authority and Kenya Plant Health
lnspectorate Service prior to joining Kenya Civil Av at on Authority on 16th June,
2020.

Mr. George Ombaso Moga/ (CorporationSecretary)

Director's Date of Birth, Key Qualifications and
Work Experience

Director's Name
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3. THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Capt. Gilbert l',1. Kibe
(Director General - up to 22

Aptil 2022)

Key Ouallflcations: MBA (Aviation Option) Moi University, KCAA CPL
(Flrght lnstructor Rating, Instrument Rating, Multi-Engine Plston & Twin
Turbine Rating), American FAA CPL (Sing le & I"lulti-Eng ne and Instrument
Rating).

lrlain Area of Responsibillty: Overall Coordination and Direction of the
Air Navigation Service Provisron, Regulation of the Civil Aviation Industry,
and Training of the Aviation Personnel in the Country.

Key Qualifications & Main Aiea of ResponsibilityName

o
Key Oualifications: lvlasters in Business Administration, Embry Riddle
Aeronautical Un iversity,20O4; Bachelor of Science in Arrcraft Engineering
Technology, Embry Riddle Aeronautical University, 2OO2; Certificate in

Electrica I Engineering, 1998

l.lain Area of Re3pomiblllty: Overall Coordinatlon and Direction of the
Air Navigation Service Provision, Regulation of the C vil Aviation lndustry,
and Training of the Aviatlon Personnel in the Country.

Mr. Emile guza rao
(Director General - from 23

Aptil 2022)

l(ey Oualifications: MBA (Strategic Management) - Maseno Universlty and LLB -

Nagpur University. Post Graduate Drploma in Law Kenya School of Law, Advocate
of the High Court of Kenya, Commissioner for Oaths and Certified Secretary of
Kenya. Lead Auditor (QMS) and Certified Trustee (Pension Schemes). Member of
the Law Society of Kenya and lnstitute of Certified Secretaries of Kenya.

l'laln Alea of Rcsponsibillty: Plannrng, organrzrng, lead ng and contro ling
prov sron ot Board Secretarial and Legal Servrces rn the Authority

Mr. George Ombaso Mogaka
(Corporation Secretary)
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Key Oualiflcatlon: Bachelor of Arts (Econ) from the University of Nairobi
and an 14BA from f4o University, CPA-K holder and is a member of ICPAK.

Haln Ar€a of Responslblllty: Coordrnate and direct the Corporate
Services function of the Authority.

CPA Joseph C. Kiptoo
(Director Corporate Services)

Key Ouatificatlons: l'4asters of Science (l.4Sc) ln Aviation Safety from
Florida lnstitute of Technology, Masters of Business Administration
(EMBA) in Aviation Management from Moi Unrversity, Bachelor of
Science (BSc) from Unrversity of Nairobi, Bachelor of Science (BSc) in

Avration lvlanagement from Universrty of Dubuque-lowa, USA, Htgher
National Diploma in Electr cal and Electronic Engineering from Kenya
Polytechnic, Licensed Aircraft Maintenance Engineer (At'4EL), Certificate
in Arr Transport Business and Economics from University of Antwerp
and lnternational Negotiation Skills (lATA, Singapore). A member of the
Aeronautical Society of Kenya.

ilaln Area of Responsibility: Management and Coordinatlon of the
regulation function of the Authority.Nicholas Muhoya Ngatia

(Ag. Director, Aviation Safety,
Security and Regulation)

Key ouallflcatlons:
Bachelor of Science Degree, Aircraft Acc dent lnvestigatron Techniques and
Management, Aerodrome Control Ratrng, Approach Control Rating, Approach
Radar Control Ratrng, Area/Arrways Control Ratrng, Area Radar Controi Rat ng,
Advanced Certifrcate of Education. Certrfrcate of Educatron.

italn Area of Responslblllty: PLannrng and Contro of Operations of Arr

Nav qation Services

Mr. Ephantus Mainnah Kamau
(Ag. Director, Air Navigation

Services)
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Key Oualifications & Main Area of ResponsibilityName

Xoy Ouallllcatlons: PhD (Strategic Management), MBA (Strategic
Management) and Bcom. (UON), a full member of lvlarketing society of
Kenya (MSK) and Kenya lnstitute of f4anagement (KlM).

lrlaln Area of RosDonslblllty: Management and Coordination of the
Training l"landate of the Authority (EASA).

Dr. George K. M. M'Nchebere
(Director East African School of

Aviation)
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4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
am pleased to present the Kenya Civil Av ation
Authority's Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the Financral Year 2021/2022 The
Authority p ays a cr trca role in promot ng the

2022 and 5.2 percent on averaqe in 2023-2024. Ihis
growth rate, whi e st ll strong, w ll be a moderation
followrng a remarkab e recovery n 2021 from the
worst economic effects of the pandemlc. The impact
of the war in Ukrarne rs werghing on the global

econorn c recovery from the pandemic. Domestical y,

a key r sk to the outlook is a further worsening of the
current drought, which is having a devastatrng effect
on food secur ty and livel hoods in affected parts

of the country and rs necess tat ng increased socral

spend ng on food assrstance

l'4acroeconomic data on recent estimates of demand
shocks shows that traffc forecast wrll return to
2019 levels in 2aB/2024 at low growth rate of 3.6%

compared to 4.2o/o before Covldl9 based on ICAO
globa forecast. The global frelght traffic is expected
to rema n at a growth rate of 3.5% s milar to the
pre Covid-]g eve. W th the imp ementation of the
Covid-19 containment measures, the av ation ndustry
is on a recovery path and s expected to rema n on
an upward trend. Dur ng 20/. global schedu ed
passengers ncreased to 2 3 billon from the lowest
evels of 1.8 brllion achreved dur ng 2O2O. Passenger
traffc n Kenya recorded a growth rate of 98.8
percent in 2021/2022 compared to the prevrous year,

Cargo traffic recorded a growth rate of 6.4 percent

compared to the lasl year, wh le aircraft movements
recorded 44.4 percent growth th s year compared to
the previous f nanc al year.

The Authorrty enhanced the evels of civ I av atron
overs ght to encourage growth of the industry,
undertook survei lance of the ndustry for comp|ance
and assurance oF safety to consumers in the wake oF

the COVID l9 pandemic. ln additron, investments were
also undertaken n infrastructure, equipment and
facllities to improve a r nav qat on services and avration
training. Thls has helped increase the contribution
of the civ I aviatron sector to the economy. lndeed,
contflbutron to the Gross Domestrc Product recorded
0.5 percent tn 2021 from 0.4 per cent in 2021. Wrth
continued growth of the rndustry, the contnbulion
of civr av ation to the GDP is expected to nse rn the
coming years

As a signatory to the Convention on Civ I Aviation
which established the lnternatona Civil Aviation
Organ zation (ICAO) and a legal framework for
regulatrng international crvr avrat on and air transport,

growth of the cvil avration lndustry in Kenya and
continued to work together with the Government to
rev ve the industry following the devastatrng effects
of Covtdjg. The air transport industrys economrc
act v ty remained depressed, due to the uncertainty
of the Cov dl9 Pandem c, which created ex stent al

challenges and focus was done on remodei ing the
avratron business to make it ft for the new post

COVID world. t have been most rmpressed by the way
our stakeho ders and KCAA teams have evolved and
worked together to ensure that the rndustry adapts
to the s.tuat o^ and contrnJes [o exoerience.ecovery
ln particu ar, the settl ng into the virtua way of
worknq, has where aporopriate, ensured continued
provis on of services without comprom s ng on the
qua ity of services and responsiveness to the needs

of our cl ents.

Air transport is a key cause and facr itator of econorn c
growth rn Kenya by enabllng the country's integration
into the global economy, provlding direct beneFrts
ior users and wider economic benefits through
its posit ve mpact on productivity and economrc
performance. The global economy is estimated to
have grown by 5.9 percent n 2421 from a contraction
of negative 3.1 percent in 2020. Thrs was ma n y due
to the ongo n9 recovery from Cov d-19 Pandem c
wh ch had significantly constrarned economrc
actrvrtres. Global qrowth rs projected to grow at 4.4
percent rn 2022 ref ec\ng expectatrons of a vaccrne-
powered strengthenrng of actvrty and addtional
oolrcv support in a few larqe economres.

Economic growth n Kenya recorded 75 per cent n

2021 compared to a negative growth rate of 0.3 per

cent in 2020 ma n y due to the COVID l9 pandemrc.

The performance in other East Afr can Commun ty
(EAC) countfles dur ng 2021 contrnued to record
positrve growth rate. Rwanda recorded 5.1 per cent
growth, Tanzania 4.0 per cent growth, Uganda 4 7 per

cent and Burundi 1.6 per cent. The overall growlh rate
for EAC countries was 4 9 percent in 2021 indrcating
a positlve growth from 1 percent in 2020.
Accord ng to the World Bank Economic report
released in .)une 2022. Kenya's rea gross domest c
product (GDP) is projected to grow by 5.5 percent rn
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Kenya is obligated to admrnrster aviation safety
and security n line with the ICAO Standards and
Recommended Practices. The Authority rs therefore,
guided n all its activit es by ICAO SARPs to prov de
effective oversight of the industry. Among the key
requirements is the establishment of an aopropriate
legal framework to govern the industry and the
Authority during the year started a process aimed
at developing a new Civil Aviation Act by merging
the Civil Aviation Act No. 2l of 2013 and the C v I

Avration (Amendment) Act No.42 of 2016 as well as
ncorporating new emerging ssues. The Authority

also continued to mplement Corrective Action Plans
arsrng from the ICAO Unversal Safety Oversight
Audit (USOAP) conducted in July 2018.

ICAO conducted an audrt on Kenya under Unrversal
Security Audit Programme (USAP) from l6th to 27th
Vay 2022, in which Kenya attained a evel of Effective
lmplementation (El) af 91.17'/" on average of the
eight Critical Elements (CE) of an Aviation Security
Oversight System. This was an improvement from the
level of E of 8870 that was recorded from 2Ol5 USAP
audit. Currently, the global score on the average
Effective lmplementation (El) of Cr tical Elements
(CEs) stands at 11.864/. with an African average of
61.90% and the Eastern and Southern Afncan (ESAF)
reqion at 65.61%. Kenya s now ranked second in Afr ca

and has now already attained the target set by ICAO

of achieving a score of 90% by 2030.

Durinq the Financial Year 2021/22, lne Board
successfully implemented the lSth Performance
Contract and achieved an overa limplementatron level
of 86.05%. The Authority completed implementation
of the third Strategic Plan that covered the period

2O17Ag - 2021/2022 and which was aligned to the MTP
lll and the Bg Four Agenda whch was introduced
by the Government after the general elections of
2017. The th rd plan focused on the key issues of
aviation safety and security and the implementatlon
of corrective acton plans arising from the ICAO

safety audrt conducted durng the second strategic
plan perod. Emerging areas of focus dunng the
period were issues related to the environment and
specifically the Carbon Offsetting Reduction Scheme
for lnternational Avration (CORSIA), consumer
protection and increased operat on of the Unmanned
Aircraft Systerns (UAS). Ihe Board also, prepared the
fourth strategic plan that will run from financial year
2022/2023 to 2027/2028 during the year.

Kenya chose to reta n an office in l'4ontreal following
the end of Kenya's term at the ICAO Council, in

order to posit on itself at the global evel. Through
the appointment of a representat ve to ICAO, Kenya
airs at rrrprov ng tts c v I avrarton sysiem ano also
enhancing its participatron, influence and contribution
to g obal aviation. During the yea( the representative
continued to actively participate in ICAO activrtres
and to contribute to the strategrc directron of global
aviat on.

The Authority wil endeavour to meet and exceed
the expectations of ts clients by working together
as a team to ensure that standards are implemented
and maintained at al levels. ln doing so, KCAA will
contrnue to be guided by the ICAO requirements and
qlobal best practrces. The KCAA

management and staf f shall remain pivotal in ensuring
that the organisational mandate s implemented and
the ndustry expanded at both local and international
levels to contribute to the growth of the economy and
provide socio-economic benefits to the cit zens.

Three new members loined the KCAA Board following
the end of term for the previous members during the
last financial year. We welcome Mr. David Njathr, Capt.
Bootsy Mutiso and Eng. Luke K. Kittony to the Board.
The Author ty aiso recrurted l'4r. Emile N Arao as the
new Director Genera to take over from Capt. Gi bert
M. Kibe whose term ended after serving the Authority
for seven years. We welcome N4 r. Arao to KCAA as we
thank Capt. K be for his distinguished service to the
Authority and wish him well in his future endeavours.

ln conclusion, I wish to express my sincere gratrtude
to the KCAA Board, l"lanagement and our hard
working staff for their excellent work, dedication,
and commitment desp te the effects and challenges
brought about by the Cov d-19 pandemic. I wish to
thank all the stakeholders for their support durinq the
ear and call for the same support in the next financialv

year

Mr. Brown ego, M

Chairman, Boa?d of Dlrectors
Kenya Civil Aviation Authority
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5. REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL
i rvr av ai o-' rs d cnt cdl cd:dlyit 'or qlobal

A and ndt olal deve op.-]crt. Arr trarspo'l
I ^ rn Kenyd e\perelceo a srro..g recovery rn

Yq'o*," olrrrrg Irte yed', tror --e erte.Ts or
the Coronavirus (Cov dl9) pandem c. The industry
has continued to regain growth stead ly albeit from
Covrd-19 Pandem c. The recovery pace has improved
due to rncreased vaccination of peoole worldwide and in
Kenya. The Author ty deve oped protocols and ensured
compliance by air operators for the resumption of arr

transporl operations for passengers during the year.

Add tronally, the Authority dlso cont nued to monitor
operations to ensure adherence to the protocols and
to support the stakeho ders to make the right choices
to sustain their businesses.

The overai performance during the year was positive
growth rn passenger traffrc by 98.8%% to reach 8.893
million passengers tn FY 2021/2022 compared w lh
4.474 mi lion the previous f nancial year AircraFt

movements increased l:y 44.4% from 2a7,924 tn

2020/2021 to 300,234 tn 2021/2022. Freisht traFtc
increased by 6.4o/o from 357,180 tonnes n 2A20/2021
to 380,157 tonnes in 2A2l/2O22. The number of
aircraft registered in Kenya ncreased by 1.5% to reach
1,624 arcraf I n 2O21/2a22 f rom 1,600 Aircraft n the
2O2O /2021 f inancia1 year.

Kenya marntains high levels of aviation safety and
secuflty as evrdenced by the results of both the ICAO
aud ls and the continuous monitoring framework.
Current y, the country retains the FAA ]ASA Category
I status granted on 23rd February 2017 and cont nues

to operate direct fl ghts into the USA market The
Authoflty rema ns committed to ensur ng that the
garns made from thrs initialve are marntaned and
expanded to create more ooportuntties for business
between the two countries This wrl be achieved by
ensur n9 that Kenya cont nues to work wlth the FAA to
mprove and sustain a safe c vrl avration environment
through mp ementation of correcIive actions that
arise from their mssons and any other dentfed
appropr ate m tiqat on measures

The Author ty wil continue to work wrth other states
in Afnca lo rmplement the Framework for opening up
of air spaces to enab e full exploilation of the Afrrcan
market by mainly Afr can a r operators. To ach eve this,
KCAA w lcontinue to lobby for the rmp ementat on oF

the Srngle African Air Transport l'larket (SAATM) and
for more states on the conl nent lo jo n the initiative.
At the EAC level, KCAA w I contrnue to work w th the
other countries to open up the regional market and
create opportunit es For growth. Al the same time, the
Authority continues to promote the ocal air ines to

explo t the opportunities for market access negot ated
under the current framework of Bi ateral Air Services
Agreements.

The rmplementat on of the 201718 - 2021/22 Strategic
Plan continued dur ng the year with focus being
the actrvilies of the 5th year of the Plan Using the
Performance Contract (PC) concept that commats stafF

to rmplement their work plans drawn f rom the Strateg c
P an, largets were ncorporated rn the PCs for the year

and imp emented. lmp ementation of the PC this year

enab ed the Authority to undertake projects to set
up systems to ensure equ ty in the del very of publlc
servrces and the adaptabi ty of pub ic serv ces to the
needs of the users. The Author ty also worked towards
ensuring profess onalism and ethrcs rn service delivery.
The PC for F nancial Year 2021/22 was successFully
rmO ernented, and the Fina performance report
submitled to lhe Government. Out oF the 43 targets in
the Performance Contract, the Author ty achieved 37

oF them which trans ates to 86.05% ach evement leve.
Performance dur ng the year was affected by delayed
approval of the budget and procurement processes.

Durrng the year the Authority developed the fourth
Strategrc Plan that w ll run from financial year

2022/2023 to 2027i2O28. The rn tratives contarned
n the Strateg c Plan are armed at improv ng the level

oF compliance wth ICAO requirements by enhancing
the capac ty to prov de overs ght serv ces through
mproved regulatory framework, increased number of
skil ed staff and automation of the regulatory serv ces.

The Authority w ll also ensure eFfective coordrnatron
and implementat on of the State Safety and Security
programmes as we I as the Safety and Security
Plans. The Authority also ntends to improve ihe
rmplementation of corrective actrons arisrng From the
safety and security aud ts and miss ons.

The Authorty supported the 'Big Four" in tiatve of
rmprovrng market access by conducting inspections
rn Kenya s main airports to ensure compliance with
regulalrons for safe operat on of aircraft and facil tation
of passengers and cargo. ln health care, the Authority
conlnued to pay a crlcal roe in support of the
Universal Health Care Programme by faci itat ng
medica emergency flights and special fl ghts that were
operated during the year to evacuate people from one
country to another follow ng the outbreak of Covrd l9
Pandemrc.

KCAA recogn ses the need to have a regulatory system
that the industry has trust in as lt he ps wln co-operation
and voluntary compliance. At the same time effort to
rrnprove technical capacity continued during the year
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by recruiting more inspectors and conducting trainings
for aviation safety and security inspectors locally and
abroad. Well trained staff will act professionally and
consistently whrle undertaking their dutles. A total of
579 employees were trained during the period. Safety
and security inspectorate staff continued to undertake
certifications, approvals and other activities to ensure
compliance by the air operators. The air operators have
also continued to play their role to enable the country
to achieve hagh levels of compliance. f4ajority of the air
operators have already successfully undergone the re-
certification process and KCAA urges the rest to make
effort and undergo through the process.

To mprove the regulatory framework, the Authorty
started developing a new Civil Aviation Bill that will
be progressed during the next financial year, finalised
and a new prlmary act promulgated. The new legal
framework will be expected to provide an appropriate
environment for the provision of oversight servrces and
growth of the industry in Kenya. During the year KCAA
in consultation with the stakeholders completed the
review of 30 sets of regulations and submitted them for
approval by the Government. A process to develop six
new regulations was also started during the year. These
six regulations are on the following areas; Aerial Works-
Agricultural Operatrons; Aerial Work- Operations;
Aircraft Noise: Dangerous Goods; Consumer Protection
and Aircraft Emissions. ln addition. drafts were also
developed for regulations on. Arr Ambulance and Hot
Air Balloons operations.

ln order to enhance avlation safety in the region. KCAA
completed the construction of the Regional Centre
for Aviation Medicine (CAl'.1) building at a cost of Ksh.

222.4 millian and was handed over by the Contractor
on 28th June 2022. The Centre will provide a facility for
coordinat on of aviation medicine issues for personnel
in the industry within the East African Community.
The equipping and furnishing of the Centre started
during the year and is expected to be completed and
operations started during the next financial year.

To rmprove air navigation capacity and safety, the
Authorlty focussed on increasing investments rn

equipment and systems and ensuring that timely and
proper ma ntenance was carried out as required. The
modernrsation of equipment continued during the
year n line with the KCAA Strateg c Plan, Kenya's Air
Navigation lvlaster Plan and the Global Air Navigatron
Plan. Among the proiects

student welfare. At the same time the East African
School of Aviation (EASA) continued with the provision
of aviation training during the year adhering to the
government protocols on COVID-]g. EASA embarked
on the development of content for delivery oF virtual
courses amidst the COVID]9 pandemic and this helped
in continuity of trainings. As a result of the various
initiatives. the number of students trained at EASA
grew from 2,050 in 2O2O/21 to 2,557 in 2021/22 a

Orowth ot 24.7o/o.

The Authority continued to recruit, train and to
place staff at the appropriate levels of the existing
organisational structure. The placement process

was aimed at ensuring that all required skills were in
place in the var ous Departments. At the same time,
the Authority received approval from Government of
a new organisational slructure that will cater for the
emerging needs attributed to the expansion of the
industry. The future focus will be on implementing
the recently approved organisational structure and
institutionalizing a culture of accountability, excellence,
farrness teamwork, integrity, honesty, transparency and
promotion of values and principles of the public service
in the delivery of services. This will help enhance
capaclty and achieve a transformation in the del very
oF services to effectively Focus on the needs oF the
stakeholders.

Financial stability is critical and the Authority will pursue

initiatives aimed at increasing revenue while at the
same time implementing financial austerity measures.
Additronally, appropriate systems for managing the
supply chain, improvrng quality, mitigatlng risks
and improving project management process will be
implemented. The Author ty will pursue new initiatives
lo enhance corporate image and reputation, promote
the rights of consumers of aviation services and ensure
compliance with requirements for environmental
orotection.

ln conclusion, lappreciate the Staff and Management
for their contributions towards the tremendous
achievements during the year. lalso wish to express
my gratrtude to the Authority's Board of Drrectors for
their excellent stewardship which enabled us realise
excellent results and stakeholders for their continued
support. llook forward to even a better performance
durinq lF,e 2022/2023 financial year.

rmplemented were a new Air Traffic l"lanagement
system at JKIA and refurbishment of the electrical
wiring and cabling at JKIA, Mua Hills, Stoni Athi and
Ngong. Air traffic management was also improved
by implement ng operational and coord nation
procedures.

To improve aviation training services, the Authority
focussed on increasing investments in trarning

Emlle N, Arao
Dlrector General

equipment and improving the quality oF training



6. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE OF KENYA CIVIL
AVIATION AUTHORITY AGAINST PREDETERMINED
oBJECTTVES FOR THE FTNANCTAL YEAR 2021/2022
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perf orrr.rnce agarnst predeterm ned ollJectrves
Kenya Crv I Avral on Author ty h.rs 8 strateg c prl ars

and obtect ves withrn its 3rd Strateq c P dn for lhe
Frn.-rnci,rl Year 2Ol1 /2AlB 2021 /22.
Ih,'r'.rt,,; Dil d-s drp rs lo low'

. P llar l Air transport, Av atron SaFety and
Secur ty overs ghl

I P llar 2: lmprov nll Air Navrq.rtron Serv ces
r P l.rr 3 Business pro.L'sses,lnd systems
rv P lar4 Frnancrai Sustainab rtyandeffrcency n

su pply chain man.rgenlent
v P llar 5 Adequate and cornpetent human caprtal
vr P llar 6 Cuslomer Serv ce
v P lar 1 Del very of qualrty trarnrng
v r P ar B: Fnvironment.rl [)rotect on Govern3nce

.rnd Rrsk Managemer t

Keny.r Civ I Aviation Authonty develops its annual
work plans based on lhe above B pr ars. Assessment of
the Elo,rd's performance.rg,r nst ts annual work pLan

rs do{re on a quarter y bas s lhe KCAA achieved ts

Derform.rnce targets set for thc f nanc dl yeat 2021 22

D{.rlod for ts 8 stratectrc IJr .rrs.rs rnd caled below

(a) The process of reviewing the
Crvrl Avratron Act was started
and a team comorising of KCAA
offrcers, legal experts from the
Attorney General's Office and
Kenya Law Reform Commission
appointed to review the current
Acts and develop the Civil
Avialion Act

(b) The Authorrty recruited four
(4) Airworthrness lnspectors. 8
FIght oos lnspectors recruited.
And two AVSEC lnspectors.

(c) ICAO safety audrt carrred out
and Kenya scored 78.4%

(d) Dunng the year ICAO conducted
an audrt on Kenya on Universal
Secunty Audil Programme
(USAP) and Kenya attained
a sustainabllity indicator of
91.77% on the averase Effective
lmplementation (El) of the
erght Cntrcal Elements (CE) of
an Avration Security Oversight
System from 88% that was
recorded from 2015 audit.
Technical Guidance Material
(TGM) were approved and
implemented

(f) Certrfications and approvals
of air operators conducted -
licenses for 12,218 oersonnel
were valid

Pflrr I: Alr
Emport,
/}hlon
Sft ty.nd
lacurlty
d.r3lght

Estab rsh and
mdrntarn an
effectrve sdfety and
secunty oversr!,ht
system.

% Level of
avration safety
and secuflty

(a) dentrfy ng
key rterrs dffect ig
the Author ty lor
rncusron ntheCvl
Av dt on Act
Conduct stdkeholder
en ga9ernen t
rneet ng on vanous
aspects

(b) C ose outstand ng
correctrve actron
p ans (CAPs)

(c) rnpie.neft
Correct ve Act on
P ans (CAP:) aflsrng
frorn FAA
M ssrons

(d) Undertake
cert f catrons and
approvdls

Strategic
Pillar

Key
Performance

lndicators
oblective Activities Achievement



Actrve partrcrpdt on
n rnfluencrnq

natrona reg ona
and globdl dvrdt on
develOp.ent

Number of
Meetings attend-
ed and Papers
Oresented

(a) Part crpate n CAo
dnd CASSOA meet-
raqs dnd pre5ent
papers

(b) Retarn Kenya s off ce

dt CAO headquar

(a) tne nutnorlty participated in the
AFCAC Meeting to prepare for
the 41st ICAO Assembly and the
Natronal Arr Transport Facrlitation
Meetrnq

(b) Partrcrpated in regional and rn-

ternational forumsi/Workshops in

the development of procedures

and provide technical support
and assistance to neighbour-
rng countries e.g. lnternational
Flrght lnspection Symposium
(20-24th June 2022 in Durban
South Afflca.2022 ICAO Global
Aviatron Dialogues on Long-term
Asprratronal Goal (LTAG-GLADS)

CODEVMET regulatory docu-
ments Meetrng. ICAO Vrrtual
Semrnar on Sustarnable Aviation
Fuels and CORSIA. ICAO virtual
workshop seminar on CORSIA
and verification. ICAO Meteorol-
ogy Panel Round Table (17 14ay

2022), APIRG APCC lnfrastruc-
ture and lnformation Manage-
ment (llM/SG) Subgroup. MET
ProJect I Meeting

(c) Government aooroved mainte-
nance of Kenya's office at ICAO
Headquarters and an officer was
posted during the year.

(a) Participated in lcAo Aviation
week held in Abuja in May
2022 as a Steering Commit-
tee member of AFI Plan and
AFISECFAL plan.

(b)Moderated the tcAo

AFI Environment Symposium held
rn Abula.

Enhance comp r-

ance w th lega dnd
regu atory

Number of
Regulations and
Technical Guid-
ance Materials
reviewed

Revrew regu atrofs
Revrew Technrca
Gu ddnce Mater a s

(a)
(b)

(a) 3O safety related regulations
were reviewed and submitted to
Government for aooroval.

(b) Technicat Guidanie Materials
revrewed

(c) The Authority implemented the
State Safety Programme (SSP)

(d) The Authonty revrewed and
implemented surveillance pro-
gramme and surverllance plan.

Stratesic
Pillar

Key
Performance

lndicators
objective Activities Achievement



(a) Revrew of the Lrcensing of A r
Services Regulatrons has been
compieted.

(b) L censrng of Arr Serv ces and
Technrcdl Commrttee (LASTC)
l'4eetrng was held on l2th Apfll
2022 and 32 applrcatrons were
consrdered.

(c) 36 Arr Serv ce Lrcences were
ssued durrng the year.

(d) zoo ao noc cermrts/Short term
rcences were issued

(e) The lhrrteenth ICAO Arr Serv ces
Neqotrat on (lCAN202l) was
scheduled to be hosted by the
Aeronaut cd Crvr of Colombra
from 6 to l0 December 2021

Develop a v braot
a r transport sy5tell]
m Kenya

Number of
Negotratrons
done to rmprove
a r transport
access

(a) CondLrcl ll .rtentl
Arr Serv r('
Altreenrents

(b) Conc,ucr
aert I i ;tri] r rnii
a0Cri'',. '

Equrpment
rnstalJed and eve
of avarabrl ty of
ANS
equ pment

(a)?reo:re ritLrlrr,"
mi,r:er-J,rl!
5a reo! t.rr ri
,np errlerrt

(b) R,"flrr tr !h/ rep.rce
of 0o,,!er 5ut)tr y.rn(l
a r atoItlrtro|[](l !n t5

(a) l'4arntenance plans developed
and rmolemented
by the varlous statrons

(b) Refurb shed the
eleckrcal power supply for the
statrons Ln .lK A tower. JKIA
radar statron. Mua hrlls radar
statron, Ngong hrlls and Stcny
Athr.

(c) mplernented var ous operatronal
procedures at arrports

:/a fiA. a.,3
!ri,rderr sa
Al..iS s! ster n:

Completed nstallat on of arr traffrc
management system at
JKlA

Plllar 2:
lmprovlng
Alt
l{avl9!tlo n
Servlces

De!,e op anci
mp ement
Operat onal
Performance
l.y'anaqement
system

Level of
mplementatron
of the syslem

Deve otl i".l ol'''ral r)rl,'l
perfornrarrcl
managerreft tV5terfl
matIll a nai arr,,rle
a!1/aTer)e55

(a) Trarnrng for BCP champrons was
conducted

(b) Staff nave been tra ned and
contrnuous support provrded

Plll.t
!: Buslness
p?oce$os
and
systoms

rat eme'rt
tru: neSS P,a iesSe!
x-eenq n46' 19

Leve of
dutomatron
of busrness
proceSses

(a) r"r erl,.,,t,,t,.r,r
ai Kaii/i llLr51re\i
CJ.: rir',,
d.c Ll s.r,,te'
Prel)lre(irr(.\!
slrate.tv 5v!tem

(b) Cornplolr: rscr
tra o n(l of the ERP
ard El ln(l dn(l
revetue 5y!terr .ls
!,,e ld! ll,rrr(ilro d

Strategic
Plllar

Key
Pertoimance

lndicators

Achievementobiective Activities



Ra se tha FVe ol
brand resofiltce
dnd reto.ln t orl

(a) KCAA Irrrared the
.ASK IHE AVIATOR '

(.or(.opt rn order lo
na ft).,lse (orI petrttve
ddv,lita.1e

(b) Lrt r,;r:trmtrs lo have
lrLrttlc il 5LO!rse on
ijeft f itii 5r r i-rtet tS

Eth,,lr'rce krt(]!\r eiii Je

of eme.g na, !:rtre!
and best pr,i!tr( (ts

rn the Avrat orl
lnal!st ry

(ll Pt,ro(la pro(lLrct on
of t lre

Av ,.rtor Orr rne
(lr) Al oc.te flrfd5 for

Achreve tr .:rtrrr,r
grci.tl'r,rte ot !'l
a re,",e-Lrar I lLil .rL)

fte I-i an Lr:er.rj r

'It r4r!r, rr)varrlre col ec
lall

Pillar 4:
Flnanclal
Sustalnab
lllty and
ettlclency
In supply
chaln
manag€m
enl

Set leLrt iirii"r .l
ce lrll nt 35', )l
re,.,enue dL[ r]J lhe
plan Derro(i

Et;u.e f,rne ) |4,),nreni
.f lA detrt! on NCT P

dnal (TSSP Lrrojects !!rth
tlre N.rtLon.rl red5ury

Ensure optimLrnl
t]tr 7al arn af.lrsajl!

.nDlemeatatron oi
dai ! I,ir5 for llt ldt on of

L rr t operdt onrrl
expend ture to
70% of dnnudl tot.rl
exPend tur e

Efle(t ve y rndnaqe
operatror)al expend ture

Strategic
Pillar

Key
Performance

lndicators

Obiective Actlvities Achievement

Number of
actrvrtres carried'
out to ra se brand
resonance dnd
recognrtron

(a) Partrcipated at Eldoret ASK
show. Partic pdtion in Krsumu
ASK show put on hold after
postOonement due to Elections
calendar Plans for partrcrpa-
tron rn t'4ombasa and Narrobr
Show rn the off ng

(b) xCnl partrcrpated rn COYA

awards and scooped awards.
rnc ud ng CEO oi the year (2nd
runner up), Manager of the

Establrsh knowl-
edge manage-
ment system

7o Growth rn
revenue

Leve of opera-
tronalexpenditure
asa%oftotal
expend ture

level of debt as a
% of revenue

Leve of tr rzatron
of non- core
assets

(a)

(b)

Bul et n produced n t me and
circulated onIne to the staff
A Board Paper on IRD Polcy
was developed and rs under
process for approval.

Deve oped charge rates for hrre of
EASA Chaoel
The chape has been operatronalrzed
and rs berng hrred out to external
clients

Rev ew of the oflces of EASA Prod-
ucts and Servrces was done. The
report was presented to the EASA
School Manaqement Commrtlee.

Drversif ed the hosprtal ty servrces -
Re-opened the Poolsrde Restaurant
and the swrmmLng pool rn January
and started h rrng the Drnrng Ha I

duflng the weekends to
external c rents for events

Kshs 186.020,493.00 was pard to
the Natronal Treasury & Plann ng For

the IDA loan repayments (KTSSP
&NCTrp)

Assets at EASA such as the qrounds,
marn hal and swrmmrnq poo were
ut I zed by students

The Authorty developed a draft
eas ng poIcy and have also enqaqed
survey of Kenya, EACC, the Attorney
Genera and both rnternal and exter-
nal Counsel to ass st wrth the recov-
ery exerose for qrabbed and

lmplemented the protect
manua during the quarter

Senror Manaqement were sensrtrzed
on budget preoaratron dur ng the
peflod.



I

(a) LJse .f Iin.,(et
S!rrjaY:. rr D' Ce

comPa, rsons
(b) Conduct drsposdl oi

asset 5

(C) Conc!.1 stcc{ tak Iil

(a) Market surveys In or ce
comoalsons were used
rnclud ng those from PPRA for
common stock Ltems to ensure
pflces offered by bdders are
comoetrtrve PPRA price survey
tor common rtems publrshed
rn.luly 2021 was shared wrth all
orocuremenl stalf

(b) brocurement Olfcers were
re-sensrtrzed on nventory
management based on PPADA
2015 & PPADR 2020 dunng therr
Quarterly departmental staff
meetrng held on 25lh October
2a2)

(c) Drsposal was conducted through
tendenng

(d) lstock takrng was conducted
d\rrinq the year

Enlr,rnae

eifr,,rcrrcy n sLrPPly

chJ n mandqenrent

Measures
rmplemented
to Lmprove
supply chain
management

The revrsed organrzatron structure
was approved by SCAC.

Qe,. pr" ani
llrll enrent tle

orqan ldt ona

Level ot progress
rn the rev ew
process

Orqarn ldt on
Structure Approv{r(i
by the re arvant Govt
Crgan!

o/o ol fi led
posrtrons rn lhe
establ shment

(a) Recru t ne)/
emp oyce5

(b) CondLrct rntervre\,!5

fo, pronrotLon5

The Author ty recrurted oew
employees and severa staff
promoted durinq the yedr

Prlar 5:

Adequate
and
competent
human
cagrtal Altr,ll i. rnana,le

aIal retaLn
profes! ona
enrployees

% of Consumers
complarnts
manaqed

Manage aonrrlld nt:
rnade a.l.r n!t the
organrsdtrof and
ntlLrstry

R€solulron of publrc complaints
rmplemented as per gurdelines
and cornp a nts reports sent to
CAJ every quarter and feedback
prcvrded for quarter 1.2. 3 and
4. The complrance certrfrcate rs

expected at lhe end oF the year

ijr,)teci consunrrr
all)t,, dfd rntere5t!

Oualrt y
mprovement

meaSureS
Lmplemented

ll]rDlement rn?asure
to mC/cva t.ra,ty c'
5ervrce!

nternal audlts for marntenance of
Ql.4S ISO 9001;2018 and external
audrt conducted, and Authoflty
recerved recert frcatron certrfrcate
from KEBS

PiLlar 6:
Customer
Servrce

r,,Drove qua tv cf
a!!lOirer

Capacrty
mprovements
done duflng lhe
year

d.^rcve tr,tin iq a.ij
.on- trc rr rl,,l equ pm.f i
,,i n al faa lt 0s

Carr ed out feasrbLl(y study
ana ysrs for a modern hostel
and aonference centre.
Procured and rnstaled
eoLrLomeot at the Laboratory
Procured and rnstalled
addltronal power plant
Engrne for trarnrng of Arrcratt
Marntenance Students

(a)

(b)

(c)

Prliar 7:

DeIvery ot
qualrty
trarnrnq

8Lr ci EASA
CaLria tY to
prov de globd
av atron tra n nq

Rrsks agarnst the strategrc oblectrves
developed, mrtrgatron pldn devel-
oped, monrtored and rePorted

Deve op a revLsed lRl'4F based on
the new Strateg c Pldn

T,.r'sfor.r tc a

R s,( Inte gent
Au t lrorl ty

Levelof ntegra'
tron of fisks to
operatrons

acialrct r jL.. aqa.st tlre
strateg. ol)leai ves

mplementation
oF Board lssues

(a) Revrew board chnrter
(b)CondLrct !rovernance

tra n not fL.r:ne
Bod r ai

AIgned Board Committees
Charters to the functrons of
KCAA

(b) Trarnrngs on governance were
conducted for drrectors of the
Board and top management

(a)

Prllar
8: Envrron
mental
Protection,

Gover-
nan ce
and

Rrsk
Manage
ment

Upgrade gover'
nafce structLrres

Strategic
Pillar

Key
Pelfotmance

lndicators

AchievementActivitiesObiective



\
|,.il.1.',,Ii.l'

mprove fternal
Audrt to be d h gh
Perforrnrng dssur-
ance and comp ant
funct on

Recru t staff
l.lpgrdde the struc-
ture
Conduc t

trarn ng for staff

a(
(

)
)b

(c)

M n mrse adverse
effects ofav atron
dct v tre: on env -

ronment

(a) mplement the
Kenya StateAct on
Plan on env ron-
rnenta Drotec'
t on for the

avrat or 5ector
(b) Partrc pate rn

CAO Eivrroiment
meet ngs

Strategic
Pillar

Key
Perlolmance

lndicators

Obiective Activities Achievement

Capacity rrn-
provement tn
lnternal Audit
Functron

(a)
(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

One more staff was recruited
Held continuous trarning of
lhe Board and the ARGC on
versight
Trainrngs were conducted for
audrt staff

Developed Final Draft 3rd
Actron Plan 2022-2028 by
engaqing the stakeholders'
inputs dnd valrdatron.
Contrnued to recerve feed-
back from the stakeholders
on the actlon plan activities
for inclusion in the new plan
Comprled CO2 emrssions
and submrtted to lCAo CCR
system.
Kenya's focal points attend-
ed vaflous meetrngs on
envrronment
Attended the Committee
On Av ation Environmental
Protection (CAEP) Steerinq
Group l4eeting in February
2022 (virtual).

Measures rm-
plemented to
minrmrze arrcraft
emrssion of car-
bon droxrde
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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by establrsh ng a system of clearly defrned
authorities and responsrbrlities, which result tn a
system of rnternal controls that rs regularly tested
to ensure effect veness

At Kenya Crvil Avratron Authoflty, the Board plac-

es a high degree of importance on maintarnrng a

sound control envrronment and apply ng the htgh-
est standards of business rntegnty and professron-

a[sm In all areas of the Authority's actrvrties. The

Board has adopted the Code of Best Practrce for
Corporate Governance rssued by the Centre for
Corporate Governance (Kenya) as rts benchmark
in developing its corporate governance prrncrples

and further provided these princrp es rn the KCAA
Board charter.

Board of Directors and Board Meetings
The compositron of the Board is set out on pages

viii-xiir. The Board has varied and extensrve skills
in the areas of aviation, finance, bus ness manage-
ment, governance and aw. The Directors' responsi
bilities are set out in CivilAviation Act no.2l of 2013

read together with the Civil Aviation (amendment)
Act of 2016 and Lnclude the policy direction and de
velopment of interna financ al controls.

The Chairman of the Board provdes the overall
leadership to the Board without lrmrting the princi
ple of collectrve responsibility for Board decisions.
He acts as the Ink between the Board and the Di-
rector General and plays a leading role rn consen-
sus burldrng between the Board members, the Di-

rector General and Senror l"lanagement. The Board
has delegated the authority for day-to-day man-
agement to the Drrector General. lt however retains
the overall responsrbility for decisions with regard
to finances and operations of the Authority.

The Board meets at least once every quarter and
has formal schedule of matters reserved for it.

During the Financial yea( 2021-2022, the Board
held a total of Ten (10) meetings. The quorum for
the board meetrngs s srx (6) members excludlng
the Director General.

The Board has appo nted four (4) standtng Com-
mittees to which it has de egated certain respon-
sibilil es with the chairpersons of the Committees
report ng to rt. The Committees are, Frnance and
Human Capital, Licensing of Air Services and Tech-
nical, Audit Risk and Governance and the Eastern
Afr can School of Avration Committee and they
consist ofl



t
Chairperson Capt. Bootsy Mutiso

l,lembers
l. Ms. Carole A. Ayugi
2. Eng. Luke Kittony. DSM

3. 1.4r. Nicholas E. Bodo
4. l'4r. Peter Thuku. EBS
5. Mr. Emile N. Arao

Number of
meetings and
agendas
considered in
FY
2021/2022

The Commrttee rs respons ble For consrdeflnq aoplrcatrons for air service licenses
rnc udrng vaflatrons thereof and rssurng or denyrng such lrcenses, Consrdering all
arr transport/economrc regulatron matters: Provrdrng gurdance on arr transport
polrcy n Kenya rn consultatron wrth the parent mrnrstry, Ensuflng eng neenng
standards and monrtonng engrneenng prolects; Monrtoflng a r nav gaion (and
other equrOment) avarlabrirty and servrceabrlrty, and, Monrtoflnq the Aviatron
safety and avratron secur ty oversrght functrons of KCAA, rncludrng the licensrng
of avratron personnel and all matters rncrdenta lo the Functrons of KCAA
rncludrnq examrnatrons conducted by KCAA

Du ng the year, lhe Committee had a total of 3 meeings. The meet n9s consrdered
bnefrng of arr servrces I cense dpp cdtrons. technrcal bnefrngs from the techntcal
departments of the Authority as well as holdrng vrrtua pubi c hearings as per
Statutory requ rements. The commrttee a so consrdered techn cal drrectorate's
quarter y reports and strateg c requests.

a a aa t
Chairperson Ms. Carole Ayugi

I'lembeis l. Capt. Kiki C. R. Onyonka
2. Mr. David N. Njathi
3. Mr. Emile N. Arao

Number of
meetlngs
and agendas
considerod in
FY 2021/2022

The Commattee is responsible for considering on behalf of the Board all matters
relating to the East African School of Aviation.

The Committee held 3 meetings. The committee considered East African School
of Aviation's reports which included academic reports, administrative reports,
prolect reports, student welfare reports, EASA Policies, EASA land matters, the
school annual investment plan and proposed projects for implementation in the
year.

ITTEE (EASA)



Chairperson En9. Luke Kattony, DSM

ilembors l. Mr. Peter Thuku, EBS

2. Mr. Nicholas E. Eodo

3. Mr. Samuel M. Macharia

4. Mr. Emile N. Arao

t{umber of meetings and agen-
das considered in FY 2021/2022

The Committee is responsible for reviewlng and monitoring the KCAA

financial matters/position on behalf of the Board, including monitoring
the implementatlon of Authority's financial strategac goals/objectives;
liquidity status, all the Authority's banking facilities, recommending
KCAA Budgets, Financial Statements and statutory reports; and Ensur-
ing compliance with the financial reporting requirements and the prop-
er keeping of all the financial records of the Authority.

The Committee also monitors the implementation of KCAA Human
Capital strategic goals/objectives; Considering and processing all hu-
man resource and administration matters that require to be processed

through the Board, including recruitment, promotions and disciplinary
action, as well as issues relating to staff training, development, remu-
neration, welfare and benefits;

The committee held 4 meetings. The committee considered among
other agenda's the Authority's Budget estimates, annual report and fi-
nancial statements, quarterly financial statutory reports, the Authority's
staff recruitment and approved employment contracts among other
staff welfare matters.

3. FINANCE AND HUMAN CAPITAL COMMITTEE (F&HCC)

chairperson Capt. Kiki C. Onyonka

Memb€rs l. Mr. David N. Njathi
2. Mn Nicholas E. Bodo
3. Mr. Samuel M. Macharia
4. Mr, Emile N. Arao

Number of
meetings
and agenda3
considered in
FY
2021/2022

The Committee is responsible for considering and making recommendations to the
Board on all matters relating to internal and external audits, Risk Management and
Governance inclusive of Performance Contract Reporting.

The committee held 5 meetings. The agendas considered included among others the
implementation of institutional risk management framework, lnternal and External Au-
dit reports, reports on court and land matters, quarterly Board PC reports and Gover-
nance Policy documents

4. AUDII RISK AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (ARGC)

The quorum for each Committee is three (3) members excluding the Director General or his representative

LYVII



Appointment of Board Members
There rs a successror p an whrch lras lhe tenure of servrce of the vaflous Board members lapsir-rg n
phases Thrs allows the nstrtut on.rl rncmory held by lon!ler servrnct D rectors to carry on as new Directors
take up the roles of B,rard merrtlers

Board Trainings
The Author ty has an nductron program and an annua Irarfrng program The program has so far ach eved
tra n ngs for the Board meml)ers on Stralegy on Scenarro Plann ng Gender l',lainstreamrnel, Corporate
Governance Leadersl.rp and Excel ence (rrnonll others The tra n ngs are undertaken on an ongo nq basrs
w th emphasLs on ne,l afcl errergrjlg area of av (ll on overs ght and requ srte competenc es for the Board
of D rectors

Board & Member Performance
There LS n place a Bc,drd evaluatron exercrses unalerl,lken annrrally by the State Corporatrons Ad,,,rsory
Commrttee (SCAC)

Conflict of lnterest
Drrectors are requ red to al sc ose .l I .rreas of confl ct of rnlerest lo the Board dunnq lhe adopticn of
agenda for any meet nq and are, oxc uclecl frorn votrnq on such areas. There rs a confl ct of rnterest reEister
rn place kepI bV the Corporal on SecretarV,,,rhere al the declaraIons of conflrcts of inlerests are reccrded.

Ethics, Conduct and Governance Audit
There is n place a Governance iu(lrl Ihat lakes place annually

Directors' Emoluments
The members of the Board are renruner.rte(l v.rnous y through allolvances The Cha rman earns a month y
honoraflum. A I memllers other tlr.rr lhe Drrector Genera earn travel ing. accommodatron, mi eage, s ttrng
and lunch alowdnces as per ll're prevar rng Government gurdelrnes conta ned in c rculars

The aggregate amount of emolurnents pard Io Drrectors for services rendered to the Authority durin!] the
F nanc al Yea( 2A2)-)02? are drs.lose(l rn fote l8l5 lo tl.re F nanc al statements.
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The World Economy is estrmated to have grown
by 5.9 percent in 2021 from a negative 3.1 percent
in 2020. The Sub-Saharan African region grew by
3.7o/o in 2021 f rom a negative 1.7 percent in 2020
due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. Ihe
EAC region rs estrmated to have grown by 4.9
percent in 2021 from a growth of one percent
in 2020. Economic growth in Kenya recorded 7
percent growth in 2021 compared to a negative

. growth rate of 0.3 percent in 2020 mainly due to the
continued recovery from COVID -19 pandemic. This
positive growth has impacted positively the growth
of the civil aviation industry's performance durrng
the year thereby affecting the Authority's financial
performance. Passenger, freight, and aircraft
traffic increased this financial year compared with
the previous year. The trend of GDP growth rate
comparison is shown below in figure l
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Source. Economrc Survey, 2022

Macroeconomic data on recent estimates of
demand shocks shows that traffic forecast will
return to 2019 levels tn 2023/2024 at low growth
rate of 3.6o/o compared lo 4.2o/o before COVID-19
based on ICAO Global forecast. The global freight
traffic is expected to remain at a growth rate of
3.5% similar to the pre Covidl9 level. With the
implementatron of the Covidl9 containment
measures. the avratron rndustry rs on a recovery
path and is expected to remain on an upward
trend. During 2021, global scheduled passengers
increased to 2.3 billion from the lowest levels of
1.8 billion achieved during 2020. Passenger traffic
in Kenya recorded a growth rate of 98.8 percent
in 2O2l/2O22 compared to last year, Cargo traffic
recorded a growth rate of 6.43 percent compared
to the last year, while Aircraft movements
recorded 44.4 percent growth this year compared
to the previous financial year.

According to the World Bank Economic report
released in June, Kenya's real gross domestic
product (GDP) is proiected to grow bV 5.5 percent

in 2022 and 5.2 percent on average tn 2023-

2024. Tf,ts growth rate, while strll strong, will be a
moderation following a remarkable recovery in 2021

from the worst economic effects of the pandemic.

The impact of the war in Ukraine is weighing on
the global economic recovery from the pandemic.

Domestically, a key risk to the outlook is a further
worsening of the current drought, which is having a
devastating effect on food security and livelihoods
in affected parts of the country and is necessitating
increased social spending on food assistance

The Authority enhanced the levels of effective
implementation of compliance requirements,
oversight capacity, surverllance of the industry and
investments in air navigation services infrastructure
and training equipment. Thrs has helped Increase

the contribution of the civil avration sector to
the economy. lndeed, contribution to the Gross

Domestic Product recorded 0.5 percent in 2022
from 0.4 per cent rn 2021.

-
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Operatlonal and Flnanclal Performance

The Authority experienced an rncrease in financral performance dunng the year resulting from recovery
from Covid-19 outbreak. Revenue earnings increased during the year from Kshs.6.95 billion to Kshs.4.60
billion due to increased earnings from air navigation services charges as a result of rncreased aircraft
movements and arr passenger servrce charges. On the other hand, recurrent expenditure rncreased from
Ksh.4.93 billion to Kshs. 5.10 billion during the period under review. Overall, the frnancial results were a net
surplus of Kshs. 1,931,107,787 compared to a deficit of Kshs.3,260,193 the prevrous financral year before
90% remittance to National Treasury.

The performance of the rndustry during the financial year showed good recovery trend from Covid-19
pandemic. Grven aviation is a critical catalyst for global and national development and contributes to Job
creatron and trade with other countnes, the recovery of the sector is important to the Kenyan economy.

There was an increase in domestic passengers by 77.160/o and 138.91o/o for international passengers,
compared to the previous year. Transit passenger traffic also increased by 75.O9o/o compared to the
previous year. The overall passenger traffic increased by 98.78% this year to reach 8.893mrllions from
4.474millions recorded last year. Freight traffic increased by 643%from 357,180 tonnes to 380,157 tonnes
in the financialyear. The five years'trend is shown in the table I and figure 2 & 3 below:

Table 1: Passenger and Freight Traffic from 2017/181o 2021/20.22
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Figure 2 : Traffic Trend from 2017/18 to 2021/2022
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Figure 3: Total Freight Trafflc Trend from 2ol7l8to 2021/2022
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Aircraft movements increased dy 44.4o/o f rcm 207.924 n 2020/2021to 300.234 n2021/2A22. The rncrease
in aircraft traffic was mainly due to the recovery from Covrd-19 pandemic and increased domestic use of
arrcraft during the polrtical period. The aircraft movements trend during the last frve years s reflected rn
table 2 and frgure 4 below:

Table 2: Aircraft Movements tuom 2017/18 to 2021/20212

4't.82"/"

43.18'/"

44.52%

Source: KCAA-Plannlng, 2022

Figure 4: Aircraft Movements by Type from 201il18 to 2021/2022
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The number of aircraft registered in Kenya Increased by 1.5% from the prevrous year. The number of
registered aircraft has been growing steadily and currently the number of registered aircraft as at June
2022 was 1,624 as shown in table 3 and f igure 5.

Ilble 3: Alrcraft Registered in Kenya from 2017/181o 2021/2022

Source: KCAA- Plann I ng, 2022

Flgure 5: Total Alrcrafts in the Register per Year 2OO4 to June 2022
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Key Proiects or lnvestments Decisions

During the Financral Year 2O2O/21, the Authority continued w th the implementatron of prolects aimed at
modernising Air Navigat on Services (ANS) and enhancrng overall delrvery of servrces. The refurbrshment
of the electrrcal wrrrng and cablrng was completed dunng the year. The works were undertaken and
completed at JKIA, Mua Hills, Stonl Athr and Ngong as targeted. A new Arr Traffrc Managemenl System
was also rnstalled at JKIA. The consultancy for undertaking the work on marntenance of WGS 84 and Area
2 obstacle surveys for Kisumu Airport was awarded dunng the year and survey completed and the final
report was prepared and submitted to the Authonty. The construction of the Regronai Centre for Aviation
I'4edicine prolect at JKIA for the East African Communrty (EAC) agency responsrble for civ laviation, the
Civil Aviatron Safety and Security Overs ght Agency (CASSOA) was completed.

The implementation of the prolects and the contrnued marntenance and periodic calibration of equipment
contr buted to overall average availability of alr navigatron services equipment of 98% dunng the year

which was above the CAO recommended level of 97%. lt was however below the 99.1% achlevement
ot 2O2O/21. The achlevement was affected by the JKIA Dar Es Sa aam (DAR), Iqombasa - Kilimanlaro
(MSA-KlL), MSA DAR tie lines which were disconnected due to bill ng issues, and MSA radar which was
unservrceable due to fire outbreak. The systems have since been restored but ava labrlrty continued to
be affected by the unserviceable D ATIS equrpment at JKIA and Mombasa which is currently under
replacement

1,586 1,600 L,624Total Aircraft Registered L,476 7,547

New Aircraft Registered

2OL7lt8 2OL8lt9 2Ot9l2O 2o2ol2o2t 202t122t ina ncia I Year

2.5% 4.8% 2.5% o.9% 1.5v11i, Cha nge

32De-ReBistered Aircraft t2 16 159
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Table 4: Overall Av.llablllty of ANS Equlpment

Sou rce. KC AA- Pl a n ni ng, 2022

Flgure 6: Avallabillty of the ANS equlpment trend ftom June 2Ol2 to June 2022
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Table 5 be ow represent stat strcs on the key regulalory services offered rn the avratron industry over the
last f ve years.

'I!ble 5: Key Statistics on Regulatory Services

Source; KCAA- Plan n i nq. 2022

The East Afr can School of Av atron (EASA) wh ch s a centre of exce lence for aviation studies contrnued
to provide quallty tra n ng services to the local and internat ona avratron ndustry. EASA contrnued with
rts modernisat on programme towards lhe ma ntenance of the Centre of Excel ence n avrat on training
status. By doing thrs, EASA aims at providing qualrty training that meets the demand of an evolvrng avr-
at on industry both locally and rn the region

The number of students trained at EASA increased by 24.73o/o durng 2021/22 which recorded 2,557 stu-
dents compared to 2,050 tra ned dur ng 2O2O/21 as shown rn frgure 7:
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FlEure 7: East Afrlcrn School of Aylatlon Studont Populatlon trend as of June 2022
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Staff numbers increased by 0.9% from 775 to 782 as at the end of financial year. This resulted to an overall
increase of staff by 7 employees during the year. The number of staff as at June 2022 is as shown in Figure
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Kenya's economy contrnued to recover from Covrd-19 pandemlc, and it grew by 75% tn 2021 compared to
negatrve 0.3% growth rdte Ln 2O2O whrch affected the avrat on rndustry output. The economy ts prolected

to grow by 60/o n 2a22.Ihe trend of the GDP ts as shown n F gure 9.

Flgure 9: Kenya Real GDP growth rate from 2OOO lo 2022
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Major Risks Facing KCAA

(a) Drsruptron rn the provrsron of essentra servrces due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandem c on
the avrat on ndustry.

(b) nefteclrve proiect manaqement
(c) Poor/fa lure to the coordrnatron of search and rescue miss ons
(d) Farlure to comply with ICAO SARPS and honour tnternational ob igattons
(e) KCAA Farlure to comply with laws, regulatrons, standards, pol c es, procedures
(f ) Farlure to achieve 100% implementation of Strateg c Plan
(S) lneffect ve Rrsk ['4anagement coordination activitres
(h) Non implementation of organisation structure

Compliance to Statutory Requirements

ln the f rnanctal year ended 30th June 2022, the Authorrty was able to comply with the requisrte statutory
requrrements. However, there have been one malor long-stand ng court case. This is summansed below:

Nairobi HCCC Misc. Appl. No 1278 ot 2004 & Court of Appeal No. 57 of 2OlO

Rufus Njuguna & 67 Others -v. - KCAA & 2 Others

Thrs is a case rnvolving 68 former employees of the D rectorate of Civil Aviation (the predecessor of KCAA)

emanattng from aleged dismissal of the said employees from publ c service and malrcious prosecutron.

xxxvll
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The case was ruled in favor of the Plaintiffs but KCAA appealed against the ludgment and the appeal
proceeded for hearing on 7th January,2014. The Court dismissed KCAA's appeal with costs. The Court of
Appeal ordered the matter to be referred back to Hrgh Court for assessment of total damages. The High
Court delivered the ruling on assessment for 40 plaintiffs out of 67 plaintiffs. The ludgment amount in

total is approximately Kshs 154,841,140. The Claimants'application for review seeks an additional Kshs.
103,835,080/=. The application was heard on 12th June 2018. The ruling was slated for 28th September
2018 but was not read on the said date but would be delivered on Notice.
The matter was mentioned on 25th April 2019 for Clarmants to update the Court on the issue of the
Claimants'representation. The Court ordered that the Claimants sort out their issues on representation
as it had not resolved the ssue.

The matter was mentioned again on 12th June 2Ol9 where Dr. Khaminwa and l"lr. Mutai tentatively agreed
to act alongside each other with respect to 2nd, 4th to 25th claimants on the condition that the incoming
advocates lay no claim to Fees already earned. The Court then directed that the Claimants finalise on
their representation and agree on how to proceed wrth regards to Mr. I"lutai's Application to file a Notice
of Appeal out of Time.
On 14th August,2020, KCAA was served with a Preliminary Decree of Kshs. 152,071,216 and a Final Decree
of Kst's. 28,229,148 for the wrongful dismissal and unlawful arrest of the former DCA employees. The

amounts are salary arrears since 18th April, 2002.

There was an error on assessment on dues done by the court and the same is pending determrndtion by
the court. Meanwhile the Authority is lrarsing with the Advocates on record for parties to agree on the
amount that is not disputed for purposes of payment by KCAA. The matter is be ng handled by Walker
Kontos Advocates on behalf of KCAA. The matter will be coming up for hearing of our review appllcation
on 20th September 2022.

Material Arrears in Statutory and Other Financial Obligations

The Authority reported a number of liabrlities as at 30th June 2022. These malor liabrlrties rncluded:

a) Trade Payables & Other Payables
b) Employee Benef it Obligation
c) Current Portion of Borrowings
d) Current Provisions (90% Surplus, ANS VAT & Leqal)

Kshs

Kshs
Ks hs
Ks hs

851,r36,r70

201,154,261
182,324,356

2,150.542,402

rx\\'lll
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9. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY
REPORTING

a , enya Civi Aviat on Author ty's (KCAA) is

lf u oo ^o concer. tlat eyrsts 'o rrans-o'^.]

l\ , u"r. r^ s s wnat qJroes rne Autror,ty rn

I LO. ivering its stratejy. whrch rs founded on
eight (8) prllars of puttrng $)e customer/Cit zen Frrst,

delrverrnq relevant qoods and servrces, and improvrng
operationa exce lence.

The Authorty contnues to pay a eading role in

the growth of a v brant crvil aviation system in

Kenya through ts mandate of plann ng, deve op ng,

managing, regulating and operat ng a safe.

economrcally sustainable and effrcient crv I avration
system (in accordance wrth lhe provrsions of the C v I

Aviatron Act No.2l of 2013 as amended in 2Ol6 and
artrculated in the Author ly's Slrategic Plan).

i) Sustainability Strategy and Profile

The greatest chal enge today rs the el m nation of
poverty the latter of whrch remains an nd spensab e
requrrement for sustainable development, according
to the United Nat ons. To reduce poverty and imOrove

the quality of ives of the people, the United Nat ons
developed the susta nable development goals and
every country s expected to work towards achieving
these goals Civil Aviat on ndustry is recogn sed as

a major enabler for international trade and bus ness

and s expected to contnbute towards reduction
of poverty and improvement of [ve|hoods. Peop e

are at the centre of the deve ooment agenda and
at KCAA. the strategy rs to contnbute towards the
improvement of the lves of people n Kenya and
beyond. The effect ve mp ementation of the Vision
2030, the lvedrum Term lll, the Biq Four Agenda
and KCAA Strategic Plan 2018-2022 has contr buted
towards the transformatron of the lives of the peop e

the Authority rnteracts w th. By extension, when
peop e s I ve ihood s rmproved, drseases are bound to
be eradicated.

The Authority's role as a regulatory authonty
respons b e for a r transport, aviat on safety and
secur ty, air nav gation and av ation train ng services
is to contribute to internationa trade and business.
The Air Service agreements between Kenya and
other countries have helped to open up markets for
Kenya's products, ncreased access for inputs and
tnteracttons across the g obe. The main factors that

affect the growth of the civi aviaton s economc
growth and the rncrease in traffic. G obal passenger

traffrc cont nued to expand during the year, ln Afnca
the growth was ma nly influenced by the emergtng
mrddle class which is growrng raprd y.

Arr lransport is a key cause and facilitator of econom c
growth 1n Kenya by enabling the country's nteqration
into the global economy, provid ng d rect benefits
for users and wder economic benefits through
rts positve rmpact on productvrty and economc
performance. The gobal economy s estrmated to
have grown by 5.9 oercent n 2O2l from a contractron
of negative 3.1 percent rn 2020. This was mainly due to
the ongo ng recovery from Cov d-]9 Pandem c which
had stgnifrcant y constra ned econom c activities.
Global growth ls prolected to grow at 4.4 percent in

2A22 reflecltng expectat ons of a vaccinepowered
strengthening of activity and additional po icy

support r d'ew a'qe ecolomies.

Economrc growth rn Kenya recorded 7.5 per cent rn

2021 compared to a negat ve growth rate of 0.3 per

cent in 2020 mainly due to the COVID 19 pandemic.

The performance n other East African Communrty
(EAC) countnes dunng 2021 continued to record
positve growth rate. Rwanda recorded 5.1 per cent
growth, Tanzania 4.0 per cent growth, Uganda 4.7 per

cent and Burund 1.6 per cent. The overal growth rate
for EAC countr es was 4.9 percent ln 2021 ind cating a
oosrtrve qrowth from 1 percent n 2020.

The globa freight traffrc is expected to remain at a

qrowth rate of 3.5% s milar to the pre Covid l9 level.

With the imolementat on of the Covid l9 containment
measures, the aviation industry ls on a recovery path

and is expected to remarn on an upward trend. During
2021, g obal scheduled passengers increased to 2.3

br |on from the owest eves of 1.8 blllion achreved
durng 2O2O. Passenger traFfic n Kenya recorded a

growth rate of 98.8 percent n 2021/2022 compared
to the orev ous year Cargo traffrc recorded a growIh
rate of 6.4 percent compared to the last year. while
a rcraft movements recorded 44.4 percent growth
lh s year compared to the previous f nancial year.

The Authority enhanced the levels of civil aviation
oversight to encourage growth of the ndustry,
undertook surveillance of the industry for comp iance
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and assurance of safety to consumers in the wake of
the COVID l9 pandemic. ln addit on, investments were
also undertaken in infrastructure, equipment and
facilities to improve arr navrgation serv ces and aviat on
training. Th s has helped ncrease the contribution
of the civil aviation sector to the economy. Indeed,
contr bution to the Gross Domestic Product recorded
0.5 percent tn 2022 from 0.4 per cent ln 2021. With
continued growth of the industry, the contribution
of civil aviation to the GDP rs exoected to flse in the
coming years.

During the Financal Year 2021/22, lhe Board
successfully implemented the lSth Performance
Contract and achieved an overall rmplementation level
of 86.05%. The Authority completed implementation
of the third Strategic Plan that covered the period
2011/18 - 2021/2022 and which was aligned to the
MTP lll and the Big Four Agenda. Emerging areas of
focus durinq the period were issues related to the
environment and specifrcally the Carbon Offsett ng
Reduction Scheme for lnternational Aviation
(CORSIA), consumer protection and increased
operation of the Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS).

The Board also, prepared the fourth strategic plan that
will run from financial year 2022/2023 to 2027/2028
during the year.

As an enabler. KCAA rmplements activities that
are geared towards ensuring that the cost of doing
business s reduced and that business and economic
activities are supported so that people involved can
improve therr ivelihoods and those that they serve.
ln undertaking and mplementinq the core mandate,
the Authority is concerned with the people it relates
to and serves.
The overall air transport performance during the year
was positive growth in passenger trafftc by 98.8o/oa/o

to reach 8.893 mi lon passengers in FY 2021/2022
compared with 4.474 million the previous financial
year. Aircraft movements increased by 44.4o/" frcm
20t,924 in 2020/2021 to 300,234 n 2021/2022.
Freight traffic increased ty 6.4% from 352180 tonnes
tn 2020/2021 to 380,157 tonnes in 2021/2022. Ihe
number of aircraft registered in Kenya increased by
1.5% to reach 1.624 ancaft in 2021/2022 from 1,600
Aircraft in the 2O2O/2O2I frnancial year

During the year, KCAA in consultation with the
stakeholders completed the review of 30 sets of
regu ations and submitted them for approva by the
Government. A process to develop six new regulatrons
was also started during the year. These six regulat ons
are on the following areas: Aerial Works-Ag ricultural
Operations: Aerial Work- Operations; Aircraft Noise:
Dangerous Goods: Consumer Protection and Arrcraft
Emissions. ln addition, drafts were also developed for
requlat ons on; Air Ambulance and Hot Air Balloons

operations.

ii) Environmental Performance

KCAA fully complies with international and domestic
requirements on matters related to the environment.
The Authority operates in line with the expectations
of diverse global stakeholders, and therefore
sees environmental management as a drscipline
through which the Authority integrates economic,
environmental and soc al objectives without
comprom sing the ability of future generations to
meet the r needs.

At the internatronal level KCAA is working together
with the globa civil aviatron community towards
reductions of aircraft emissions. To this end, Kenya ls

participating in the Carbon Offsetting and reduction

Scheme for lnternational Aviation (CORSIA) rn the prlot
phase since 2021. The scheme aims at contributinq
to the globa asp rat ons of keeprng the global net
Carbon D oxide emissions from international avration
neutral from 2O2O at the same level. Th s implies that
aircraft will increasrnqly use eff cient fuels and Air
Navigation Service providers design routes that do
not contribute to increased aircraft emissions.

A pilot prolect was implemented in Kenya with
strong support from the lnternational Civil Aviation
Organisation (ICAO). lt consisted of a ground-
mounted photovoltaic system of 5O7kW solar power
generation facility and mobile airport gate electric
equipment. This innovative project was launched on
l2th December 2018 at l'4oi lnternational Airport in

l"lombasa, Kenya.

The facility provides pre-conditioned air (PCA) and
compatible electricity that runs on solar enerqy to
service aircraft during ground operations which
eliminate carbon dioxide em ssions from aircraft
parked at the gate. The system has been in operation
since April 2019, when the site acceptance tests were
conducted and the system was commissroned.

The project rnstalled an auxiliary power unrt (APU)
and a ground power unit (GPU) for use by aircraft at
l'4or lnternational A rport that are powered by clean
energy from solar. This has helped to reduce the use

of fossil fuel (diesel) by powering the APU and GPU

at the airport. The system has also helped to run
onboard systems and rnter or cooling before aircraft
depart for therr next flight.

The solar facility has generated 73Z0l4.86kwh
annually on average wrth a total power generation of
2.472.310.92kwh as of June 2022. Thus, it has reduced
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on average 704.225 tonnes of CO, annual y. ln total,
the amount of carbon d oxrde em ss ons reduced
eaua led 1,991.107 tonnes as of June 2022. The airport
gate equrpment serves more than 1,497 flights per
year, with both GPU & PCA consuminq 120,718.586

kwh as of June 2022, therefore demonstratrng a

concrete solution to reduce aviat on carbon dtoxide
em tssions.

The Solar Pilot Prolect was rmplemented at Mor

lnternational Airport at a cost of usD 1,50113222

which was part of the € 6.5 m llion nrtiatrve

entitled 'Capac ty Bu ld ng for CO2 Mtigat on from
lnternationa Aviation" Th s in tiative targeted 14

African and Caribbean states. Twelve (12) States
were from the African Region and two from the
Canbbean Reqion. Th s protecl was imp emented by

_ 
1,! 
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the lnternat ona Crv I Avratron Organisation (LCAO),

the Kenyd C v I Av ation Author ty (KCAA), and the
Kenya Atrport Authonty (KAA). lt was funded by the
Eurooean Un on and the Government of Kenya

KCAA and the Kenyan aviation ndustry stakeholders
deve oped the Kenya s Action Plan for the Reduct on

of Carbon Dioxide (CO2) Gas Emrssions From Aviat on
n December 2015. Thrs State Actron Plan resulted into
funding of the "solar-at-gate' prolects n Mombasa,

which was one of the mit gatron measures selected.
The protect has further resulted nto efficient
ooerat ons at lVor lnternationa A rport, with savings
of electricity charges at an average amount of USD

25,000 (Ksh 2.5 million) per month. Figures shows the
trend in power generation per month and annually
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Solar Farm at MIA
Furlher KCAA rmplemef ted the fo low ng dctrv tros on
env ronment durlnq lh0 y&rr

Deveoped Fnal l)r.rft 3rd dvatron Actrof Plan

on CO2 reductror 2A22-2428 by engagrnq tlre
stakeho ders rnDLrls drd va dal on
Contr tluted to CAO env ronment report on Ch,lpter
6 on Cl mate Chancte.rnd Mrt gatron
Dala on carttor ernrss ons co eatedandsubrnrttoal to
ICAO on CORS A frorn KQ and Astra for the CORS A
emrssion for 2021, Cat ed order of magn trraie tests
on the emlssrons re0orts recerved from Astr.r ,rrd
KQ dnd subrn tled to ICAO.

Presented CORSIA regulatrons For St.,rkeho der
va rdat on at O1e Sercllr lotel and develoDl'd tlre
Technrcal Gu dancL,M.rter a s (TGMs)dunnq thc yo,lr
KCAA Part c p.rted ll the Fo low nll workrnlls
and ,neet ngs drrrnq the year on envrro|firL,nt
contflbul on
Part c pated rn meet[]q to prepare for Keny.l pos tron
on SABSTA 56 th.rt w.rs he d rn Bonn Germany f rom
6th to l6th June ?O22

Part c pated rn lhe 2050 emrss on C.l cu,rtor
Valrdat on workshops on 2lst and 22nd -)tna ?a?2
at Emara Oleserenr orq.rnrsed by Mrn stry of errergy
The ca culator rs tryrn!, to atudct fy the [ota err ssron
lor s x seclors na Ud fq transport.
Part crpated rn At CAC capacrty bu d nll on
envrronment trom lgth to 2lst Julv 2021 lh.rt w.rs
he d v rtually.
Pdrl cipated rn CALI, LTAG TG workshop from .llr y
to December 2O2l V rtua y on the develoDrlenl of
the ong-term asprrdt on qoal feas br ty reDort.
Part crpated rn the SLrst,r nab e Av atron I rre tool krt

develcpment ambass,rdor meet ngs that developed
the SAF too krt th.ll was aunched rn COP 26 rr

Glasgow UK.
Partrcrpated rn the stock t.rk rq sern nar trorn 3lst

meetrng orll.,rn lod try UK on 24th Aullust 2021

Trarned ACT'(-ORSIA partcrpants on lTtlr Mdr[h
2022 vrrtu.rlly th.rt nc uded pdrtrcrp.ltes from
Uganda Scychel es. l?wanda and South Sud,rn.
Partrc pdted rn .r Meetrng lletween IAA USA CAEP
member an.l KCAA DG, CORSIA Focal pornt d,ld
Kenya CAEP rrember clur fg COP26 Conference
Partrcrpdte(j rn on Commrttee of Avrdt cn
Envrronment.r Protect on (CAEP) steeflrrq ilroup
meel nq (CAt P 12) v rlua y from /th to l8th
Februaty )O2)
Partcpated n the NEN1A ar qua rty roquatrons
revrew
Part c pated rn the Unrted Natrons Clrrr,llc' Clr.lfge
Conference Jlst October 2021 to l2th November
2021. (COP 26) he.l n G asgow UK
Part c pated n AFCAC EU workshop on COIIS A
from l4th to l6lh .lrrne 2022 V rtuallv .rr(i rrrdde a
oresentat on on the Sarne
Attefde(l !reei House gas em ssron Workshop

organ sed by M n stry of Envrron[renl or] Monrtor ng
revew and Voflfrc.rtion (MRV) from (ith to lllh
tebtrary 20?2

At the dornestrc cvcl. the Avatlon sector has strong
reguatory framo,""r'ork anal supervrsory cortrols that
mon tor envrronrrenl dsDects nternal an(i L.xtatrnalduJ t
proqrams are n Dlacc to ensure comp ance \,\'rth lled th
SaFely and Fnvrronrfentd d!!s. regu dt ons.rnd po rc es
The Aulhorrty.rlso ensures thal waste llenerated by lhe
dctrvrt es oF the Authorty wh ch is marIly of frce w.rste s

disposedoft rn.rccor(lafce w th the regulatlofs.

iii) Employee Welfare

(CAA had d totdl rrLrnrirer of 782 employees.rs .rt the end
of the year v,, th a trrrnover of 30 emp oyees (Ret rernent-
22 Resgnat on 4,rrd Demrse - 4) Rccnr tment of
staFf s based of cJc.nder wth the olllectrve of ,rt le<rst

achrevrnq the one thrd ctender requ remenlAugust to 3rd Septerrller 2021

Partrcrpated rn the c -"an sk es for tomorr
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The Authority has a Human Resource Po rcy Manual whtch
is the document that contains guidelrnes on Recruttment
and Selection, Stalf Tranrng and Deveopment, Staff
Welfare, Emp oyee Relat ons, Separatron, Performance
t{anagement and Admrn strat on Services The poltcy

also provides detarls on remuneratron, allowances and
benefrts that are payable to stafF. Stakeholders are

usualiy dur ng the review and development of various
po|cy documents that affect the rndustry the Author ty
requlates.

n order to improve the quality ol staFf, the Author ty
IlaS put rn place a trarn ng policy whlch rs rmp emented
to enhance sk s. Most of the employees have skr ls and
competencres whrch are developed over a per od of trme
thrs rs achreved by atlendrng various trarnrngs, workshops
and conferences that are aimed dt rmprovrng sk lls and
performance. The trarnings are usually attended through
both phys ca and vrrtual/onlrne learnrng modes

The Authonty endeavoured to provrde a work
envrronment that rs conducive to staff rn the perFormance

of therr dutres by ensurrng that off ce spaces and work
tools are provrded as requrred. ln addrtron, employee
\relfare systems are rn place rncludrng Provrsron of staff
tea and clean dr nkrng water, medrcal health rnsurance.

housrng mortgage facrlrty. pensron scheme and car
loan scheme. Further, the Authority has constructed
houses for those work ng rn remote areas such as Walrr

and Poror to ensure that employees are comfortab e

and able to de|ver. Further, the Author ty has rn place

an OSHA Polrcy rn compl ance wrth the Occupatrona
Health and Safety Act of 2002

The Authoflty has continued lo provrde Persona

Protect ve Equrpment (PPE) includrng face masks, and
fEnd sanitizers for use by staFf while on duty. l"lembers
of staff continued to access COV D l9 medrcal cover
benefrts for both rn-patrent and out patlent services
under the staff med ca rnsurance cover. The Author ty
also continued to undertake peflodic d srnFectron of the
office premises.

The Authoflty has in place a performance management
system that utllises performance contracts and
apprarsa s to set targets, report progress, eva uate
results and conduct rewards at the end of the year.

I'leetrnqs b,etween management and staff are regularly
f€ld to provided nformation and receive feedback
on varous rssues. Further, the Authonly arranges
sensit sation meetlngs to create awareness among
staff on issues such as corruption prevent on, gender

mainstreamrng drsab ity marnstreamrng. preventLon

of HIV rnfect ons and alcohol and drug abuse A staff
wellness day is held once a year dunng which employees
are sensitised on therr health and an opportun ty
provrded for medrcal check-ups.

iv) Market Place Piactices

a) Responslble competltion practice.
The Authonty rs respons ble for the oversight of the c vil
avral on industry and the ro e includes the promotron and
development of the ndustry. As a regulatory Authority,
KCAA promotes farr and responsrb e compet tton among
arr operators. ln undertak ng rts regu atory servrces on
the lrcens ng of arr Iransport serv ces, the Author ty
takes rnto consideratron the srze of the market and the
current operators rn each segment of the market among
other factors beFore makrng ts decrsron on the ltcens ng
of addrtronal operators rnto the market. lt ensures that
farr comoetrt on rs promoted among the a r operators
bv balancrnq the approva s granted to operate rn the
market and also lhe frequencres of flrghts granted to the
vanous operators rn the vaflous markets served The Atr
Servrces lrcensrng comm ttee meetrngs are open to lhe
publ c and rndrvrduals are free fo bnng any objectrons
aga nst any of the applicants For busrness lrcenses.

Thrs ensures thdt lhe lrcenses are rssued after obiectrve
analysrs and representatron by all partres rnvolved. The

Author ty also ensures that Fares charged are able to
recover the costs of operatrons and that arrlrnes do not
practrce unfarr compet tron through under-pnctng with
the oblectrve of creatrng domrnance and dr ving other
operators out of the market

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier
relations
Supply Chain Department of Kenya Crvrl Avratlon
Authonty rs commrtted to effrcrent provrsron of qualrty
goods, works and servrces at competitive rates to the
sat sfactron of our external and interna customers rn

accordance wrth Artrc e 227 of the Constitul on of Kenya,
Pub|c Procurement and Drsposal Act (PPADA) 2015

and the Publrc Procurement and Disposal Regu atrons
(PPADR) 2020,

The Authoflty conducts rts supp y chain processes

competrtively rn a manner that promoles fairness,
equltabrlty, transparency, cost-efFectrveness and
accountability. The suppy chain processes rnvolve
procurement of goods, works and Servrces, Contract
manaqemenl, lnventorv management and drsposal of
obso ete/unserviceable assets. The Authority maintains
mutual and seam ess commun cations and the contacts
for each of the part es are c early ind cated in the
respective contracts

All open tenders for goods, works and servrces are
advertrsed through loca da lres under Government
Advert srng Agency (CAA) and at the same time
uploaded on KCAA'S websiter www.kcaa.or.ke and the
Public Procurement lnformatron Portal: www.tenders.
go.ke For publc informat on and rnterested bidders.
Further, a Request for Quotat ons (RFQ) are processed

through a competrtrve process usrng regrstered suppliers
For various categores.
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The Authority uses the standard tender documents
issued by the Pub ic Procurement Regulatory Authority
(PPRA) in processing all the stated supply chain
functions n compliance with PPADA 2015 and PPADR

2024.

The tender documents are processed using various
tender committees whrch rnclude tender opening. tender
evaluation, contract implementation team. tnspection &
Acceptance Committee, Disposal Committee and other
adhoc comm ttees pror,/ided in the PPADA 2015. The
cornmrttees comprise multi-function teams from vanous
departments who adhere to the PPADA 2015 and KCA.A

code of conduct in carrying out their vaflous mandates.

These processes are aimed at promotrng strong
customer relationship, continuous commrtment to
quality, cost-effective operations and flexibilrty for faster
decrsion making while ensuring compliance wrth the
procurement laws.

All supplrer payments are processed after satrsfactory
performance/delivery, lnspections and Acceptance
of goods, works and or Servrces as per the respectrve
contract terms.

c) Responslble marketlng and advertlsement

The Authority being a regulator and servrce provrder

of the aviation industry in Kenya regularly processes

advertisements with regard to rts polrcies, technrcal
matenal sourcing including human capacrty, re.
vacancies. and stakeholder sensitization. The Authority
has a training arm, the East Afncan School of Avratlon,
which also advertises its trarnrng programmes regularly.
The process of advertising is in Ine with GoK advisory
where all advertisements are facilitated through the
Government Advertrsrng Agency. Thrs rs intended
to achieve the economres of scale through bringrng
together all government advertising needs under one
umbrella. Only on exceptional circumstances does
KCAA go directly to other sources of media output.

d) Product stewardship

The Authority has a Consumer Protect on Unit that help
process any complarnts against the Authority or players
in the ndustry. ndiv duals, suppl ers and any other
parties are free to launch compla nts wlth the Authority
and the Commission on Administrative Justice if they
feel aggrieved by the decisions of the Authority. The
Authority, therefore takes into consideration consumer
interests in all its decisrons.

v) Corporate Social Responslblllty/
Community Engagement

The Authority's CSR initiatives play a major role rn

improvement of the Authority's corporate rmage and

affirms its commitment to be a responsible corporate
citizen by contflbuting to national building through the
Corporate Social lnitiatives, Sponsorship, Philanthropy
and employee volunteering rn accordance w th the
provisions of Mwongozo. CSR nitiatlves therefore play

a malor role in engagement wrth the key publics both
inwardly and outwardly.

KCAA's approach towards CSR rs focused on identifying
and formulating projects guided by an elaborate policy,
and in response to specific needs that go towards
addressing challenges and providing opportunrties to
the community. ln the reviewed period 2021-2022,KCAA
through a CSR Committee, guided by an approved CSR
Policy, undertook the following activities:

a) Funding footbridge at spray race, cattle trough and
water point in Namanga, Matapato South Ward,
Kajiado County.

b) Sponsorshrp of Civil Aviatron Chaplaincy of Kenya
to host international conference.

c) Sponsorship of E/Ravine t'4arathon.
d) Partrcrpatron and Sponsorshrp of Avratron

Community Golf Tournament.
e) Sponsorship of Civil Aviation Day cocktail party at

Emara Ole Serenr.
f) Sponsorship of AWAK (Women Accountants of

Kenya) drnner at Sarova Stanley.
q) Sponsorship of 10th Annual l"lanagrng in heels

drn ner.

h) Partrcrpating rn Company of the Year Awards
(CEYA. MEYA and COYA category).

r) lnrtrating X- mas gift basket for needy chrldren.
j) Participation and sponsorship of 21st AAATO

(Africa Aviatron Training Organizations) meeting in

t'4ombasa Kenya.
k) Sponsorshrp of CANSO Flrght Ops workshop held

rn Zambra.
l) Sponsorshrp of Mwiki Football Club.
m) Sponsorship of Kayole Starlets Football Club.
n) Sponsorship of Real-Lrfe K on phase two

sponsorship.
o) Tree planting of more than 1,150 seedlings at Ngong

Forest and Kapsaret Forest in Uasin Gishu County.
p) Sponsorrng and participating in mater Heart Run

Ivlarathon.
q) Sponsorship of St. John Ambulance Road Walk in

Ngong.
r) Sponsorship of KCAA Rugby Stomers'
s) Sponsorshrp of the l0th AFRAA (Africa Airlines

Assocration) Conference at Emara Ole Seren.
t) Sponsorshrp of Drone Tech and Data expo in Sarit

Expo Center.
u) Sponsorship of Afrika l"lashariki Transport Awards

event organised by the t'4inistry of Transport to
celebrate the industry key players.

ln all our CSR initiatives, KCAA as much as possible,

strives to play a major part rn improvement of the
Authority's corporate image and excellent stakeholder

management of stakeholder expectations. K ronsh ps
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10. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
he Directors submrt their report together wrth the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2022 whtch show the state of the Authority's affatrs.T i) Principal activities
The Kenya Civil Avrat on Authority ('KCAA") was established on 24th October 2002 by the Civil Aviation
(Amendment) Act, 2002, now superseded by the Crvil Aviation Act 2013, as amended by Civ I Aviatron
(Amendment) Act 2016, with the pnmary functrons of the technical and economic regulation of civil

avtat on in Kenya, provision of arr navigatron servrces wrthrn the Nairobr Flrght lnformation Region and

Trarnrng rn Av at on.

il) Results
The results of the Author ty for the year ended June 30,2022 are set out on page I

ili) Directors
The members of the Board of Drrectors who served during the year are shown on page vii- xi. During the
year 2A21 - 2a22 Vr. David Nlathr and Capt. Bootsy Mut so were appointed to the Board of Directors with
effect from 6th October 2021 while Eng. Luke K. Kittony was appornted with effect from 19th January

2022. Caol. Gilbert M. Krbe retired as Drrector General with effect from 22 Apr 12022 and t'4 r. Emile N. Arao

was appointed as D rector General wrth effect from 23 Apil 2022.

iv) Surplus Remission
ln accordance with Section 219 (2) af the Public Financ al 14anagement Act Regulations, regulatory enti-

ties shall rem t into the Consolidated Fund, nrnety per centum of its surplus funds reported n the audited
financial statements after the end of the financia year. The Authority d d not make any surplus during the

FY 2020 - 2A21 and hence no remittance to the Consolidated Fund during lheFY 2021 - 2022.

v) Auditors
The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Authority n accordance with Article 229

of the Constitutron of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

?S 5 lurr
George O. Mogaka

Corporation Secretary Siq nature Date
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11 STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

ection 8l of the Public Finance Management Act.2012 and sectron 15 of the State Corporations
Act, requrres the Drrectors to prepare financialstatements in respect of that Authority, which grve

a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the Authority at the end of the financial year and the
operatrng results of the Authority for that year. The Drrectors are also required to ensure that

the Authority keeps proper accountrng records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
posrtron of the Authority. The Drrectors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Authonty.

The Directors are responsible for the preparatron and presentation of the Authority's frnancial statements,
whrch give a true and fair vrew of the state of affarrs of the Authonty for and as at the end of the financtal
year ended on June 30, 2022. f hts responsibility includes. (i) Maintaining adequate financial management
arrangements and ensunng that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period, (ri)
['4arntainrng proper accounting records. whtch disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Authority, (iii) Desrgnrng, rmplementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to
the preparation and farr presentation of the financral statements, and ensuring that they are free from
material m sstatements, whether due to error or fraud, (iv) Safeguarding the assets of the Authority, (v)
Selecting and applying appropnate accounting policres, and (vt) Making accounting esttmates that are
reasonable rn the c rrcumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Authority s frnancial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting po icres supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,
in conformrty with nternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required
by the PFM Act,2012, Civil Aviation Act,20l3 (as amended in 2016) and the State Corporations Act. The
D rectors are of the opln on that the Authority's financialstatements give a true and fair view of the state
of Author ty's transactions d uring the financial year ended J une 30, 2022, and of the Authority's financ al
position as at that date.

The Directors further conf rm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Authority,
which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Authority's financial statements as well as the
adequacy of the systems of internai financralcontrol.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Drrectors to indicate that the Authority will not remarn a golng
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.
Approval of the financral statements
The Authority's financial statements were approved by the Board on 22/09/ 2022 and signed on its
beh

1"1r. Brown Ondego. MBS
Chairman of the Board

Emile N Arao
Director General
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12. REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR FOR

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KENYA CIVIL
AVlATION AUTHORITY

PREAMBLE
ldraw your attention to the contents of my report whtch s tn three parts:

A. Report on the Flnanctal Statements that considers whether the financial statements are fatrly
oresented n accordance wlth the app icable financial reporting framework, accounting standards
and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectveness in Use of Public Resources which considers compliance
wrth applicable laws, regulations, policres, gazette notices, circulars, guidelines and manuals and
whether public resources are applied rn a prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable
manner to ensure Government ach eves value for money and that such funds are app ied for the
intended pu rpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk l.4anagement and Governance which considers
how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide nternal operations. This responds to
the effect veness of the governance structure, the risk management environment and the internal
controls developed and implemented by those charged w th governance for orderly, efficient and
effective operations of the entrty.

An unmodified optnron does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied wrth all relevant aws
and regulations and that tts internal controls, flsk management and governance systems are properly
designed and were working effective y in the frnancial year under review.

The three parts of the report are armed at address ng the statutory roles and responsrbilrties of the
Auditor-Genera as provrded by Article 229 of the Constitutron, the Public Finance lqanagement Act,
2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report, when read together constrtute the
report of the Auditor General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanyrng frnancral statements of Kenya C vrl Avratron Authority set out on pages
I to 53, which comprise the statement of frnancral position as at 30 June, 2022, and the statement
of financtal performance, statement of changes rn net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting pollcies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisrons of Artrcle
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Sectron 35 of the Publrc Audrt Act, 2015. I have obtarned all the
informatron and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief. were necessary for the
purpose of the aud rt.
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ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia position of the
Kenya Civil Aviation Authority as at 30 June,2022, and of its financiai performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended, rn accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and comply wrth the Crvil Aviation Act, Cap.394 of the Laws of Kenya and the Public Finance
Manaqement Act. 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1.0. lnaccurate Air Passenger Service Charge

The statement of f inancial performance reflects a rr passenger service charge revenue of Kshs. 1,948,615.345
which, as disclosed in Note 18.8 to the financral statements, comprises Kshs.953,O40,l70 earned 1n the
earlier years, but received In the year under revrew and Kshs. 995,575,175 earned and received in the
year under review. No satisfactory explanation was provided for recognizing thrs category of revenue
on cash basis. Further, the revenue of 995,575,175 differs with an amount of 2,599,885,633 calculated
below using data presented rn table lon passenger and freight traffic, under management drscussron
and analysis, resulting in an unexplained variance of Kshs. 1,604,310,458.

lnlernational r 9lsr079
2,447,967Local

Expected APSC 2.599,885,633

ln addition, the schedule of air passengers charge provided for audit verification did not reflect details
of the months the revenue related to, thus castinq doubt on the completeness of the amounts.
ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of air passenger service charge of Kshs.
1.948,615,345 could not be confirmed.

2.0. Unsupported Rental Revenue

The statement of financial performance reflects rental revenue amount of Kshs.36,469,093 whrch, as
disclosed in Note 18.10 to the frnancral statements, includes Kshs.33,190,126 earned in five (5) stations.
However, the supporting rental revenue schedules for the five stations show revenue amounting to
Kshs.3l,58Z326resulting in an unexplained variance of Kshs.2,008,948 as detailed below:

Embakasr 940,000 934 374 1,626

440,534,060

USD 50

Kshs.600

Nyali

Mrrrtlnr Staff

EASA

3,590,000

3,952,500

21,990,700

3,555.000

2,596,000

21,677,952

r,356,500

312.748

135,000

Total 33,190,125 31,578,326 2,OO8,948

M rritrn i- Non - Staf f 2,616,926 2,820,000 203.O74
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In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of rental revenue of Kshs.36,496,093 could not be
confirmed.

3.0. lnaccuracy of Employee Costs

the statement oI f inanc ra, performance rerlects employee cosrs arrount o' Kshs 2.633,177,0g]an rncrease
by Kshs. 102,288,490 from the Kshs. 2,530,888,601 reported in prevtous year. However, figure 8 on staff
statistics trend, under management drscussron and analysis, rndrcates that the overall increase of staff
was by 7 employees (782 rn June. 2022 - 115 in June, 2021), whrle staff list provided in support of staff
statistics rndrcated there was an increase of 47 emp oyees.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the employee costs amount of Kshs.2,633,172091
could not be conf rrmed.

4.0. Remuneration of Directors

The statement of financial performance reflects remuneration of Directors amount of Kshs.26,728,902,
compared to Kshs.13,582,587 in the previous year. The expenditure includes an amount of Kshs.53,625,
being tickets cancellation charges. which was a nugatory expenditure to the Authority, and Kshs.
1,645,318 pard to two Board Members for an overseas seminar that was to be held between 18 July,2022
and 22 July 2022. whtcf, was outside the year under revrew. Management did not explarn why the latter
expenditure was accrued in the financial statements yet the service had not been incurred.
ln the ctrcumstances, the accuracy and propriety of remuneration of Directors' expenditure of
Kshs.26.728,902 could not be confrrmed.

5.0. Current Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position, and as disclosed in Note 18.24 to the flnancial statements, reflects
current receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.802,505,014 which comprises gross
receivables balance of Kshs. 1,557,538,275 less provrsions of Kshs 755,033,261. However, the following
anomalies were noted:

5.1. Balance Due from Kenya Revenue Authority

The gross balance of Kshs.1,557,538,275 includes domestic operators balance of Kshs.1,367,325,370 which
further includes a balance of Kshs.1,l96,lll ,022 recervable from Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA), being
unremitted revenue collected by KRA on behalf of the Authority. Review of the supporting age analysis
indicated that part of the atter balance had been outstanding for more than one year. lt is not clear why
KRA did not remit the balance to the Authority upon collection.

Further, and as indicated in the supportrnq schedule, the balance of Kshs. l,196,lll ,O22 doe from KRA is
net of an unsupported and unexplained negative adlustment of Kshs.2,110,419,203.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and validity of balance due from KRA of Kshs. 1,196,111 ,O22 could not
be confirmed.

5.2. Balance Due from Kenya Airports Authority

lncluded in the domestic operator's ba lance of Kshs.1,367,325,37Ois abalance of Kshs 20,995,240 due from
Kenya Airports Authority (KAA). However. records at KAA indicated that a balance of Kshs.980,066,777
was owed to Kenya Civil Aviation Authority as at 30 June,2022, resulting in an unexplained variance of
Kshs 959,1ll .537.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the balance of Kshs.20,955,240 due from Kenya
Airport Authority could not be confirmed.

5.3. Debt Owed by the National Carrier (Kenya Airways)

In the audit report for the previous year, rt was reported that a balance of Kshs.218.866,028 owed by the
National Carrier - Kenya Airways, representrng 21% of the recervables for that year had been outstanding
for a long period. The amount has however, not been included in the current year balances.
Management did not provide supporting documentation showing how the debt was cleared from the
Authonty's records as the balance could not be traced in the supporting schedule for domestic operators
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as at 30 June. 2022

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the reported current recervables from exchange
transactions could not be confirmed.

5.4. lnadequate Bad Debts Provision Allowance

Review of the receivables age analysis indicates that the receivables gross balance of Kshs. 1,557,538,275
rncludes receivables totaling to Kshs. 1,404,943,062 that had been outstanding for more than three (3)
years as analyzed below:

Domestic Operators 1,361,325,310 1 .242 ,467 ,590 90v,

Foreign OpeEtors 163,644,664

Students D€btors 26.568,271 10.403,683 390/.

However, and as indicated in Note 18.24 to the frnancral statements, a provision for bad debts amount-
ing to Kshs. 755.033,262 which was an increase of Kshs.'198,492,410 from the previous year, was made
against current receivables from exchange transactions. The provision allowance is therefore inadequate.

In the crrcumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of current receivables from exchange transactions
net balance of Kshs.802,505,014 could not be confirmed.

6.O. Plant, Property and Equipment

The statement of financial position, and as disclosed in Note i8.28(a) to the financial statements, reflects
property, plant and equipment balance of Ksh 17,803,708,412. However, the following anomalies were
noted:

6.1. Motor Vehicles Excluded from Property, Plant and Equipment

The balance of Kshs.]2803,708,412 includes motor vehicles balance of 78,527,760 which excludes Ksh
6,300,000 relating to the following vehicles:

3

Balance per
Financial

Statements
Kshs.

Balance
Outstanding for

Over 3 Years
Kshs.

S/No. Category Proportion

2 152,O71.789 93%
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Toyota Hiace

Toyota H ace 2 0r8

2018

2.5 diesel

2.5 diesel

microbus

microbus

3,300,00 0

3,000,000

YearMake cc Bod Type

6,300,000

Amount
(Kshs.)

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of motor vehicles balance of Kshs.78,521,670 could
not be conf irmed.

6.2. Lack of Ownership Documents for Land and Buildings

The balance of Kshs. 17,803,708,412 also includes land and bu ldings balances of Kshs. 11,497,850,000 and
Kshs. 3,222,9]O,O33 respectlvely. However, as reported previous y, ownership documents for thirty-one
(31) housing units 1n Nyali, Mombasa, thirteen (13) hous ng units in Bamburi, Mombasa, one hundred and
thirty-two (132) acres of land at Centra Transm tting Stat on a ong Mombasa Road, and staff houses rn

Iviritini, Mombasa were not provided for audrt.

Further, ownership documents for a property at Walir, a plot at Bwagamoyo Kil fi, a plot at Lokichogio,
and plots at Embakas village were also not provided for audit.
Although l"lanagement indicated that preparat on of the ownership documents was underway at the
Ministry of Lands and Physical Plann ng, there was no ind catlon on when the process was lkely to be
completed.

In the circumstances, the ownersh p of the reported land and build ings balances could not be conf rmed.

6.3. Parcels of Land Allocated to Third Parties

As reported previously, review of land records revealed that four (4) parcels of land beonging to the
Authority were allocated and registered in the names of third partles as shown below.

lVtrto-Andei-N a Nde th a Settlement Scheme/161 l3 Acres

Bamburi Staff Housin Unknown

Central Stores in Nairobi 0 7733 Hectares

East African School of A 37 Acres

Further, the Public Investment Commrttee in its nineteenth report recommended that the Nationa Land
Commission revokes the t t es and revert them to the Authority and register all owned parcels of land n
rts name. In addition, the Committee had previously recommended that the National Land Commission
investigates the circumstances under which a plot in Na robi County was transferred from publlc to
private ownership. Although l\4anagement indrcated that it was pursuing a number of these matters in
court, progress made for each specific case had not been provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the ownership of the parcels of land cou d not be confirmed.

ation

i'r 1,, l! SIZC
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7.O. Unsupported Gain on Sale of Assets

The statement of financial performance reflects net ga n on sa e of assets amount of Kshs. 3,384,354
which, as disclosed in Note 18.20 to the f nancialstatements, comprises oain on sale of assets arnount of
Kshs. 5,057,717 and loss on sale of assets amount of Kshs. 1,673,363 The schedule provided rn support of
the amount of Kshs.5,057,717 shows a gain of Kshs.6O2,969 for a Toyota Hilux-D/Cab. However, no cost,
accumulated depreciation and net book value were provrded n the schedule and, therefore, it was not
possib e to confirm how the amount of the gain was arrive at.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the amount of Kshs.6O2,969 cou d not be confirmed.

8.0. Nugatory and lrregular Expenditure on Local Travel and lnternational
Travel

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services balance of Kshs.l,l6l,336,718
wh ch, as disclosed in Note 18.13 to the financial statements, includes local travel amount of Kshs.
47,399,420 which further ncludes tickets cancellation charges amount of Kshs.144,765 that was, there
fore, a nugatory charge to the Authority. The balance also includes international travel amount of
Ks1,s.42,288,592 which further includes tickets cance lation charges amount of Kshs.246,740 that was
therefore nugatory charge to the Authority. Further, the international travel amount includes claims
lodged by staff totaling to Kshs.4,625,811, an indication that staff were not issued w th imprests, but were
instead allowed to claim for the expenditure. lt was not explained why the staff were allowed to f nance
the expenses yet they were on officia assignments.

n the circumstances, the proprrety of the expenditure of Kshs. 5,0]2316 could not be conf rmed.

9.O. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Cash Flow
The following naccuracies were noted in the statement of cash flow

Operat ng Cash Flow before Working Cap-
tal Chanqes

(6 768,708)

lncrease in Recervables (Exchange Transac-
tions

(3,814,091)

Net Cash from O eratrn Activit es 2,019,931,07 2

Increase in Cash and Cash E uivalents 1,390,174,447

Cash and Cash Equ valents at the end of the
year

3,r63,r03,3r5

_ _ - 2,481.848.782

r,852,092,157

3,625,021,425 \461 ,911 ,1 tO )

961.160,267 961,928.975

(s06,692745) (308,206,33s) (198,491 0)

lncrease rn Employee Benef t Ob gation 46,224,427 50,058,518

lncrease in Current Provision r,638,484.323 1,891 866,182 2s3,381 ,859

(461 ,917 ,710)

(46r,912710)

Amount as
per Statement of
Cash Flows Kshs.

Amount
Recomputed

(Kshs. )
Variance (Kshs.)

Item
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ln the crrcumstances, the accuracy of the statement of cash flows could not be confirmed.
The audit was conducted n accordance with nternationa Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions
(lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya C v I Aviatron Authority Management n accordance with ISSAI
l30 on Code of Ethics. have fulfilled other ethlcal respons b lities in accordance with the ISSAI and in

accordance with other ethica requirements app icable to performing audits of f nancia statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evrdence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provlde a basis
for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key Sudit matters are those matters that, in my professional ludgment, are of most signtficance in the
audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Unresolved Prior Year Matters
ln the audit report for the previous year, several issues were rarsed under the Report on Financial
Statements. However, review of the auditor's recommendations implementation status report revealed
that the issues remained unresolved as at 30 June, 2A22. No satisfactory reasons were g ven for not
reso vrng the prior year's audit issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF
PUBLIC RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures performed, except
for the matters described in the Basis for Conc usion on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that public resources have not been appiied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1.0. Non-Prepalation of Separate Financial Statements for Car Loan and
Mortgage

Schemes

During the year under review, Management did not prepare separate financial statements for the Car
Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund. However, the Fund's operations were reported together with the
A-thonty's f ndnc id I staLe'nents.

Th s contravened Regulation 221(1) of the Publ c Finance Management (Nationai Government)
Regulations,2015 which states that the Accounting Officer for a National Government entity shall
prepare and submit annuai financialand non financial statements in the format gazetted by the Cabinet
Secretary within three months to the Auditor-Genera with copies to the responsible Cabinet Secretary
and The Nationa Treasury.

In the circumstances, l.4anagement was in breach of the Iaw.

2.0. Non-remittance of Statutory Deductions

The statement of financia posit on reflects employee benefit obl gation balance of Kshs.2]0,015,456
which, as disclosed ln Note 18.32 to the financial statements, includes Kshs. ],098,692 in respect of
various payroll deduct ons that were due but had not been remitted to their respective beneficiaries as
ana lyzed below,
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PAYE Staff 479,303

ln the circumstances, the Authority risks suffering interest and penalties due to non-remittance of
statutory deductions.
The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that icompiy with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the activities,
financial transactions and nformation reflected in the financial statements are in compliance, in all
materlal respects, with the authorities that govern them. i believe that the audit evidence I have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(])(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit procedures performed,
I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls, risk
management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The aud it was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards require that I plan
and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of rnternal
control, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all material respects. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and for maintaining
effective nternal control as [.4anagement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and overallgovernance.
In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Authority's ability to
continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to sustainability of services and
using the applicable basis of accounting, unless Management is aware of the rntention to terminate the
Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the Auditor-General in
accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Pub ic Audit Act, 2015.
ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial transactions,
and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the authorities which govern
them, and that pubiic resources are applied in an effective way.
The Board of Directors rs responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with relevant legislative and
regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems are in place to address key roles
and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and
effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit oblectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

Payroll Deductions - Cheques 527,182

Easa NHIF 400

Easa PAYE Liability 9r ,807

Description Amount Kshs.

Total 1,098,692
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that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions of Sectron 48 of the Public Audit Act,2015
and submit the audit reoort in compiiance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance
rs a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance wth lSSAls
will always detect a matenal misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can anse from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to tnfluence the economic decistons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
tn additron to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and performed to
express a conclusron about whether, in al material respects. the activities. financral transactions and
information reflected rn the financtal statements are in compliance with the authoritles that govern
them and that public resources are applred rn an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of
Article 229(6) of the Constrtutron and submit the audit report in complrance with Article 229(7) of lne
Constitution.

Further. in plannrng and performing the audit of the financial statements and audrt of compliance, I

consider tnternal control rn order to give an assurance on the effectiveness of internal controls, risk
management and overall governance processes and systems in accordance with the provisrons of
Sectron 7(1Xa) of the Public Audrt Act,2Ol5 and submit the audit report in compliance wrth Article
229(1) of the Constitutlon. My consideratron of the internal control would not necessanly disciose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A materialweakness
is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that
would be material in relation to the financral statements being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functrons.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect misstatements and
instances of non-compliance. Also, prolections of any evaluation of effectrveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the Authority's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audrt conducted in accordance with ISSA s, I exercise professionaliudgement and maintain
professional skepticrsm throughout the audlt. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the f nancial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audrt procedures responsrve to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is suffictent and appropriate to provrde a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve colluslon, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal
control.
Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting polrcies used and the reasonableness of accounttng
estimates and related drsclosures made by the Management.
Conclude on the appropnateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of accountrng
and, based on the aud it evidence obtained, whether a matenal u ncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast stgniftcant doubt on the Authority's abrlity to continue to sustarn services.
lf I conclude that a material uncertatnty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the frnancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinron. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to sustarn servrces.
Evaluate the overall oresentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audrt evidence regarding the financial information and busrness
activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.
Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.
lcommunicate with the lVanaqement regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signifrcant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that are identified during the audit.
I also provide Management w th a statement that lhave complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate w th them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, re ated safeguards.

CPA v cBs
AUDITOR GENERAL
Nairobi
I3th June, 2023
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13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Note 2022 2021

Revenue f rom Non-Exchange Transactions

Licenses and Permits

Air Passenger Service Charge

Sub-Iot!l

Reyenue lrom Exchange Transactlons

Rendering of Services

Rental Revenue

Finance lncome

Other Revenue

Sub-Totrl

Expanse3

Use of Goods & Services

Employee Costs

Remuneration of Directors

Depreciation and Amortlzation Expense

Repairs and f4aintenance

Contracted Services

L

r8.8 -l

Kshs

44r

r,948,615,345

2,492,117142

Kshs

429,414,526 
.

911.441.475.

r,140,8s6,@o

3,146,776,794
I

18.9

18.10

18.12

r8.13

18.15

18.16

18.17

4,479,507,553

36,496,093

35.91't.479

4617.793

r,r6r,336,7r8

2,633J72091

26,728,902

785,773.120

32,852,865

83,010,600

968.382

1,26!,608,6ar

782,648,198.

2,530,888,50r

r3,s82,587,

866,107,488

450,6r3,r88

171.035.043

482,495,192

173,028,388

Finance Costs 18.19 74,341,569 80.r76.626

d550,592,918

l8J4

Total Revenue 4,604,464,6415,953,0r0,ro0

Total Expenses 4,928,927,0815,303,OO6,63r

Sub-Total

Othe? G!lns/(Lors.5)

Gain on Sale of Assets

1,650,oo3,469 (324,462,419)

Loss on Sale of Assets

18.20(a) 5,O57,717
I

0,673,363)r8.20(b)

Gain on Foreign Exchange Transactions 18.20(c) 243,825.329

(82123,631)

(5,8r4,09r)

3,420,000

Mr Brown nde

Chairman of the Board

309,785,524

(r2,509,879)Loss on Foreign Exchange Transactions r8.20(d)

Amortisation of Accrued Leave Days 18.21(a)

lncrease in Accrued Leave oays r8.2(b)

Amortization of Capital Grant 18.21(c)

Amortization of Debtors

Surplus Boloro 90% Romlttlnco

Remission to the National Treasury (Provision) 18.22

n p.r!tes 8 to 45 form an ntegral part of these Frnanc a Stateme
were s gneLi on behalf of the Board of Directors by

-f;-

23,926,601

(3,26O,t91)

The noies set out o

"'2%'u
Emrle N. Arao
Director General

e Fin,rncial Sl.rlernents set

CPA Joseph K. Chebunge
Director Corporate Services

r8.2r(d) 2,986,723

I,812,682,15!

0.63r.413.938)

(Dericit) Surplus for the Year r8r,268,2ts (3,260,193)

,.,. ?Sl5ler: CPAK Me

Date.... Sn rz3 . c,ut3S lrr-r



flhri\r,rLit:r rl iL ll r,lli ,illtl l, iti'rill,^.\l lllllli,li,Ti\l lll ;l::

14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30

JUNE 2022

KshsKshsAssets

Current A$at3

3,r63,103,3r5 1.772.928.869r8.23Cash and Cash Equivalents

494299.678t8.24 802,s05,0r3current Receivables f ron'f Exchange Transactions

682,771,617 572,251,89918.25Receivables
Transactions

from Non-Exchanqe

24.411.76318.26 2r,870,386lnventories

18.27Tax Recoverable

llon-Cu?ent Assets

2070,385

17.803.708.412 r8,080,031,60818.29Property. Plant and Equiiment

18.29 22,595,O17 7t.328.3r6lntangible Assets

r7,&16,30!,429Iotrl Non-Cune

Ll!bllltles

r8J51J59,924

Current Llabilitles

r8.30 851,136J70 862,418,029Trade and Other Payables

r4.105.34318.31 14,105,343Ref undable Deposits f rom Customers

207,154.261 157,095,743Employee Benefit Obligdtion 18.32

18.33 182.324,356 182,324,356Current Portion of Borrowings

258,676,220'18.34 2.150,542,402Current Prcvisions

Non-Curllnt UlUlltlat

18.35 1,664,376,246 1,846,700,602Borrowings

Not A$.ts

18.36 8.318.582.978 8,308,682,978Revaluation Reserves

18.37 133,380,000 136,800,000Capital Fund - Governmr rnt Grant

18.38 8,914,952,OO4 q r(q q1q r17Accumulated Surplus

Note 2022 2021

Iotal Current Assets 4,670,2s0,331 2.870.962,592

Total Assets 22.496.553,760 21,O22 322,516

Total Current Liabilities 3.405,262.532 1,474.619,690

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Li.rbilities

1 ,664,37 6,246

5,069,618,778

1.846. /00,602

3,321 .320 ,292

Total Net As5ets

Total Net Assets.rnd Liabilities

17 ,426,914 ,9A2

22,496,553,760

17 ,7 01 .OO2,224

21,O22.122,516

Il'., r .]ancral)la erpnl\ \er oLl o pdgas ' 6

^% '---
were signed on behall of odrd of Drrectors by

Em e N. Arao
Director Gene

CPA Joseph K. Chebunqer Mr Brown On
Chairman of

ego , MBS

Dat-"

al Director Corporatg Se

lpra lTHsls
rvices
&'aOr:-
ltat-5 Date

the Board

l'_lpo
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15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Kshs Kshs Kshs lGht

Bdrnc. I rt In J[ly 2O2O 8,12/f,8Oa,OO5 608,llt,lll I,Za8,tOg,lg7 17,ritl,046,,,26

Revaluation Reserve Adjustment 18.36 06,r21.028) 06,r21,028)

Remittance of Surplus 18.38 (663.380) (663,380)

Accumulated Surplus Adjust-
ment

18.38 (47r,333,333) 471,333,333

Surplus for the Period 8.22 (3.260.r93) (3.260J93)

Balance as al lO June 2O2I 8,3O8,682,978 116,800,OO0 9,255,519,247 17,701,OO2,225

Adiustments During the Year 18.35 9.900.000 9,900,000

Amortization of Govt Grant 18.21 (3,420,0OO) (3.420.000)

Accumulated Surplus Adjust-
ment

18.38 (461.835,458) (46r,835.458)

Surplus for the Period 8.22 r8r,268,2r5 r8r,268,2rs

Note Revalualion
Reselve

Government
Grants

Reserve

Accumulaled
Surplus

Total

Balance as at 3oth June
2022

8,3r8,582,978 r33,380,000 8,974,952,004 '17,426,914,982
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16. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

$.22 r8r,268,215 (3,260.r93)Net Surplus from Operation6

80,r76,62618.19 74,341.569Finance Costs

l8.ll (35.971,479) (83,010,600)Finance lncome

Adlusted ,or :

18.24 r98,492,410 r2r,610,913lncrease in Provision for Doubtful Debts

710,621,325 720.349.757Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment 18.16

18.16 75,151,795 145,757,731Amortization of lntangible Assets

r8.21(b) 3,814,09rlncrease in Provision for Leave Days

18.21(c) (3,420,000)Amortization of Capital Gratrt

18.20(a) 5,O57,117Gain on Sale ot Assets

r8.20(b) (r,673,363)Loss on Sale of Assets

18.19 (7 4,341,569 ) (80,r76,626)lnterest Expense

ances 18.11 35,971,479 83,0r0,500lnterest lncome on Bank Ba

(20r,383,215) (r.3s6,394,039)Surplus Remitted 18.34/38

(3,915,811)Opfistlng proflt berore wo*lng Clpltal chlngos 96I,160,267

18.24 (s06.692745) (67,428,306)lncrease in Receivables (Exchange Transactrons)

0r0.519,718) (98.083,338)lncrease in Receivables (Noh-Exchange Transactions) 18.25

(8.329.725)(lncrease)/ Decrease in lnventories 14.26 2.541.377

86.37r,208lncrease/ (Decrease) in tra& and other Payables 18.30 01.82r.2r7)

163,000r8.31lncrease in Refundable Customer Deposits

18.32 46,2M,427 008.552.809)lncrease/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits Obligations

r8.34 r.638.484.323lncrease in Current Provisions

2,019,911,O72 (562795,801)N.l C.sh ftom Op.]rtlng Aatlvltl.r

Cash used ln lnvestlng Actlvltles
(762.774,296)Purchase of Property, Plant fnd Equipment 18.28 (429,990,906)

(26,145,067)Purchase of lntangible Assets 18.29 Q6.418.496)

Proceeds on Disposal of Assets 8.20 8,977J33

(147,432,269' (788,919,363)Total Cash used ln lnyestlng Actlvltles

C.dr tlow irom Flnanclng Aictlvltl.s

18.35 (182.324,ss6) (r86,020,493)Loans Repayment

(186,O2O,49!)N.t Cr3h flow lrom Flnrncl rg Actlvltl.s (r82,!24,156)

1.390.174.447 o.542,7 35.657)lncrease / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

he Start of the Year r8.23 1,772,928,868 3.3t5564,525Cash & Cash Equivalents at

Cash trom Operating Activities Note

2022

Kshs

2021

Kshs

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 3,163,103,315 1,772,928,468

The F nan tal dlernents set olrt on paqes l-6 were siqned on behalf of the Board o tors by

-)--:.-
Emrle N Arao
Director General

CPA .loseph K. Chebunge
Director Corporate Services

tTBgfs'l1$8,
Chairman of the Board
Mr. Brown ndego,

Date a=lr lrur: DateES )LY):\ .



17. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL

AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2022

) i)) ) )a)) 242 ) 2 0.r:

Revenue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

i rrfls,i riril flrrr]r ti ll- l lr llt-. 3al.o5l.;6-r ,1-r i 80' 8 i1 tr! ltl J;'i

A r Passenger Servrce
Charge

995,9r0.355 995.9r0.355 r,948.6r5.145 952.704,990 96"/" b

Ra,fajer fq ol Sitrv ( eS .1 .'!0 .19-1 5t,ai 241 027 90ra 4 5ll 521 ,165 4 179 507 551 i52 0r-l 911l

Rental Revenue 30,r48,9r8 3,3r2,655 03 33 461513 36.496,093 3.034,520 9%

6r.6r! r!/ r20.000.000) 4t 655157 7\97) 41q
'5 

4P11,7! r td16

Other lncorne 1.246 899 360 000 r,606,899 8.611.793 7 0r0.894 436% d

Jotal Revenlre 5 (,25 /0U.U 1i, 362.491.3t8 5 987806.2r3 6 q53 010100 965 203 ll88 l(r?;

Other Sources

I /30 a..1ll 0t,l ( 122.\O4./AA) r.058.043 239 281,900 r08 7 76 )411.,1 I 1,')i

Grand Total Revenue 2406,0s6,8s4 G6A.2A7.4O2) 7 .a 45 849.452 7.234,914,248 1.14l,341 .O19

L x pef5e5

llse of Goods & Servrces I 083 855 589 60 7r4.85t 1,144.580,540 r.r6r.336,7r8 (16,756.r78) -14/. t

E n'p oyee Colt.r I ) I -:.lt r--: i.1"4 985 228) 2 9€,4 461 t-A€, 2 5_13 t77 0!I ll, ?8i i:5i

Remuneratron of D rectors 30 000 00c 30 000,000 26728.902 3,27r,098 l1% h

Derrrea at .ti ar.ir A.i._rrl
tat cr

6Eg:ri g q qi_c _i_iq 185 rI r2; t-rl rir:.-t-it

Reparrs and Marntenance 614 797142 r7.468,558 628 265.660 450,613,r88 )11.652,412 28%

LCntr.lateC 5er'., ae5 : 1, : :l:- | 797 grq )),'.1?)€i) 4? r7'0i6 c.i, j:1.i-'.1; C:l:l

F nance Costs 14.34).574 74.341,514 14 341 569 5 ao,A

Tota QeaLrrre'rl Ftr)i,rr i ., J.l lir,)_.r !..i ,1C.oE5.513 5 982.2j5 020 5 303 cc6 63r 6/9 2i3 -_i8t

Other Garns/Losses 162.678.684 (r62,678,684) r0070

Cap td ExDer'rdrtur.

Other Paymenls-Caprtal
Expendrlure

1.464.497 352 (400,892,920) 10F;644 432 456.409 40) 607,195,030 57vo m

TotJ E. I Fn I tl]rn ./4O(; O5a,ll54 (360 207 402) 7 445 849.452 5 759,4r6,011 I .t2 3./ 54 . / .\(:,

Surplus for the Perod 0 r,812,682,r53

OriginalBudget Adjustments FinalBudget Actual on
Compaiable
Basis

Perlormance
Difrerence Change

Description Note
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EXPLANATION OF MATERIAL DIFFERENCES
a) Licenses & Permits (16% Favourable Change): lmproved performances on a number of lines such

as tnspection of masts and Obstacles, Duty exemption processing fees, certificate of airworthiness

and Grant and renewal of AN4O Licence.

b) Arr Passenger Service Charge (96% Positive Change): These are actual remittances in the course

of the year.

c) Finance lncome (14% Negative Change). The decrease rs attributed to the lower interest from

deposits in Current Bank Accounts and the Staff Mortgage Account interest earnings.

d) Other tncome (436% Posrtive Change): lmprovement attributable to fees on skills development

levy exchange and technical support as well as other miscellaneous fees

e) Cash Reserves (73% Positive Change): The projected utiLizations of cash and bank balances

reserves to fund the capex was limited due to improved revenue performance.

f) Employee Costs (1'l% Posttive). The Authority was within the approved budget on Employee costs

and hence the savings therein due to the non - fil ing of vacant pos t ons in time during the year.

S) Remuneration of Board directors (11% Positive): There were vacancies in the beginning of the

financial year, which were filled up in the course of the financial year.

h) Depreciation and Amortisation (15% Positive): U nderutilization of capital/deve opment budget in

the course of the financial year.

r) Repairs and l4aintenance (28% Positrve). Prolected maintenance works drd not fall due and were

not entirely carried out in the course of the financial year.

l) Contracted Servrces (22o/o Favourable Change). Reduced activity levels due to on-going contracts

and engagement and slow implementation of some engagements following the COVlDlg

restflctions.
k) Other Gains/Losses (100% Positive Change): This is a book entry with regard to changes in foreign

exchange garns/losses, disposals and amortizations during the frnancial year.
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18. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I8.1 GENERAL INFORMATION
Kenya Civrl Avration Authority is established by and derrves its authority and accountab ty from Crvrl Av atron Act
2013, as amended by Crvil Avratron (Amendment) Act 2016. The entrly rs wholly owned by the Government of Kenya
and s dom ciled rn Kenya. The entrty's prncipal actrvity rs provrsion of Air Nav gallon Services in the Na rob Fltght
lnformat on Region, Regulation of the Avlat on industry in Kenya and trainrng of the Aviation Personne .

18.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF

PREPARATION

The ftnancia statements have been prepared on d histor cal cost basis except for the measurement at re-valued
amounts of certain rtems of property, plant and equrpment, marketab e secunt es and frnancia tnstruments at fair
value, imparred assets at therr estrmated recoverable amounts and actudrially determined ltabtlrfres at therr present
value. The preparatron of financral statements n conformrty wrth lnternattonal Publlc Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS) a ows the use of estimates and assumptrons. lt also requrres management to exerc se ludqement rn the
process of applying the Author ty's accountrng polrcres. The areas rnvolvrng a higher degree of ludgement or com-
plexrty, or where assumptrons and estimates are signif cant to the financtal statements, are disclosed in Note 5 of
these financral statements.

The frnancral statements have been prepared and presented tn Kenyd Shrllrngs, whtch s the Funct onal and reporttng
currency of the Kenya Civil Avtat on Authoflty.

The ftnanctal statements have been prepared in accordance wrth the PF14 Act, the State Corporatrons Act Cap 446,
the Civil Avration Act No.2l oF 2013, f'4wongozo and lnternational publ c Sector Accounttng Standards 0PSAS) The
account ng po|cies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.
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18.3 ADOPTTON OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
New and amendecl stancldr(is dnd nterrjretatrons I ssue eftect ve n the year ended 3A J$Q 2422

PsASll aleferre(j llre a0p a,ltron date ol stanrl,rrris from lst.lJnua(y 2022 ot-l'rrrc1 to COV D l9 Th s v,',ls done

lo Orov (j-" ent lr(,s ,,!'rth t m{, to effecl,v0 y af]p v ilrt std,rddr(ls lhe Llt,ferra ',^j,ls'let for lst l,rrrlrdry 2l)2.J

New and arnended stdncl.rrds and rnterDretatroos n ssu€r but nol yet effect ve n the year ended J0 June

)i)))

Appllcable: l'! January 2O23i

The objective of IPSAS 4l rs to estabIsh pflnctples for the financial reporting of frnanclal assets

and llabilitieS that will present relevant and useFul informatlon to users of financial statements

for therr assessment of the amounts. trmrng and uncertainty of an Entity's Future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of frnancral statements wlth more useful information than IPSAS 29. by

. Applyins a single c assification and measurement model for financial assets that

considers the characteristlcs of the asset's cash flows and the objective for which

the asset ls heldl

Applyrng a single forward-lookinq expected credlt loss model that is aoplicable to

all frnancial rnstruments subJect to rmpairment testing, and

. Applytng an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedgrng ar-

ranqements in scope of the guidance. The mode develops a strong link between

an Entrty s risk management strategies and the accounting treatment for lnstru-

ments held as part of the risk management strategy.
The above standard did not rmpact reporting tn the current financlal year.

tPsAs 4l:

Frnancral

nstrurTra:fts

Appllcable: lr Jantary 2023

The obJective of thrs Standard ts to lmprove the relevance, faithful representatlveness and com-

parability of the information that a reporting Ent ty provrdes in its f nancial statements about

socral benefits. The information provrded should help users of the frnanclal statements and

qeneral-purpose financial reports assess:
(a) The nature of such social benefits provrded by the Entity.

(b) The key features ot the operatron of those social benefit schemes, and

(c) The impact of such soctal benefits provided on the Entity's Frnancial performance,

financral position and cash flows.

The above standard did not imoact reporting in the current financial year.

tPsAs 42:

Soc a

Benefrt s
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Amend
ments
to Ot her
PSAS

resu t ng
from
IPSAS 4I
F nancral
nst ru men t s

Appllcable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the gutdance related to the components of bor-
rowing costs which were tnadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding rliustrative examptes on hedging and credit risk

whlch were rnadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30. to update the guidance for accounting for financial guar-

antee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33. to update the gurdance on classifyrnq financral instruments on
inrtial adoptron of accrual basrs IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was

issued.

The above standard drd not impact reportlng in the current financial year.

Other rm
provernents
tO IPSAS

App cable F January 2O2t
. IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Fnancial lnformation about the General Government Sector.
Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).
' IPSAS 39. Employee Beneftts

Now deletes the term composite soctal secuflty benefits as it is no longer deFined in IPSAS.
. IPSAS 29: Flnanclal lnstruments: Recognltlon and l.leasuiement Standard no longer rn-

cluded in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable
from l" January 2023

The above standard did not impact reporting in the current financtal year.

IPSAS 4] App cable 7 Jenuary 2025
The standard sets out the princrples For the recognitton, measurement, presentation, and dis-
closure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant tnforma-
tion an a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This tnformation grves a basrs for
users of financral

statements to assess the effect that leases have on the ftnancial posttion, financial performance

and cash flows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entitres to recognise, measure and present lnformatron on right of
use assets and lease Iabilities.

The above standard did not rmpact reporting rn the current financial year.

IPSAS 44

Non- Crrr-

rent Assets

Held for

Sale and

Discontrn-

ued
Operat ons

App cable P January m25
The Standard requrres,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the lower of
carryrng amount and farr value less costs to sell and the deprectatron of such assets to cease

and:

Assets that meet the crite(a to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately in the
statement of frnancial positron and the results of discontrnued operations to be presented

separately in the statement of financial performance.

The above standard did not rmpact reporting rn the current finan6ial year.

Standard Effective date and impact:

Standard Ettective date and impact:

iii. Early adoption of standards
Tlro Author ly (l d not (\rr y a(lot)t dny Icw or ame|ded stand,lr(ls t\yed 2()21- 2A))
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18.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition i) Revenue from non-
exchange transactions
Licences and Permits

The Author ty recognizes revenues from licences and
perm ts when the event occurs and the asset recoqnrtron
cnter a are met. To the extent that there s d reldted

cond tion attached lhat wou d grve nse lo a rabrllty

to repay the amount, deferred rncome is recognrzed
nslead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are
recognrzed when rt s probable that the future economtc
benefits or service potentral assoc ated w th the asset

wrll flow to the Authoflty and the fa r value of the asset

can b,e rneasured reliab y

Transfers from other government entities
Revenues from non-exchange transactrons w th other
government entrtres are measured at fa r value and
recogn zed on obta ning control of the asset (cash,

goods, servrces and property) rF the transfer s lree from
condrtrons and rt is probable that the econom c beneflts
or service potenl al related Lo the asset will flow to lhe
entity and can be measured re rably.

Recurrent grants are recogn zed rn the statement of
comprehens ve rncome.

Development,/cdprtal grants are recogn zed rn the
statement of financ al pos tion and real sed tn the
statement of comorehens ve ncorne over the useful liFe

of the assets that has been acqurred using such funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services
The Authority recognizes revenue from renderrng of
services by reference to the stage of comp etron when
the outcome of the transaction can be est mated relrab y

The stage of comp etron rs measured by reference to
labour hours rncurred to date as a percentage of total
estrmated labour hours.
Where the contract outcome cannot be measured
rel ab y, revenue rs recognrzed only to the extent that the
e\pelses 1.J rpd a'e'ecovprdble.

lnterest income
lnterest rncome rs accrued usrng lhe efFectrve yreld

method. The effectrve yield d scounts estimaled future
cash recerpts through the expected lLfe of the frnancia

asset to that asset's net carryrng arnount. The method
applres th s yreld to the pflncrpa outstaodrrg to
delermlne rnterest ncome each penod.

Rental income
Rentai rncome ans ng from operalng leases on
nvestment properties rs accounted for on a Stralghl line

basis over the lease terms and ncluded n revenue

b) Budget lnformation

The or g nal budget for F\ 2021-22 was approved by

the KCAA Board oF Dlrectors on the 26lh Jaouary 2421

and forwarded to the Nationa Treasury through the
State Department oF Transport t was approved by the
Government on 30th Ju y 2021. Subsequent revrs ons

were made to the aDoroved budqet and approved by

the Board of Drreclors on the 2lst December 2021 it was

approved by the Government on 29th June 2022. The

revrsed budget was decreased by Ksh.365,167,402.00

due to a sca e down in the caprta budget. Some cap tal
projects were not feasrble to be completed dur ng the
f nancral year as prevrously protected.

The Authoflty's budget rs prepared on a d fferent basts

to the actual income and expendrture drsclosed tn

the frnancral statements. The financial statements are
prepared on accrual basis us ng a c assrf cation based

on the nature of expenses rn the statement of financla
performance. whereas the budget rs prepared on a

cash basrs The amounts rn the ftnanctal statements
were recast from the accrual basls to the cash basls and
reclassrfred by presentatron lo be on the same basls as

the approved budqel

A comoaflson of budqet and actual amounts, prepared

on a comparable basrs to the 6pproved budget, rs then
presented rn the statement of compartson of budget
and actual amounts. ln add tron to the Basrs drfference,
adtustments to amounts n the F nancral statements are

aiso made for differences rn the formats and class ftcal on
schemes adopted for the presentatron of the frnancral

statements and the approved budget

A statement to reconc e the actua amounts on
a comparab e basrs rncluded ln the statement of
compar son of budqet and actua amounts and the
actuals as per the statement of financral perFormance

has been presented under pages 5'6 of these frnanc al

stalements.

c) Taxes

Current lncome Tax

Current rncome tax assets and abrlrtres for lhe current
penod are measured at lhe amount expected to be
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recovered from or paid to the taxation author t es. The
tax rates and tax Jaws used to comoute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reportrng date rn the area where the Authonty operates
and qenerates taxable incorne.

Current income tax relatrng to items recognrzed directly
in net assets s recognized in net assets and not in the
slatement oF financial performance. Management
periodrcaily evaluates posttions taken tn the tax returns
with resoect to srtuatrons rn which appltcable tax
regulations are sublect to nterpretation and establtshes
provisions where appropflate

d) Property, Plant and Equipment

All property, plant and equ pment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that rs directly attrlbutable
lo the acquisitron of the 1tems. When sign ftcant parts
of property, plant and equrpment are requtred to be
replaced at intervals, the Authority recogntzes such
parts as individual assets with specrfic useful ltves and
depreciates them accordingly. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as
rncurred. Where an asset is acqurred in a non-exchange
transaction for nil or nominal consrderatron the asset is

initrally measured at its farr value.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-ltne basts to
write down the cost/ reva ued values of each asset to
its residual value over its estimated useful life us ng the
following:

Depreoation rs charged rn full to a I the assets duflng
the year of acquisitron, whrle none 1s charged during the
year of disposal.

The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability
at the inception of the lease. The llability recognrzed is

measured as the present value of the Future minimum
lease payments at inrtral recognrtron.

Subsequent tb inrtial recogn tron, lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction
oF the lease liability so as to achreve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognized as finance costs rn surplus or
deFrcrt.

An asset held under a fnance lease rs depreciated
over lhe useful life oF the asset. However, f there is

no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtarn
ownershrp of the asset by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful Ife of the asset and the lease term.

Operat ng leases are leases that do not transfer
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased rtem to the Entity. Operating
lease payments are recognrzed as an operatrng expense
in surplus or deficlt on a strarght-line basrs over the lease
term

f) Intangible Assets

lntangrble assets acqurred separately are rnttially
recognrzed at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired rn a non-exchange transactron rs therr fair
value at the date of the exchange. Following initial
recognition. intangrble assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortrzatron and accumulated rmpairment
losses. lnternally generated rntangible assets, excluding
capitalrzed development costs. are not caprtalrzed and
expendrture rs reflected rn surplus or defrcrt rn the per od
n which the expenditure rs rncurred.

e) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substanttally all
of the risks and benefrts incrdental to ownership of the
eased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance
lease are capitalized at the commencement of the lease
at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the future mrnrmum lease payments.

II No.ott,..r!

The useful hfe of the intangible assets ts assessed as
erther finrte or rndef inrte

h) Research and development
costs

The Authority expenses research costs as incurred
Development costs on an rndivrdual protect are
recognized as intangrble assets when the Authority can
demonstrate:

i) The technical feasib ity of completing the asset so
that the asset wilL be available for use or sale

ii) lts intentron to complete and rts ab lrty to use or
sell the asset rir) How the asset wrll generate future
economic benefits or service potential rv) The
avarlabrlrty of resources to complete the asset

v) The ability to measure reliaby the expendtture
dunng development.

Buildings

Air Navigation Equip

Plant & Other Equipment

,lnent

aitd faxes

40

t0
5

3

5

5

Nit

Computers, copiers

Motor vehicles

Furniture and fittings
Freehold land
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Follow nq rnrtra recognition of an asset, the asset

is carried at cost ess any accumulated amortlzatlon
and accumuLated rmpa rment losses. Amort zatlon of
the asset begrns when development rs complete, and

the assel is avar able for use. lt is amortlzed over the
peflod of expected future benefrt. Dunng the perrod of
development. lhe asset is tested for mparrment annually
wrth any imparrment osses recogntzed immedrate y tn

surplus or deF crt

g) Financial lnstruments i)
Financial Assets lnitial Recognition
and Measurement
Frnancral assets w thrn the scope of IPSAS 29 Frnancra

lnstruments: Recogn tron and Measurement are classtfted

as frnancral assets at fair value through surplus or defrcit,
loans and recervdbles hedto-matunty rnvestments or
avarlab e-for-sale Frnancial assets, as appropriate. The

Ent ty delermrnes the classrfrcatron of rts frnancral assets

at nitial recoqnrtron

Loans and receivables
Loans dnd recervables are non-dervative finafcral
assets with fixed or determ nable payments that are not
quoted n an actrve market. AFter tnrtral measurement,
such frnancral assets are subsequently measured at
amortrzed cost usrng the eFfecl ve rnterest method, less

rmoarrment. Amort zed cost s calcu ated by takrng nto
account any drscount or prem um on acqutsitton and fees

or costs that are an integral part of the effecl ve rnterest
rate. Losses arrsrnq from impatrment are recognrzed tn

the surp us or deficit.

lmpairment of financia! assets
The Authority assesses at each report ng date whether
there rs objeclive evrdence that a frnancral asset or class
of frnanoa assets is rmparred. A frnancra asset or class

of frnancial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and on y

rf, there s obtectrve evrdence of rmpatrment as a result

oF one or more events that has occurred after the inrtral

recognrtron of the asset (an ncurred 'loss event') and
that loss event has an impact on the estlrndted fulure
cash flows of the frnanc al asset or the class of frnancral

assets that can be reliably esl mated. Evidence of
rmpa rTnenl may nclude the followrnq ndrcalors:
. The debtors or a group of debtors are exper encrng

s gnrfrcanl financ al drffrcu ty
. Default or delrnquency rn rnterest or prrncrpal

payments
. The probabrhly that debtors wrll enter bankruptcy

or other f nancral reorgan zal on
. Observab e dala ndrcates a measurable decrease

rn estrmated future cash flows (e.9. changes n

arrears or econom c cond tions thdt correlate
wrth defaults)

rr ) Frnancral lrab rties nitral Recogntt on and
Measurement

class fred as f nancral abrlttres at fa r value through
surplus or deficrl or loans and borrowtngs, as

appropflate. The Authoflty determrnes the classtfrcatron
of its f nancral lidb tres at rnit al recognrtron

All financral abrlrtres are recognrzed inrtia ly at fa r va ue

and, rn the case of loans and borrowings, plus direct y
altr butab e transactron costs.

Loans and borrowing
After initial recognrtron, rnterest beanng loans and

borrowrngs are subsequently measured at amortrzed
cost using the effective nterest me[hod. Gatns and
losses dre recognzed ln surplus or defct whef the
liab ltres are derecogn zed as well as through the
effective rnterest method amortization process.

Amortrzed cost s calculated by takrng into account any
discount or premrum on acqu sttion and fees or costs
that are an rntegral part of the efFecttve rnterest rate.

h) lnventories

lnventory s measured at cosl upon rnlttal recognltlon
To the extenl thal inventory was rece ved through non

exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nomtnal
cost), the cost of the rnventory rs rts farr value at the date
of acqulsrt on.

After n tral recognrtion, rnventory is measured at the
lower of cost and net realrzabLe value. However, to
the extenl that a class of nventory s drstnbuted or
deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class

of rnventory s measured at the lower oF cost and current
replacement cost.

Net realrzable value s the est mated sell ng pflce tn the
ordrnary course of operatrons less the estimated costs
of completron and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sdle, exchange, or drstribution
nventor es are recogn zed as an expense when deployed
for ut lrzatron or consumpt on rn lhe ordinary course of
operatrons of the Author ty.

i) Provisions
Prov s ons are recognized when the Authority has a

present oblrgatron (legal or constructrve) as a result oF

a past event, t is probable that an outF ow of resources
embodvrnq economrc beneftls or servlce potent al

wril be requrred to settle the oblrgatron and a relrab e

estimate can be made of the amount of the oblrgatlon.

Where the Authonty expects a provrsron to be
reimbursed whether rn fu or n part, for example, under
an tnsurance contract, the rermbursement rs recogn zed
as a separate asset only when the reimbursement s

v rtua y certain The expense relatrng to any provision s

presented n the statement oF frnancral performance net
of any re mbursement

F nancral lrabrlities wrthrn the scope of lPSAS 29
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l) Contingent liabilities
The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability
but drscloses details of any contingencies in the notes
to the financial statements unless the possiblltty of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefils or
service potential rs remote. k) Contingent assets
The Authority does not recognize a conttngent asset.
but discloses details of a possible asset whose exrstence
is contrngent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertaln future events not whoily within
the control of the Authonty in the notes to the flnanclal
statements. Contingent assets are assessed contlnually
to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected n the financial statements. lf it has become
virtually certain that an rnflow of economic beneftts or
service potential will arrse and the asset's value can be
measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognized rn the financlal statements of the period in
which the chanqe occurs.

l) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

The Authonty creates and marntarns reserves in terms
of specific requrrements. These reserves include
Revaluation reserve (which aflses every time the
Authority revalues rts property, piant and equrpment
and intangibles assets). The Authority also maintains
retarned earnings reserve that grows or reduces from
one frnancial year to another depending on the ftnanclal
performance of the Authority

m) Changes in Accounting Policies
and Estimates
The Authority recognizes the effects of changes
in accountrng policy retrospectively. The effects of
changes in accounting policy are applied prospectlvelv
lf retrospective application is impracttcal.

n) Employee Beneflts Retirement
Benefit Plans
The Authority provrdes retrrement beneflts for its
employees. Defrned contributron plans are post,
employment benefrt plans under which the Authority
pays fixed contributrons into a separate scheme (a
fund), and wrll have no legal or constructrve obligation
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assels to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior peflods. The
contflbutions to fund obligations for the payment of
retirement benefits are charged agarnst rncome ln the
year in whrch they become payable.

o) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in toreign currencies are rnitrally accounted
for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of the
transaction. Trade credrtors or debtors denominated
in foreign currency are reported at the statement
of financial position reportrng date by applying the
exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising
from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting
of creditors at rates drfferent from those at which they
were initially recorded during the period, are recognized
as income or expenses rn the period in which they arise.

p) Borrowing Costs
Borrowrng costs are capitalrzed agarnst qualifying
assets as part of property, planl and equipment. Such
borrowing costs are cap tal zed over the period during
whrch the asset is berng acquired or constructed and
borrowings have been rncurred. Capitalization ceases
when constructron of the asset rs complete. Further
borrowing costs are charged to the statement of
frnancial performance.

q) Related Parties
The Authonty regards a related party as a person or
an ent ty with the abilrty to exert control ndrvidually
or lorntly. or to exercise signtficant tnfluence over the
Authonty, or vice versa. Members of key management
are regarded as related parties and comprise the Board
of Directors, the Drrector General, Executrve Directors
and senror managers.

r) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equrvalents compnse cash on hand and
cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and highly
lrquid rnvestments with an origrnal maturity of three
months or less, which are readrly convertrble to known
amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant nsk of
changes in value.
Bank account balances nclude amounts held at the
varous commercial banks at the end of the financtal
year.

s) Comparative Figures

Where necessary comparatrve figures for the prevtous
fnancial year have been amended or reconfigured to
conform to the requrred changes tn presentatton.

t) Subsequent Events
There have been no events subsequent to the financial
year end wrth a srqnifrcant rmpact on the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.
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18.5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND
EST!MAT!ON UNCERTAI NTY

SOURCES OF

adaptabr ty to changes in technology and

0rocesses

c) The nalure of the processes n whrch ihe asset ls

deployed

d) Avarlab ty of fundrng to replace the asset

e) Chanqes rn the market rn relation to the assel

Provisions
Provrsrons were rarsed and management determrned an

estrmate based on the tnformatton avdt able. Addttrona

disclosure ol these est mates of provistons ts included tn
Note no 23 and Nole no 33.

Provsrons are measured at the managemenls best

est mate of the expendrture requ red to settle the
ob gat on at lhe reporting date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is matena

Provisions for Doubtful Debts
The Author ty reviews rts debtors' portfoho regularly
to assess the lrkel hood of mparrment Spec f c dnd
General orov sron are mdde as per the rates estab)lrshed

by the Board

Provision for Obsolete, Defective and
Slow-moving Stocks
Mandgement rev ews ts stocks peflod ca y to assess

the ke hood of rmparrment

The preparatron of the Authority's frnanc al statements
rn conformty wrth PSAS requrres management lo
make ludgments est mates and assumptrons lhat
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

assets afd abrlrtres, and the drsclosure of contingent
rabrlrt es, at the end of the reportrng per od However.

uncertarnly about these assumptrons and estrmates
could resu t rn outcomes that requ re a mater al

adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
Iabllrty aFfected in future per ods

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptroos concern rrg the future and

other key sources of esl mat on uncertarnty at the
report ng date that have a s gnrfrcant risk of caus ng

a matenal adlustment to the carry ng dmounls of
assets and liab il es wrth n the next F nancra yedr are

described below. The AuthorLty based ils assumpt ons

and estrrnates on pdramelers ava lab e when lhe
financral stdtements were prepdred llowever.
ex sl ng c rcumstances and assumptlons dbout
future deve opments may chdnge due to market

changes or crrcumstances aristng beyond the control
of the Authonty Such changes are reFlected in the
assurnpt ons when they occur

Useful lives and residual values
The useful lrves and resdual vaues of assets are

assessed using lhe followlng rnd cators to lnForm

oolentral future use dnd vd ue from d sposdl:

a) The condrtron of the asset tlased on the assessment
of experts emp oyed by lhe EntLty

b) The nature of the asset, rts suscept brlrty and

18.6. Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies
(MDAs)

911,441,47500.00 oo.00 1.948.615,345

Kenya Airports
Authority r,948,515,345

KShs KShs KShs

r,948,615,345 00.00Tota I 00.00 1,948,615,34s 911,441,475

KShsKS hs

Amount
recognised
in capital
fund.

Total transfers
2021-22

Name Of The
Entity Sending The
Grant

Prior year
2020-2021

Amount
defeffed un-
der deferred
income

Amount
recognized to
Statement of Financial
performance

(The details of the reconci|ation have been included under Appendix I )
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18.7. Licenses, Permits, Fines & Clearances

k 
'1r..

Lrcence Ratrngs & Certifrcates 2r,568,298 19 516 822

T.,a' aA Grari'r1i :i:r.i iat .rri.. ll 5 /r, (l.ri ) )7 ))(, ) t'

AMEL Lrcences & Ratrngs r,802880 |,08r,680

A rcrdit Cert frc.te oF Reg 5tr,lt on 5 32U.,00 4 0',7 )Ofl

Certrf cate of Arrworth ness a5139 292 8r,788,823

Gr,rrt & Rene!n,d of Al"1O I (.,f te 82,18/ /rl!) 19 t) ) ., A4',

Grant & Renewa of AOC Certs 5168 440 5,924,300

3 .154r - ira

Duty Exempt on Processrng Fees 29.t21.524 27 345 720

(,tartt & Rene!.,,,r of A r Serv Ce L CeNaes 39.15(l /(,/ )6 /4\ t)t)3

Ad hoc /Perm t Clearances 22 A32 66A 6l 304,280

ApDroval of M.lr\ral5 200.000

lnsoectron of l'4asts & Obstacles 45.008,200 47,5r6,400

.rLre of jSQ ir.lr:Dor-oe'!lr:: :alJ .llil )t,(. t?1

AVSEC Fees/ Requlated Aqent/Screeners Fees 6 4q7000 3,942 000

l;r.lnt 3 Rener/n .rt ATO - ce'.aa., I.C2l-t.000

Approvai of Commercral Operatrons - (FOC) 27.453.497 24.634,974

lnfr nqement Not ces Fee 12,400.000 400 000

Approval oF Leases 3 6r0.462 3 937.640

Approva of Se[Lr ty Pro!]ranrnres r.075 0c0 985'JC3

UAS mport & Reg stratron 2.145,000 302 000

Ren.Cte A r j.loiI]lai Ce.t f aate 3-'rrl0llil ll! 0tl
UAS Tra nrng Organrzat on Approval &
Certrfrcatron

450.000

Lert t cal on Di -lAS Resa ers & l) str l.L,t,-..! .120 00c 2,10 it0J

UAS Author zat ons 3,157,500 526.500

L A\ L rens fll r 685 000

18.7. Licenses, Permits, Fines & Clearances 2022 2021

Total Licenses, Pelmits, Fines & Clearances 443,80t,837 429,414,526

aP,t f aa: cn ir' i:r t.lr:.-e\

r00.000

-!,10 0i)il

240 000

18.8. Air Passenger Service Charge 2022/2021
18.8. Aii Passenger Service Charge 2022 2021

Kshs Kshs
Arr lrasse,fger Servrcr, ( lrarge l.9.1il (,15 345 t):'144).47,,

Thts r?vet)1rc cak)!lrtry ts r-ocaqnu|t/ oir c.l-s/r l),1!/s. Kshs 95.i.A,la.l7a lto tollected dLIt)t] the nnan( t,tl year reldl('\
ta ptlot y-(:ars
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18.9. Rendering of Services 2022/2021

18.9. Rendering of Services 2022 2021

Air Navrgation Servrce Charges

Sa e of AIPS & Pub rcat ons

EASA Revenue

Kshs

4,268.602068

1,116 454

209.124.O3s

Kshs

2.997,258,184

r,r5r.564

r48.362045

i lJr, ,: li t.lJ ii'r '.1 ,' ',jT,)l.j 1.1,,.,, n tp'r,,| ,.fia| l,.r rrt,rf ,ter,,r'

l8.lO. Rental Revenue 2022/2021

EASA House Rent

Embakasr House Rent

Miritinr House Rent

Bd.nbrrr House Rent

Nyali House Rent

Water Recovery - P.-r\,ro

Commercial Rent

Non-Stdfl Rent

Kshs

21,990.700

940 000

3,952.500

f 60.c00

3,690,000

Kslrs

20,957,239

t,017 600

9.100.800

q.()5 5 665.100

1,112,0271.426,013

2.6)6 926

18.11. Finance lncome - External lnvestments

'1 .,1l!ll Irrr r,,,,1 ,rr '. I ,.ia'rr,r rr,,,-.,irrt,1li ,

Kshs

83,0r0.600lnterest lncome - Current Bank Accounts

lnterest ncome Stdlf MortgacJe Bank Account

(slrs

29,096.299

6.875 r80
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18.12. Other lncome

lnterest on Salary Advances

Comm ssron on Payro I Deductlorls

Miscellaneous Receipts

Skr s Deve opment Levy

Exchange Programme/Technical Support & Reports

Kshs

66.871

644.O51

4,865.505

r25r,360

r,790,000

Kshs

22,467

842 )69

r03,746

18.13. Use of Goods & Services

Electncity Expenses

Wdter & Sewera!te Expense

Secuflty Servrces

Sullscnptron to nternatronal Orgdn satrons

Subscription to Prof essional Bodies

sub5cr ot on to Pub rcatrons

General Trarnrng

Tra n ng Levy

Wo.kshops, Conferences & Evaluat'o.rs

Loca Travei

lnternatronal Travel

Secondments & Kfow edge Mgt ProgramrT]es

EAC & other Avration Bodres Activitres

CAO M ssron of the Republrc of Kenya

Envrronment & CORSIA Programme

Certrfrcat on ol Aerodromes & ANS Facr rtres

Contrnuous Oversrght Surveillance& Regulations

ICAO l-ln versa Safety Oversrght Aud t Programme

Accrdent lnvestigation, Search & Rescue

HlV,/AIDS Druq Abuse. Gencjer & Drsabr rty

lntegrity & Natronal Values Programmes

mplementatron of Safety Mandgement System

Kshs

41,240,461

6 332056

62556,380

59 800,239

2,404,354

3.847.482

s3,099,4s8

4 56.500

28.972.026

47 399.420

42.288.592

r4,960,078

r6.709.269

45282.154

2.r88.605

5.808.477

22.60r.985

5.356 952

4.373.528

3.6D.049

3.105,820

3.096.85r

KShs

44.278,167

7.847.701

52.257.O51

49 J73.r39

2.080.725

422.145

29,664,805

460 25C

3.793,578

40 899 586

r5,870,408

r3.83 Z 307

2.607,940

28.899.149

911,688

4.424.495

r8,663,240

2 600.275

r,852769

2.944.652
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State Safety Programme & IASA CAT 1

Sustainability

ISO Related Activities

lmplementation of Risk Mgt Framework

Corporate Social Responsibility

ICAO Universal Security Audlt Programme

Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) -RPAS Oversight

Funeral Expenses

Staff Welfare

Off icial Entertainment

Aviation Statf lnsurance

Office Equipment lnsurance

Motor Vehicle lnsurance

Work lnjury Benefit Act (WIBA) lnsurance

Hire of Transport, Plant & Marhinery

Uniform and Clothing

Sports Expenses

Telephone Expenses

cookins Gas & Fuel

Postal, EMS & Courier Services

Cleaning Services

Drugs & Dressings (t4edicines & First Aid Kits)

Fungicides & Spray (Pest Cohtrol)

Library Expenses

lnternet Related Expenses

Dedicated Leased Lines & Communication Frequencies

Legal Expenses

External Audit Expenses

Advertisement Publicity & PFotography

Public Relations / Show Expenses

Events & Anniversaries

KRA Agency Collection Costs (Fees)

Bank Charges - Fees and Cdmmissions

General Provision- Doubtful Debts

SDecific Provision - Doubtful Debts

consumables

Publishing and Printing

Office Stationery

2,336164

4,757,390

5,514,008

14,370,441

2,923.682

2,637.981

330,450

2s,186,962

r,676,660

26,060,265

6.439,352

4.660,276

4,946,931

243,710

3,165,241

r3,439,466

1,623,188

1.348.777

37,283,845

72,O83

78,804

3,164.672

20,s68,745

5,836,832

29J26,443

r,500,000

29,3r4,r50

8.854,314

2,600,377

93,549.639

1,865,064

201,479,133

25.752,115

6,342,644

r4,481,383

646,821

2,067,829

2,286,173

1,989,487

91,000

24,754,361

1J31,289

24,398,489

4,370,685

5J48,r74

5,356,609

r00,000

5,237,145

't,204,200

14,317,930

r,t45,015

1,365,249

32,226,s30

r,65r,s23

12,274,390

287,824

17,935,848

1.500,000

15,879,804

80,910,674

1,579,043

8,0r5,0r3

I3,595,900

20,085,930

4,143,479

I,738,063
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Food & Rations

Fuel Expenses

Student Academic Activities

Curriculum Design & Development

Hostel & Conference

Graduation Expenses

Students Welfare (Laboratory, Dispensary)

46,81i,889

12.578.267

2,975,969

4,986.871

r,362568

2,O42,305

533,727

2r,39s,908

12,181.512

582,750

3,378,536

2,967,760

426.581

Total Use of Goods & Services 1,161,336,7r8 782.648.198

18.14. Employee Costs

Salaries & Wages

Housrng Allowances

Transport Allowances

Contributions to Pensions

Medical Expenses ln-patient

lvledical Expenses Out-patrent

Group Life lnsurance

Ex-Gratia Expenses

Kshs

r,868,684,579

249,896,s64

109,524,833

191,928,249

68.298,658

99,606,609

35,526.r85

3.711,413

Kshs

r,782,085,528

248.451,366

111,072638

r9s,648,827

57,590,142

97,831,194

35,359,311

2,844,594

1814. EmDloyee Costs 2022 2021

Total Employce Costs 2 .633.17 7 .O91 2.530.888.601

18.15. Remuneration of Directors
2022 2021lB.l5. Remuneratror'r of Drrectors

Chairman's Honoraria

Board of Directors' Expenses

Kshs

r,040,000

25,688,902

Kshs

784,5r6

12,798,07t

Total Bo.rrd RemLrnekltLon 26 728902 13.582,587

18.16. Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

2022 2021lB 16. DcDrcciation & Anrortrz,rt on Expenses

Property, Plant and Equipment

lntanqible Assets

Kshs

720,349.757

145.757.731

Kshs

710.621.32s

75,151,795

Total Deprecratron and l\mortrzatton 785.773.120 866.107.488
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18.17. Repairs & Maintenance
2022 2021lB.l7. Repairs & l'4aintenarce

Property & Staff Houses

Plant & Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Others(Roads, Water & Sewerage)

Kshs

36,474,255

393,692,826

8,518,507

11,927,600

Kshs

35,248,421

439,884,853

6,881,499

480,420

450.613,r88 482,495.192Total Repairs and Mainte'rance

18.18. Contracted Services
2022 2021l8 lB Cor'ltracted Services

Hire of Resource Persons

Hire of Satellite Links

Contracted Professional Services

Flight Calibration

Kshs

56,O97,736

r9,863,001

72,797,993

22,277,313

Kshs

51,868,121

29,072,870

53,064,936

39,022,460

r71,036,043 t7t 028 388Totr Contracted Serv aes

18.19. Finance Costs

2022 202118.19 Finance Costs

lnterest on Long-term Loan! (NCTIP)

lnterest on Long-term Loans (KTSSP)

Kshs

16,403,445

57,938,124

Kshs

19.O27,997

6r,148,629

80.r76 626Total Finance Costs 74.341.569

18.20. (a) Gain on Sale of assets

20212022lB 20. (a) Gain on Sale of asr;ets

Property, Plant & Equipment

lntangible Assets

Kshs

5,051,717

Kshs

5 057 711Tot.rl Gain on Sale of Assets
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18.20. (b) Loss on Sale of assets

2422 202118.20 (b) Loss on Sa e of dssets

Kshs

r,673,363

Kshs

Property, Plant & Equipment

lntangible Assets

Total Gain on Sale of Assets r.67J,363

18.2O. (c).Gain Foreign Exchange Transactions

2022 202118.20. (c).Ga n Forergn Exchange Trans<rctions

Foreign Exchange Gain

Kshs

243,825,329

243,82s,329

18.20 (d). Loss on Foreign Exchange
Transactions

2022

Foreign Exchange Loss

Kshs

47,123,631

87,123,631

18.21 (a). Amortization of Accrued Leave Days

Kshs

309,785,524

309,785,524

202'l

Kshs

20212022lB 2l (.r). Amortizatron of Accruecl Le..rve D.rvs

Kshs Kshs

23.926,601

23,926,601

Amortisation of Accrued Leave Days

18.21 (b). lncrease in Accrued Leave Days

18.21 (b) lncrease in /\ccruecl Leave Days 2022 2021

Kshs

3,814,O91

3,814,091

Kshs

lncrease in Accrued Leave Days
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18.21 (c). Amortization of Capital Grant

)o212022lB.)l (c) Amort lJtiOn Ol Cnortal G.drt

Kshs

3,420.000

3,420,000

Kshs

Amortization of Capital Grant

18.21 (d). Amortization of Debtors
.,o212022lB 2l (d) Amortrzat on of Debtors

Amortization of DebtorE

Surplus for the Year

90% Surplus Funds to National Treasury

Transfer to Retained Earnings

18.23(a) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Kshs

1,812,682,153

(r,63r,4r3,938)

r81,268,215

Kshs

Kshs

(3,260,193)

(3,260,193)

Kshs

2,986,723

2,986,723

18.22. Provision of Surplus Funds to the Nationa! Treasury

)4212022l8 22. Provision ot SLrrDl!s F!rncls to the Nation,tl Trc.-tsury

20212422lB 2J(a) Cash & Cash E -ru v.rlents

Current Account

Staff t4ortgage

Others (M-Pesa. Station Cash& Bank)

Kshs

2.954,773,444

204,909,r57

3.420,714

Kshs

r,5r2,951.586

258,539,841

1,437.442

1.772.92r,8693163 tOl 315Total Cash,rnd C.rsh Eq.rv.rlents
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18.23 (b) Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash

Equivalents
18.23 (b) Detailed Alalysls of the Cash and Cash Equiv.rlents

Financial lnstitution & Account Number

a) Current Account

Kenya Commercial Bank - A/C No. 1210005522

KCB Call A/C No. 1210001942

EASA KCB Expenditure A,/C No 1216797889

EASA KCB Call A,/C N o.1216797714

Stanbic -AlC No. 0100000351727

Stanbic Call No. 0100000316347

Stanbic Dollar - No.0100001937639

Standard Chartered Bank A/C, No. 0108098898400

Commercial Bank of Afflca Dollar A/C No 6514690019

EASA Dollar A,/C - Equity No. 0180299978478

EASA KES A/C - Equrty No.0180263498882

KTSSP-National Bank of Kenya No. 01001084895000

Expenditure Account- NBK No. 01003058447500

Revenue Account-NBK. No. 01003058447600

EASA Expenditure A/C NBK No.010058420600

EASA Revenue, NBK No.010058710400

Sub-Total Current Account

c) Staff Mortgage

Kenya Commercial Bank A/C No. It59226555

Sub-Total Staff Mortqaqe

d) Others

Stations Bank Accounts

EASA M-Pesa A/C Pay Bill No 754206

Sub-Total Othe.s

2022

Kshs

1.789.719

r3,356,359

6.829,5s6

99,117

91,53r,993

1,717,437

2,003,116,283

35,893,4n

641.56?.114

90,063,038

6,545,512

4.848,043

2r,660,996

34,238,505

452.701

1,063,479

2,954.7 7 3.444

204,909,r57

204,909.157

2,415,339

1,005,375

3,420,714

Kshs

661,613

202,399.441

I,091,482

3,O59,747

100,562,128

601,5r4

1,OO2,49A.7 30

87r,510

56,394,569

63,640,274

2861,419

4,805,248

2r,660,996

34,238,505

119.282

2,485.O24

r,512,95r,585

2021

258.539,84r

258,539,841

1.424.342

13,100

1.437.442

Tot.r C.rsh ar)d C,rsh Equ valents 3.163.r03 3t5 1 .71 2.928 .868
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Kshs

871,135,822

157,704.516

22,OOO,192

1,050,840,530

(94,864,165)

(461,67 6,687)

Kshs

142,836,202

501.530

370,O41

4,230,r05

209,830

259,620

2,r8211s

421,657,456

t

18.

l8.25.Receivables from Non - Exchange Transactions

Domestic OPerators

Forejgn OPerators

Student Debtors

Total Gross Current Receivables

Less: General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debt

Less: Specific Provisions for Bad and Doubtul Debt

Prepayments

Staff lmprest

Salary Advance

Medical Excess

Rent Receivable

Stafl Surcharge

Station lmprest

Staff Mortgage Receivable

Non-Staff Rent

Kshs

1,367,325,370

't63,644,664

26,568,241

1.557,s38,275

(91,977,442)

(663,r55,820)

Kshs

189,725,843

383,557

5ll,l07

4,294.670

720,114

445,237

2,r8Zn5

484,478,974

25,000

eivables f rom Exchancje Tr.-lnsactrorls 2022 202i

494.299.678802,s05,011Total Net Current Recervables

20212022lB 25.Rece vables frcm Non - Exch.lnge Transactlons

572.251899682.111.611Tota I

The balance rn the Staff Mortgage Rece vable reiates to arnount r,vhrch had been drsbursed as at the end of
each respectrve f nanc al year.
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18.26. lnventories

18.26 lnventorie; 2022

Consumables

Publishing and Printing

Office Stationery

Food & Rations

Fuel

18.27. Current lncome Tax Expense

Kshs

6,435,263

5,9r8,84r

5,596,889

2.054.465

1,854.928

Kshs

8,291,241

3,23r,045

6.532,525

3,607.763

2,749.189

Tot.rl in'/eItofles 2r.870.386 24 411763

18.27. Current Income Tax ExDense

2022

Kshs

2021

Kshs

368,92r,650Deficit / Surplus Before Tax

Adjust for Non-Allowable Expenses

Depreciation

General Provision for Bad Debts

Provision for Gratuity

Accrual for Outstanding Leave Days

Unrealised Loss on Forex

638,r28,r29

37,680,O24

r2381.766

5,535,229

117.758.902

1.185.405.701

NB: lncome Tdx rs calcuJaled usrng the enacted ncome tax rate oF 30%. The note relates to workrngs for
2013-2AV Ftnanc a year and detarls thereof are as outlrned rn the Audrled Frnancral statements for the sard
perod.



Kshs Kshs Kshs Ksh. KshsXrhs Kshs l(5hsCost/Revaluation Kshs

206,9s5,794 s98,57t,512 r9,229,554,5922,855,552522 215,416,259 :n15925r9 ft6,989,515,,l9l,494,ilsr Ir,49Z950,OOOAr .t lrt July 2O2O

r23.85r,200 2r,736,r01 431452,241 774117 72575,282,9r8Addrtrons 121795 265

(490.877.33r)355.044,739 16,375,050119.452532Transfers Adiustments

(27 .464 .454)Prlor Year Adtuslments

51t,583,96it 19,916,2 t7,959215,116,259 ,451,821,819 t 4,725,675 206,955,79ir1,1t1,717,2,4 ll,,a9Z95O,OOO !285,885,180As !t loth Jun 2OA

60,6r5,3r3 47,586.799 r22,502.050 429,990 9062,300,000 24.38r.880 $ )91745Additions I54,313, 9

(490.2s3,4s4)244.734.682245,518,172fransfers Adiustments

(65r,000) (6,44r,963) (752830) (18.502 793)(8,200,000)Drsposals (2.452.000)

9,900,0009,900.000Valuations

t43,932,560 20,397,606,072271,528,r39 471,464,544 392,899,O26 25t,7A4,7633,a!2,127,119 '1I,,t97,950,000 3,533,919,862A3 at 30th June 2022

Daprcclatlon & lmpolrmant

199.O33,717 73,400,078 r,r75,836,593r40,388,881 94,525,590 98,964,799At lst July 2020 569,523,468

4r,39rJ58 720,349,75742,272932 49,O49,252 90.764.767 112.9t5,016343,916,511Depreciation

31t,948,79,1 l't4,791,236 r,896J86,3s0222,66t,833 l/a3,6tir,84l 189,729,566As at SOth l!ne 2021 913,440,080

39,705J19 50,755.954 710,621,32588,347,997 54,305,628 94.292,914Depreciation 3A3,212,714

02.9r0.0r5)(4,920.000) (390.600) (6.410.463) (453,352)(735,600)Oisposals

:!l5,2,rl,it5o l65,Ogia,8:39 2,591,89r,5605ll,0O9,r29 l9!,q)o,69 281,63I,8aOAt 3(xh Jun 2022 1,295,9t7,19rr

XEI BOOI( VALUE

17,655,576 84,649,925 l/a3,932,56{, rz8ot,7@,. 21,222,91O,O33 74,52r,670 t828t2,7(XA!!t l(Xh Jun 2022 2,536,209,9i45 fl,492950,0OO

't8,o80,03t,608lol,83t,4t7 261,O91,273 26,776,442 92,t64,557 5ll,583,9642,52t,30 68 ll.,a9l9sO,O00 !,061,224,t17As at 30th June 2O2l

Air Navigation
Equipment

Molor Vehi-
(les

Plant & Other
Equipment

Computer
Hardware

Furniture &
Fittings

6rand TotalwtPLand Buildinqs

18.28(a) Property, Plant & Equipment Movement Schedule 2021'2022

E2
e

=

==-

-
=

(27 ,464 .458)



18.28(B). Work ln Progress

Kshs Kshs

Standby VHF Transceivers Leonardo Technologies & Services Ltd 9.989.337

Emergency VHF Radios Leonardo Technologies & Services t td r4,663,302

Air Traffic Management System lndra Ltd 220,W,132
Wajir Staff Houses Perimeter Wall Dela Construction 24,539,174

Easa Metallic Water Tanks Aquawetts Ltd 3,711.752

Construction of ANS Perimeter wall Tebik Trading Company 3,553,200

Construction of Malindi VOR Perimeter wall Cosmo-Mint Company 1,708,920

EASA Executive Hostel & Conferencinq Centre Tectura lnternational 10,551,360 10,55r,360

EASA Executive Hostel & Conferencing Centre Ernst & Young 9,494,600 9,494,600
EASA Executive Hostel & Conferencing Centre Nairobi City County 1,384,550 1,384,5 50

Reqional Centre for Aviation I'ledicine Mutiso Mene2es lnternational 22,372,477

Reqional Centre for Aviation l"ledicine Lexis lnternational Ltd 222,362.205

Aeronautical lnformation Management System Upgrade lds Air Nav 13,942166

Distance Measuring Equipment Leonardo Technologies & Services 11,524,252

Very High Frequency OMNI Range Equipment Agoma Group Ltd r1,933,320

lnstrument Landing System Aqoma Group Ltd r0,824,108

ANS Safety Tool Projemics Systems Ltd 16,413,719

Performance Based Navigation Equipment-DME Leonardo Technologies & Services 24.346,440

Project DescrlptioI S u Dplier/Verrdor 2022 2021

Total Total 143.932.561 5r 1.683.964

=

3

-
E
=
=

E,
E

=

=-

=
=:
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18.28 (C). Work !n Progress - Non Ppe
alulll trIIBI ,t.}{)tlall{ul slallrr Ms npz

2022 2021Project Description Supplier/vendor

Kshs Kshs

0'l Biometric stLdent Attendance system Dialescas Africa Ltd r,633J0r 1,633J0',1

02 ERP Navision 2Ol8 Attain Enterprise Solutions Ltd 4,626,000

03 RPAS O ht Management System lnternally Developed Software 796,756

Valuation
The Authority's non-current assets were va ued in June 2019. The Author ty's Finance Polcy and Procedures
Manual provrdes for va uat on oF noncurrent assets every three years. The next valuatron shall be done ln ine
wlth the National Assets and L atliltres Management Polrcy and Gurdel nes, the Authonty's F nance Polrcy and
Procedures Manual and the provrsions of PSAS l7 (Property, Plant & Equ pment)

18.29. lntangible Assets Movement Schedule

Total 2,429,857 6,2s9,1O1

2022 2021Description

Cost

At th. B.qlnnlnc 0l tho Y..r

Transfer Adjustments

Additions Ouring the Year

Capitalization of Work ln Progress

At th. End ol th. \t

Additions - lnternal Development

Additions - Work ld Progress

At the End ot the Ycar

Amortlzlllom I hb.lm.nt

At the Beginning of the Year

Amorti2ation

At the End o, the Y€al

lmpairment Loss 
l

At the End of the Year

}{ct Bod( Vdu.

Kshs

558,012,7'12

(4,626,000)

25,621,740

4,626,000

!8:r,6:!1,452

796,756

584,43t,208

286,684,396

75J51,795

561,8t5,I9t

361,836,191

2X595,Or7

Kshs

33r,862644

(22,102.475)

20,656,966

22,102,475

352,524,6fl

5,488,r01

358,O12,712

140,926,665

u5.757,731

286,684,196

286,684,396

n,128,116
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18.3O. Trade & Other Payables

18.30. Trade & Other Payables

Trade Creditors - Local

Trade Creditors - Foreign

Third Party Claims

Stale and Unpaid Cheques

Collaboration Fees

Student Association Fees

External Examination Fees

Student Excursions

Caution Money

KUCCPS Placement Fees

Student lndustrial Attachment

VAT Output

VAT Withheld A/C

Withholding Tax

lGh.

567.265.562

222,605,110

15,121,194

Krhs

625.361.289

r79,538,r32

16,099,283

5,37r,000

2.585,245

363,202

790,O82

6,204,467

r,02r,840

369,000

2,606,820

(326,053)

19,731,955

2,695,767

5,385.911

4,236.r 50

591,202

2,308,815

9,419,451

1,491,203

594,000

4,911.270

0,349,390)

26,733,O17

(8.177.327)

TotJ Trddc ,rn(i Othcr Pi v.bles 85r.l]6,r70 862.4 r8.029

18.51. Refundable Deposits from Customers
18.31. Relundable Deposits from Customers 2022 2021

Consumer Deposits

Kshs

14J0s,343

Kshg

14,105.343

Total R€f undable Deposits r4,ro5,343 14,105,343

18.32. Employee Benefits Obligations

18.32. Employe€ Benerrts Obligations 2022 2021

Net Salary

PAYE Staff

Payroll Deductions-Cheques

Payroll Deductions-Staf f

Payroll Deductions EFT

Staff Claims

Board Liability

Kshs

3,062,709

479.303

527,182

Kshs

3,094,422

479,303

527)82

r96,042

2,358,930

47,476.991

731,060
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18.32. Employee Benefits Obligations

PAYE Board of D rectors 2,535,299 2.310,496

EASA Lecturers Net Pay (48.150)

EASA NH|F 4OO 35.750

EASA NSSF - 15,600

EASA Bank Loanl 18'500 69'145

EASA HELB - 4,156

EASA PAYE Liabi*ty 91,807 1,526,529

EASA lnsurance Deductions - 5'000

Service Gratuity 65'082465 63J58,545

Leave Provision 87,064,495 83,250'404

Others: PAYE Othlrs 127'200 4,241

18.33. Current Portion of Borrowing

20212022'18.32. Employee Benef its Obligations

18.33. Current Portion of Borrowing 2022

Kshs

2021

Kshs

NCTIP

KTSSP

52,491,025

129,833,330

52,491,025

129,833,330

182,324,356182,324,3s6Balance at End ol Period

8.34. Current Provisions

Balance as at lst July

Additional Provisions

Provisions Utilised

Balance as at loth June 2O2l

Balance as at 1st July 2b21

r,355,730,659

0,355,730,659)

1,631,4r3,938

325,565.305

258,516,220

258,676,220

258,676,220

1,5r4,406.879

(r,3ss,730,659)

258,676,220

25ai76,22O

1,631,413.938

32s55s,305

(65,n3,06r)

Additional Provisions during the
year

Domestic Air Navisatioh Service
Charse vAT Assessmerit tiabitity

Payments during the year

18.34. Curent Provisions

Descriplion TotalEx- StaffNational Treasury

(65,1r3,061)

2,150,542,402r,89r,865,r82 258,676,220Balance as at 3oth June 2022
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18.35. Borrowings

18.35 Borrowings 2022 2021

Analysis of Borrowinqs

Balance at the Beginning ol the Period

Repayments of External Borrowing During the Period

Repayments ot Domestic Borrowing Durinq the Period

Balance at the End of the Psriod

Fhe analysis of both external and domestic borrowing are as fol-
lows:

IDA Loans: KTSSP - Dollar Denominated

IDA Loans: NCTIP - Dollar Denominated

Short Term Borrowing (Current Portion)

Long Term Borrowing (Non-Current Portion)

1,846,700,602 2,O29,O24,957

Kshs

2,029,024,957

(182,324.3s6)

r,552999,962

288,700,640

r,845,70O,602

182,324,356

1,664,376,246

Kshs

2,215,045,450

086,020,493)

1.687,833,292

341,r9r,666

2,029,021,957

182,324,356

'1.846,700,602

Tolal Borowings r,846,700,602 2,O29,O24,957

18.36. Revaluation Reserve

Ooenrng Balance

Add rLess) Adiu5tmenls D!rrng the pei.ii

Kshs

8,308.682.978

3 9C0 Oac

Kshs

8,324,804.006

rt6t2t078)

18.37 . Government Grants

Openrng Balance

Less: Amount Amortlsed DuIng tne Year

Kshs

136,800,000

(3,420 000)

Kshs

608,r33,333

(47r,333 333)

The GOK qrant relates to the Regronal Centre lor Av atron f.ledrcrne The grant rs being amortrsecl over the estrmatecl rfe
of the 655p1 16pplsx1mate y 40 years). Th s dsset lvas constructed on behalf of the Edst Afflcan Communrty , C v I Av atron
Safety and Securlty Oversrght Agency (EAC CASSOA) and s awartrng transfer to the Agency
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18.38. Accumulated Surplus

2021202218.38. Accumulated Surplus

Kshs

9 ,255,519 ,247

Kshs

8,788,r09.487Openrng Balance

Add (Def crt)/Surp us for the per od

Add: Amortization ot GoK Grant

Less SurD[]s (Excess) P.)d Dufln.t the Peflod

Tax Recoverable Adlustment

Do,nest c Arr Navrqatron Serv ce Charge VAI20ll-20i5 rabr rty

Domestic Arr Navrgation Service Charqe VAT Assessment
Liabrlrty

t81.268.215 (3.260,r91)

47r,333,333

(653,380)

(7,070,385)

(r29 r99.768)

(32s,565,305)

Total Accumulated surplus at the End of the Period 8,974,952,004 9,255,519,247

The amortrsed amount relates lo GoK qrant for the Reqtonal Centre of Aviatron ["]ed c ne

18.39. Related Parties

(.,1] S (_ilrS

Transactrons w th Related Partres

.at Sari,\ ic Re at{ro I'ari c!

2.O47.6402.676.000Cert ficat on of Aerodromes & Staff Certrf ca-
t on-Kenya Arrports Author ly

Lb Pu" ar, 'r 'nQtslfr,d; r'r,r,

44,278.16143.864.943Purchase of Power from Kenya Power & Lrght
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2.475.3366.)86,754Tra nrng and ConFerences Fees pard to Kenya
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153,450,475159,860,012Total
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18.4O. Financial Risk Management
rhe authority's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity rlsks and
effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Authority's overall risk management pro-
giamme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise
the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The
Authority does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to
customers with an established credit history.
The Authority's flnancial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit Risk
The Authority has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks,
as well as trade and other receivables.
Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits are set based on internal or external assessment
in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the statement of financial po-
sition are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Authority's management based
on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the Authori-
ty's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is
made up as follows:

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

As at 30.1!ne 2022

Receivables f rom Exchange Transac-
tions

r.s52s38.275 1.0I,625,511 545.912.164

Po. e,do e\' o'r \on-L.cfange T dns 682.111 611 680 584.502 2.187.r5

Bank Balances 3,r63.r03,3rs 3,r63,r03,3r5

Totals 5,403.413 207 4.855,3r3,328 5,18 099 B7S

As at 30 June 2021

Receivdb es from Exchange Transac-
tlons

r.050 840.530 494 299 618 556.540.852

Receivables f rom Non-Exchange Trans.
actlons

572,251,899 570,064,784 2,182115

Bank Balan.es 1712.928.868 | 112.928.868

Credit Risk Mgt

Total
Amount

Fully
Performing

Past Due lm-
paired

Totn ls 3.396.021.297 2.A31.293330 555727 967
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The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading. The

credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible amounts

that the company has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate to cover any po-

tentia lly irrecoverable amounts.
The Authority's has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from Kenya Airways Plc. The

Board of Directors sets the Authority's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within

which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Authority's directors, who have built
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Authority's short, me-

dium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Authority manages liquidity
risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial liabilities

by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances,

as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

As at 30 June 2022

Trade Payab es

Current Portion of Borrowings

Current Provisrons

Employee Benefit Obligat on

Total

As at 30 June 2021

Trade Payab es

Current Portion of Borrovflngs

Current Provrsrons

186 S58 r85

r86 958 r85

r82,324.356

2 .150 542 .402

207,154.261

3,39r.r57.r89

851,136,170

862,4r8,029

182.324.356

258,616,220

15209s.743

368.897.36r 29\.28A 624

368,897,361

182,324,356

2 ,150 .542.402

207,154,261

2.835.30r,643

r69,961 986 409.885 957

Employ ee Benefit Obligation

(iii) Market risk

The Board has put in p ace an tnterna audrt funct on to assrst rt rn assessrng the risk faced by the Au-

thority on an ongorng basrs, evaluate and test the des gn and effect veness of its internalaccount ng and

operatrona I cont rois.

t'4arket nsk ts the r sk aristng from changes n market pr ces, such as lnterest rate, equtty pr ces and forergn

exchange rates whtch will affect the entity's ncome or the value of rts hold ng of f nancral rnstruments.

The objective of market risk management rs to manage and control market risk exposures w thln accept-

able parameters, while optrmrs ng the return. Overall respons b lity for managing market risk rests w th

the Audrt and R sk Management Commlttee

282,570,A86

182,324.356

2\8.6t6.224

r52095,743

There has been no change to the Authorlty's exposure to market risks or the manner in wh ch it manages

and measures the rlsk

Liquidity Risk Management Between l-3
Months

TotalOver S MonthsLess Than I Honth

Total 159,96t,986 dO9,885,957 880,666,405 1,460,514,348
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a) Foreign Currency risk

The Authority has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
goods and serv ces that are done in currencies other than the ocal currency. lnvoices denorn-
inated rn foreign currenc es are pard after 30 days from the date of the tnvoice and conversron
at the time of payment ts done using the preva ltng exchange rate.
The carrying amount of the Author ty's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary llabilities at the end of the report ng perrod are as follows.

Kshs Other Cur-
tenctes

At 30 June 2022 Kshs Kshs Kshs

Total

Financial Assets

lnvest,Trents

Cash

Debtors

Total Frnancial Assets

F ndnc d Lab rtres

Trade and Other Payables

Borrowrngs

Total Financral Lrab lrtres

At 30 June 2021

lnvestments

Cdsll

Debtors

Total Frndncral Assets

Frnancral Liabilrtres

Trdde and Other Paydb,es

Borrowings

Total Frndncral L.tb ltres

426.610.748

r393.891.612

r.820,504,360

3,r63,103.3r5

r.55/538,275

4.7 20.641,590

561.115.362

56215,362

r 253 t8B 998

KShS

625 367 289

625.361.289

2,7 36.492,567

163 644.664

2,900,r32231

284,020,808

284,020,808

N-ot Fore gn Currency Asset,'(L ab I ty) 2 616.116 423

Ksh,:

179.538 l]2

t79 538 E2

3 869 505 4r0

Kshs

851,r36,r70

851,136,r70

804.905,J2r

650.060.209

893,i36,Or4

1 543196 22 \

f 22.868.658

157,104.516

r.280 573.17d

t772928868

r,050.840,530

2 823 769 3C8

8 0.1.9 0 5.4 2 r

Net Foreign Currency Asset (Liability) 917,828,934 I,101,015,042 2 ,O t8,863 ,97 7

The Authority manages forergn exchange rrsk lrom future commercral lransact ons and recognrsed assets
and lab lrtres ily prolectrng for expected sales proceeds and match ng the same wrth expected payments.
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Kshs Kshs

15.677.482 42,187.467

29.14).436 1,041.3|

Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis Foreign Currency Sensitivi-
ty Analysis

2022

Euro

USD

2421

Euro

Kshs

1a%

l0%

t0%

USD

tnterest rate rrsk s the risk that the Authority's f nancral condrtion may be adversely affected as a result

of changes tn tnterest rate levels The Author ty's interest rate nsk arises from bank deposits. This exposes

the companV to cash flow interest rate risk. The tnterest rate r sk exposure arses mainly from interest rate

movements on the Authority's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the tnterest rate Sk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that offer fa
vourable rnterest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The enlity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basrs by conductrng a sensitrvtty analysis. Thls

rnvolves determining the impact on profit or oss of defrned rate shifts. The sensit vrty analysis for interest

rate r sk assumes that all other variables, rn particular foreign exchange rates. remain constant. The ana -

ysrs has been performed on the same basts as the prior year.

Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Authonty's ability to contrntre as

a going concern. The entity capita structure comprises of the following funds:

to%
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Kshs Kshs

Revaluation Reserve 8.318.582.978 8.308.682.978

Retained Earn ngs 8.974,952.004 L255.519.241

Capital Reserve 133,380.000 r36,800,000

Totdl Funds 17 .426 .914 .982 17 .7 0).002.224

Total Borrowings r.846.700.602 2.029.024.957

Less: Cash dnd Bank Balances 3,r63.r03,3r5 1.112.928 .868

Net Debt,/(Excess Cash and C6h Equivalents) (r,3r6.402,713) 256,095.090

Gea ng Ba/. 10/o

2022 2021

18.41. Related Party Disclosures

Nature of Related Party Relationship

The Authority regards a related party as a person or an entrty wrth the ability to exert control individu
ally or jointly, or to exercise stgnificant influence over rts operating and frnancral decisions These include
management personnel, their associates and close famrly members.

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya s the principal shareholder of the Authonty, holdrng 1OO% of the Authority's
equity rnterest. The Government of Kenya has provtded full guarantees to al long term lenders of the
entrty, both domestic and external. Other related parties'disc osures for the period are;
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Transactions with Related Parties

18.42. Contingent Assets And Contingent Liabilities

(a) A Summary of the Contingent Assets are as Follows:

(i) Potential Receiptt from Kenya Airports Authority:

With reference to the Statute Law (Miscellaneous Amendments) Act,2014 that came Into effect on the

8th December 2014, the Author ty has been pursurng up the arrears that may not have been remrtted by

the KAA over the perrod srnce the law came into effect and ln additron to changes that were effected rn

lrght of the Lega Notice No 143 datecl'l4th June 2018. As such, the Authoflty has been undertakrng a
reconci iation w th the KAA and a tearn from Kenya Revenue Authorrty (KRA), with an a m to determtne

the amounts rece vable from the KAA. The Authorrty has made eFforts to follow up the amounts due from

the KAA.

(ii) Pending Fraud Case:

This is a criminal Case No. 2B4O/O3 at the Antr-Corruptron Court. The case relates to a Kenya Revenue Au-

thorrty offrcer who was responsrble for collectrng Arr Nav gatron charges and rs charged w th defraud ng

KCAA oF USD 100,465 These assets have not been recognrzed n the accounts because there is mater al

uncertainty on the r realization.

KshsKshs

Transactrons with Related Parties

(a) Sdles to Re ated Pa(res

2,041,6402,676,000Certrflcation of Aerodromes & Staff Certifrca-

tron-Kenya Airports Authority

(b) purchases from R..latcd P.rtres

44.278.16143,864,943Purchase of Power from (enya Power & Light-
rng Company Ltd

B 330 320al)i1g)PLrr.hase of DLesel dnd Petrol of Nat ona Or

2,475.3366,186,754Trarnrng and Conferences Fees pard to Kenya

Schoolof Government

1c) Key Mandgerrellt Cornpelrsatron

13,582,58726,72A,902Directors Emoluments

82116.4257t 679 63tCompensalron to Key l'4andgernent

20212022

r53,430,475rs9,860,o12Total
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(b) Contingent Liabilities:

(i) Potential Debts/Claims owed to Suppliers Totalling Ksh 40.32 Million:

Kenya A rports Author ty btlltngs for rent and utrlrty charges for the penod up lo 30 June 2005 amounl ng
to Ksh 40.32 Mi lion. Much of thrs perod was a time when the Authonty was sttlla department in the M n-
istry of Transport and Commun catrons. Thrs amount has not been provided for in the frnanc al statements

(ii) Potential claims arising from dismissed staff:

Thrs is a case rnvolving 68 former employees of the Drrectorate of Crvil Avlallon (the Flredecessor of
KCAA) emanat ng from alleged dtsmrssal of the sard employees from publrc servtce and mal ctous prose-
cution. The case was ruled in favour of the Plarntiffs KCAA appealed agatnst the ludgment and the appedl
proceeded for hearing on 7th January, 20]4. The Court drsm ssed KCAA's appeal wrth costs. The Court of
Appeal ordered the matter to be referred back to Htgh Court for dssessment of total damages. The High
Court del vered the rulrng on assessment for 40 p arntrffs out of 67 p atnl ffs. The ludgment amount in
total is Kshs 154,841,140. The C armants'sought a rev ew. The appl cation for revrew sought an add t onal
Kshs ]03,835,080. To this extent, the Authority has made a prov sron of Kshs 258, 676220 n ts frnancral
statements for the period ended 30th June 2021. KCAA made a revrew applrcation to revlew the Court
orders to run up to the date when ludgment was delrvered Thrs applrcatron wrll be menttoned on 20th
September 2022.

(iii) Other Claims fiom former staff
The Authority ts facing employee related drsputes whrch are at drfferent stages of lt gatton. The outcome
of this disputes may occasion potentra iabllity to lhe Author ty.

18.43 Surplus Remission

ln accordance w th Sect on 219 (2) of the Pub c Frnancral Management Act regulations. regulatory en
ttties shal remtt into Conso rdated Fund, ninety per centum of tts surplus funds reported in the audited
ftnanctal statements after the end of each frnancral year The Author ty drd not make any surplus during
2020'21 frnanctal year and hence no remrttance to the Consolrdated Fund during 2021-2022 financtal
year.

18.44 Events After The Reporting Period
There were no matenal adlust ng and non-adJusttng events after the reporttnq per od

Kshs Ksh s

Authorised for

Authorrsed and contractecl for 690,376.557 489.28r.756



18.45 Ultima

The Authority is a Sta

e And Holding Entity

Corporation under the Ministry of Transport, lnfrastructure, Housing, Urban

Development and Pub ic Works. lts ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya

18.46 CURR CY

Tlle financial statemen are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)

tr
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APPENDIX I: IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF
AUDlTOR.GENERAL'S RECOMMENDATIONS
The following ts the summary of rssues ra sed by the externalduditor, and manaqement comments that
were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various ssues as shown
below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved

PROPERfl PLANI AND EOUIPMENT

ll

Land and Bulldlngs
- Ownership docu-

ments were not
made available for

audit veriflcation

- I'lanagement is follow-
ing up with the rele-

vant state agencies to
obtain title deeds

Director General
Not

Resolved

This a work in
progress that is
systematic ally

being addressed
Update on

proqress to be
given during the
2021/22 rcpo^-

ing.

1.2

Propertlas Allocated to
Thlrd Partlos

- Some parcels of land
were registered an

the names of
third parties

- Management is follow-
ing up with various
state aqencies for re-
vocation of current title
deeds and issuance of
title deeds. A few own-
ership titles are expect-
ed to be processed in
favour of the Authority
in the near future.

Director General
Not
Resolved

This a work in
progress that is
systematic ally
being addressed
Updates to be
given during the
2021/22 rcporl-
ins.

2
UNSUPPORTED REVENUE

The accuracy, complete-
ness and
validrty of the revenue
from exchange lrans-
actions that relates to
A r passenger servrce
charge fee of Kshs.
I 924.086.O17 for the
year ended 30 -lune,
2020 cou d not be
ascertarned stnce the
qross revenue
colectable by the
Kenya Revenue Au-
thority (KRA) was not
provrded.

The Authoflty does not
collect these funds d rect-
ly The funds are remit-
ted to the Author ly by
Kenya Revenue Authorty
through Kenya
Arrports Authoflty. The
use of actual rern ttances
(cash bas s) safeguards
the Authonty from cash
flow challenges rn the
remrttance of the 9070
surol!s to the Natronal
Treasury, rn the event the
Authorty makes a surplus
in any grven f nanc a year

Director Geoeral
Not
Resolved

Contrnuou s y

beinq followed
up Update to be
9 ven du0ng the
2a21/22 rcpatlng

Retelence
No. on the

externalau.
dit Report

Focal Point per-
son lo

resolve the
issue Qvame and

designation)

Status:
(Pesolved

/ Not
Resolved)

Timerram e:
(Put a date when

you
expect the

issue to be rc.
solved)

Management Comments
lssue / Observations
from Auditor
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Emile N. Arao
Director General

3 DEBT OWED BY THE NATIONAT CARR ER

Not
Resolved

Progress
updates to be
shared
rn the
2021/22 rcpotls

The Authonty has
contrnuously and

consrstently engaged
Kenva Arrways and
all other debtors to
ens(rre a lthe out-

stand ng amounts are
cleared. As a result
the debt owed by

the airl ne has been
reducrng over the
aorlrse of t me and
Authonty rs keen to

ensure rt c ears rn the
near future

Drrector General

The Natronal carr er, Kenya
Arrways owes the Authori
ty Kshs 262,878,553 whrch
is 3070 of the recervables.
Although general and
spec frc provrsrons of Kshs
86,849,153 and Kshs
348 080,787 respecttvely
has been provrded, rts ad-
equdcy over the nationa
carrier's debt could nol be
estabIshed.

4
UNRESOLVE D PRIOR YEAR MAITERS

The Author ty
has
requested
the OAG to
share rnforma
tro n on areas
of noncomplL
anc e wrth the
standards and
the crrcular

s nce thrs matter
was not rarsed
dur ng the aud t
of rhe 20r9120
f nancra state-
ments and the
penod before.

The Managernent has not
resolved the ssues or
g ven any explanat on for
fd lure to adhere to the
provlsrons of the
Publrc Sector
Account ng Standards
Board templates and the
Nalronal Treasury & Plan-
n ng C rculdr reference
No

Not
Resolved

Drrector
General

AG 4/16/3 Voll(9) dated
24t' Jtne 2O2O

Date
a{.:> 5 lrrn .



Centre for
Aviation
Medicine

N/A GoK 2020/2021
to

2O2t/2022

136.8 No Yes

Centre for
Aviation
Medrcine

247.O3 247.O3 100 241.06 247 03 GoK/AIA
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE

AUTHORITY
Projects implemented by the Kenya Civil Aviation funded by development partners and/ or
the Government.

Status of Projects completion
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48.309.547 20Recurrent 48 349.547 )A a8 309 541 2AKenya Arrports Author ty a5/\o/2a21

31.r56.827953r.r56,8279515/10/2021 Recurrent 3r,1s6.827.95Kenya Airports Authority

123.891,334 75Recurre0t 123 8Ct 134 75 123 891.334 75Kenya A rports Author rty a4/11/2021

229,O21,126.O5o44V2021 Recurrent 229,O21.126.O5 229,021,126.O5Kenya Airports Authority

397670,000 00392670,000.0028/0V2A22 Recurrent 397670 000.00Kenyd Arrports Authorrty

123.891,334.7528/01/2022 Recurrent 123,891,334.15 123.891,334.75Kenya Arrports Authority

172752.368.45Recurrent 112.152.368 45 112 152 368.45kenya A rports Author ty 31/05/2022

r42866.616.45Recurrent r47866,516.45 142866,616.4sKenya Airports Authority 23/06/?022

243.756.033 00243.156.O33 0028/06/2A22 Recurrent 243,756.033.00Kenya Arrports Authorty

i58.700,499.4sRecurrent 158.700,499.45 158,700,499.45Kenya Airports Authority 28/06/2022

271.599 657.35271,599,657 35 21).599 657.3528/A6/2022 RecurrentKenya Arrports Author ty



APPENDlX IV: REPORTING OF CLIMATE RELEVANT EXPENDITURES

Kenya Civil Aviation Authority
(+254) 20 6827470-5 rnfo@kcaa.or.ke Mr. Emrle N. Arao

Name and contact details of contact person (in case of any clarif rcations) M r. Winston Grcheru, Tel. (254) 20 682747O-5, Ema il: wg icheru@kcaa.or.ke
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KCAA is working together with the global civil aviatron communrty towards reductions of aircraft emissions. To this end, Kenya is participating in the Carbon
Offsetting and reduction Schemefor International Aviation (CORSIA) in the prlot phase since 2021. The scheme arms at contributi;g to the glo--bal aspirations
of keeping the global net Carbon Dioxide emissions from international aviation neutral from 2O2O at the same level. This rmplies thjt aircrafi will incieasrngly
use efficient fuels and Air Navigatlon Service providers design routes that do not contribute to increased aircraft emrssions.

A pilot project was implemented in Kenya with strong su,pport from the lnternational Civil Aviation Organisation (ICAO). lt consisted of a ground-mounted
photovoltaic system of 5OTkW.solar power generation facility and mobile airport gate electric equiphent. This innovative project was iaunched on l2th
December 2Ol8 at Moi lnternational Airport.in Mombasa, Kenya. The facility provides pre-conditioned air (PCA) and compatible electricity that runs on
solar energy to service aircraft during ground operations which eliminate carbon dioxrde emissions from aircraft parked at the gate. The systeh has been in
operation since April 2019, when the site acceptance tests were conducted and the system was commissioned.

The prolect installed anauxtliary power unit (APU) anda_ground power unit (GPU) for use by aircraft at Mor lnternational Airport that are powered by clean
energy from solar. This has helped to reduce the use of fossil fuel (diesel) by powering the APU and GPU at the airport. The system has jlso helped to run
onboard systems and interior cooling before aircraft depart for their next flight.

The solar facility has generated 737,014.86kwh annually on average with a total power generation of 2.472,31O92kWh as of June 2022.Ihus, it has reduced
on average 704.225 tonnes of CO, annually. ln total, the amount of carbon dioxide emissions reduced equa lled 1,99t.'l07 tonnes as of June 2022. Theairport
gate equipment serves more than 1,497 flights per year, with both GPU & PCA consuming 120,718.586 kWh as of June 2022, therefore demonstrating a con-
crete solution to reduce aviation carbon dioxide emissions.


